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Chairman’s statement

A year of progress

As my first year as Chairman, | am delighted to introduce this year's Annual Report and Accounts, reflecting
on the year's events and our many successes. The Group has continued to generate sustainable returns,
achieving an underlying return on tangible equity of 16.3%, and an underlying profit before taxation of £110.3
million. These results mark another year of great progress for the Group, achieving continued profitability
despite the heightened economic and political uncertainties.

In 2018, | was pleased to appoint lan Cowie as Group Chief Executive Officer, following the departure of Steve
Pateman from the business in July. | would like to thank Steve for the important role he played over the last
three years and for his commended service to the Group. | would also like to extend my gratitude to my
predecessor, lain Cornish, for his positive contributions to the Group.

Building capacity and capability

2018 has been a year of investment, as we continued to support business growth by making significant
investments in our operations, IT and risk infrastructure. In November, we welcomed Russ Thornton as our
inaugural Chief Technology Officer. Russ will lead our drive to deliver operational efficiencies and improved
customer experience through the intelligent application of technology.

. Unlocking future potential, our strong income growth has enabled us to invest in the recruitment of new talent
to support business development. True to our ongoing commitment to staff training, we have maintained a
core focus on developing our people and encouraged lateral movement across the organisation with the
introduction of ‘My Shawbrook Pathway'. This has been achieved through a wide range of personal
development programmes and a new structured leadership programme, with an overarching aim to encourage
and incentivise our high-performance culture.

Strong governance

We are- committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance throughout the Group.
Effective Board oversight is vital to the successful delivery of the Group’s strategy and key in embedding a
cohesive and high performing culture across the business. In support of this continuing commitment to good
corporate governance, an independent Board Effectiveness review was carried out in Q3 2018.

As a Board, we aim to promote an engaging culture that supports our values and strategy in business.
Shawbrook is very much a relationship business serving customers in a way which requires experience,
knowledge, judgement and integrity. We actively recruit and develop our people to ensure we have a workforce
that possesses these qualities in abundance, and who are passionate about what they do.

Securing healthy foundations

During the year, we continued to balance risk management with reward, encouraging a culture of thoughtful
judgement and decision making to build out our business model and secure healthy foundations for the future.
In 2018, the composition of our funding shifted slightly, following the final drawdown from the Bank of England
Term Funding Scheme (TFS). In 2019, we will look to diversify our wholesale funding sources to optimise the
Group'’s liability mix. The asset side of our balance sheet also remains a model of resilience and flexibility as
we close the year with a robust, diversified loan portfolio (63% Property Finance, 24% Business Finance, 13%
Consumer Finance). | believe these key drivers position us well for the year ahead, safeguarding the Group
against the uncertain economic backdrop.

Strategic opportunities
During my first year as Chairman, | have found Shawbrook to be a unique business built on the core values of
serving customers, collaboration and entrepreneurism.

Having met many of the Group's stakeholders, | am encouraged by the relentlessness and ambition that | have
seen across the Group and | look forward to watching the business grow from strength: to strength.

Throughout 2019 we will continue to revolve our strategy ensuring we identify opportunities for growth and that
resource is deployed in areas the add the most value for both customers and the Group.
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Chairman’s statement (continued)

Outlook
Entering 2019, | am excited to be working with an enthusiastic Management team who will continue to deliver

sustainable growth through the deployment of good sense specialist banking products in markets that remain
poorly served by the mainstream banks.

Over the past year, the UK banking sector has continued to evolve, driven by increased regulatory oversight,
the transformation of financial technology and the ongoing macroeconomic uncertainty resuiting from Brexit
negotiations. We are mindful of the associated challenges that lie ahead, but | am confident we have a secure
model that can capitalise on the opportunities that this climate will present, as we continue to develop a strong
and healthy business for all stakeholders.

I would like to thank the Board, the Management team and colleagues across the business for their contribution
to everything we have achieved together in 2018.

John Callender
Chairman
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement

Financial strength

In 2018, my first period as Chief Executive Officer, we achieved another year of increased profitability. The
Group saw new lending improve during the period, resulting in a 20% increase in the customer loan book to -
£5.9 billion. The year’s solid financial performance is attributable to the thoughtful and human approach taken
to the way we do business.

Whilst maintaining a core focus on sustainable growth, in 2018 we continued to build our customer base and
strengthen our balance sheet. Supporting our customers to achieve their financial goals where others could
not or chose not to; we continued to leverage our specialist knowledge, innovative lending solutions and
tailored decision making to deliver bespoke outcomes for each of our customers.

Customer led approach

At Shawbrook we are constantly striving to keep the customer at the forefront of everything we do, from our
customer-centric solutions to regular broker feedback sessions; positive customer outcomes remain
paramount. Our commitment to service did not go unrecognised in 2018, achieving an impressive customer
satisfaction score of 87%'. | am mindful however, of the importance of keeping up with evolving customer
expectations and as a result, in 2019 we will continue to develop our offering by utilising technology to create
excellent customer outcomes.

Specialists in our space ,
Challenging the status quo, in 2018, we continued to build our presence in our specialist markets. Leveraging
opportunities as they arose, we invested in and developed our customer propositions.

Our Property Finance business continued to experience sustained growth, increasing the loan book 16% in
the year to £3.7 billion. Capitalising on the shift towards the professionalisation of the lettings market, and the
solid relationships held across our dedicated broker network, our specialist Buy-to-Let proposition remained a
key driver for business success.

In our Business Finance division, we have seen the business strengthen and momentum build month on
month. The reach of our now established Regional Business Centre network, and the subsequent ability to
serve the needs of local businesses has supported the expansion of our wider offering, supporting the
aspirations of SMEs in this segment.

During the year, we also expanded our capability into several new adjacent markets, entering Sports Finance,
Renewables and Growth Capital. Moving into 2019 with a strong business pipeline, improved processes and
significant growth potential we will continue to identify and explore different opportunities to position ourselves
as the specialist lender of choice.

The way we do business in our Consumer division continued to give us a leading edge in our specialist space.
In January, we introduced our Transparency Charter, reinforcing our commitment to be honest, open and fair,
paving the way for us to champion the customer. In July we integrated an advanced decisioning tool into the
business, to further enhance our risk management controls.

Investing and innovating

In 2018, our strong income growth facilitated several thoughtful investments across the business with the aim
of leveraging technology to create a streamlined experience for the customer — while preserving the
understanding and expertise that help us support even the most complex of customer’s. In Consumer Savings,
we optimised our infrastructure and enhanced our e-savings portal creating a safer and seamless self-serve
platform for our savings customers. In Property Finance, we made further improvements to our commercial
mortgages platform to introduce greater automation in support of smarter customer outcomes.

As we invested for the future, our underlying cost to income ratio was impacted by these strategic decisions,
increasing to 50.9% (2017: 45.7%). We also chose to take advantage of several inorganic investment
opportunities which emerged during the period, acquiring three property portfolios worth ¢.£0.3 billion with a
view to maintaining a diversified portfolio.

1 Through an independent survey conducted by Charterhouse in 2018.
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Chief Executive Officer statement (continued)

Delivering on our strategic objectives

Our markets continued to be challenging in 2018, as increased competition impacted pricing and wider macro-
economic factors continued to shape the financial landscape. Despite these pressures, lending remained
strong achieving yields of 6.7% across the portfolio. Our enduring commitment to thoughtful underwriting,
conduct and risk management has enabled us to maintain a stable underlying cost of risk, achieving 68bps
(43bps including the £13.0 million of insurance gains?) in 2018 (2017: 53bps). Further information on credit
risk is included within the risk management report (pages 18 to 65).

Embedding a collaborative culture

Creating a diverse, inclusive and collaborative workplace is fundamental to business success and thus this
remains a core strategic priority for me and my team. In the year, we took steps to strengthen Shawbrook’s
culture. Recognising the importance of cooperation across the business, we introduced several employee
engagement initiatives to secure a shared purpose under one, connected bank.

Outlook

We enter 2019 with heightened ambitions, a healthy business pipeline and a renewed sense of vigour. Trading
conditions in our core markets remain positive, and despite ongoing concerns associated with the uncertainty
surrounding the impact of the UK leaving the European Union, | believe our agility and entrepreneurial spirit
will enable us to capitalise on market movements. | feel very privileged to be at the helm of a business which
is well positioned to support a range of customer needs and help them navigate through the economic
conditions to realise their ambitions.

lan Cowie
Chief Executive Officer

1 During 2018, the Group received £13.0 million relating to the Group’s insurance claim in respect of the controls breach identified in the
Business Finance division in 2016. Cost of risk including this £13.0 million is 0.43%. Cost of risk adjusted to exclude this £13.0 million is
0.68%.
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Strategic report
The Shawbrook Story

Since 2011, we've been quietly growing our business. Our approach to lending and savings is founded on the
simple quality of good sense, adopting traditional values with a modern delivery. This is a big part of who we

are.

Communication matters. We listen, we understand, and we talk to one another. We care about our customers

and where they're going.

People are the life force of our business, so our approach is to blend human judgement with technological

tools when it comes to decision-making.

That's why ensuring a deep understanding of our customers is our top priority.

Shawbrook - Proudly different.

How we've done

2018 key highlights

How we have delivered
against our strategic
pillars:

Achieve strong risk
adjusted returns

6.7% Gross asset yield

Enhance customer focus

87% Customer

satisfaction”
*feedback from our 2018 Charterhouse
survey

Progressively increase
originations

20% increase in loan book
to £5.9bn

Maintain excellent credit
quality

68bps Cost of risk**
“*43bps including the £13.0 million of
insurance proceeds received relating to the
controls breach in Business Finance in 2016

Maintain conservative
foundations

12.2% CET1
17.0% Total capital ratio

Shawbrook Bank Limited

Annual Report and Accounts 2018




Strategic report (continued)
Our business

What we do

Shawbrook is a specialist UK lending and savings bank focused on Property Finance, Business Finance and
Consumer Lending and Savings. We differentiate ourselves by concentrating on markets where our expert
knowledge, judgement and personalised approach to underwriting offers us a competitive advantage. This
approach supports attractive, stable returns and sustainable growth, benefiting businesses and individuals in
parts of the market that continue to be poorly served by mainstream banks.

Our divisions
Property Finance
Property Finance is comprised of our Commercial Property and Residential Mortgages teams. Serving

professional landlords and property traders in residential and commercial asset classes, and personal
customers through second charge and specialist first charge mortgages.

£3.7 billion

Customer loans
Business Finance

The Business Finance division offers an extensive suite of services to address the needs of the UK SME
market. Shawbrook International extends the Bank’s lending proposition into the Channel Islands.

£1.4 billion

Customer loans
Consumer Lending and Savings

The Consumer division provides unsecured loans to personal customers for a variety of purposes including
home improvement, holiday ownership and point of sale finance and personal loans.

£0.7 billion

Customer loans

Our savings sub-division provides a wide range of cash savings solutions, targeting UK customers. .

£5.0 billion

Customer deposits
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Strategic report (continued)
Our differentiated approach

The Shawbrook way, a customer led approach...
e  Specialists

Thoughtful decision making through judgement
Driven by customer needs

Innovative and tailored products

Focus on quality

Our five strategic pillars
e Achieve strong risk adjusted returns

e  Enhance customer focus

e Maintain excellent credit quality

e Progressively increase originations
¢ Maintain conservative foundations
Our values

e We are expert: We are quietly confident and enabling.
e We are driven: We are ambitious and passionate.

e We are practical: We are down to earth and pragmatic.
[ ]

We act with integrity: We are thoughtful and responsible.

Our people and community

731

Employees (period average)

49
Charities supported

58% M 42% F
Gender split

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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Business review

The statutory results have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). Where appropriate, certain aspects of the results are presented to reflect the Board’s view of the
Group’s underlying performance without dlstortlons caused by non-recurring items that are not reflective of the
Group’s ongoing business activities.

Underlying resuits should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for, the Group’s statutory resuilts,

and the Group'’s presentation of underlying results should not be construed as an indication that future results

will be unaffected by exceptional items. Underlying results have limitations as analytical tools and they should

not be considered in isolation or as substitutes for analysis of the Group’s results as reported on a statutory

basis. Limitations may include, but are not limited to, the following:

e they may not reflect every cash expenditure, future requirements for capital expenditure or contractual
commitments; and

e they may not reflect the impact of earnings or charges resulting from matters the Directors consider not
to be indicative of ongoing operations.

Due to these limitations, underlying results are not intended as an alternative to the Group’s statutory results
or as an indicator of the Group's operating performance. The Group compensates for these limitations by using
underlying results, along with other comparative tools, together with statutory results, to assist in the evaluation
of operating performance.

In the year ended 31 December 2018, there are no underlying adjustments.

In the year ended 31 December 2017, the following items were excluded from the underlying results:

e Costs of £0.2 million relating to expenses incurred during the year in relation to the offer from Marlin Bidco
for the entire share capital of Shawbrook Group plc.

e IFRS 2 charges amounting to £5.9 million recognised in 2017 in respect of share-based awards made to
employees that vested on Marlin Bidco gaining control of Shawbrook Group plc.

e Corporate activity costs of £0.4 million in 2017 related to the cost of the incremental deposits raised to
prefund the acquisition of a ¢.£190 million portfolio of property loans at the end of Q3 2017, which
completed at the end of November 2017.

International Organisation of Securities Commissions regulation does not permit adjustment for items that are
reasonably likely to occur in the foreseeable future, or activities that affected the entity's recent past, when
considering underlying results as in their experience there are rarely circumstances where an explanation is
sufficiently robust to result in restructuring costs or impairment losses being described as non-recurring. In
addition, European Securities and Markets Authority regulation states that items which affected past periods
and will affect future periods; such as restructuring costs or impairment losses, will rarely be considered as
non-recurring, infrequent or unusual.
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Business review (continued)

Profit and loss

To ensure equal prominence of the Group’s statutory and underlying results, the following table provides a

reconciliation of the statutory results to the underlying results:

2018 2017
. , £m_ £m.
Statutory results
Interest income, net income from operating leases, net fee and
commission income, and net gains on financial instruments 360.1 314.0
Interest expense and similar charges (87.2) (75.9)
Net operating income 2729 238.1
Administrative expenses (128.8) (113.2)
Impairment losses on financial assets* 2 (23.2) (23.3)
Provisions for liabilities and charges (10.1) (2.1)
Total operating expenses (162.1) (138.6)
Share of results of associates (0.5) -
Statutory profit before taxation 110.3 99.5
Taxation (28.3) (25.3)
Statutory profit after taxation, attributable to owners 82.0 74.2
Reconciliation of statutory to underlying results
Statutory profit before taxation 110.3 99.5
Underlying adjustments
Project Marlin costs - 0.2
IFRS 2 charges - 59
Corporate activity costs - 04
Total underlying adjustments - 6.5
Profit before taxation on an underlying basis 110.3 106.0
Taxation on an underlying basis3 (28.3) (26.8)
Profit after taxation on an underlying basis, attributable to owners 82.0 79.2

1 Impairment losses on financial assets in the year ended 31 December 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with
IFRS 9. Impairment losses on financial assets in the year ended 31 December 2017 reflect impairment losses calculated in accordance
with IAS 39. As such, results are not directly comparable.

2 2018 includes a recovery of £13.0 million received by the Group in relation to the insurance claim in respect of the controls breach
identified in the Business Finance division in 2016.

3 The income tax charge on underlying adjustments has been calculated at the implied corporation tax rate. Income tax charge on certain
underlying adjustments has been assumed as £nil on the basis of being disallowable for tax purposes.
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Business review (continued)

Performance

The Group's underlying profit before taxation has improved from £106.0 million in 2017 to £110.3 million in
2018 due to the growth in the Group's asset base. This improvement is against the background of a competitive -
market where margins have seen some compression in some of the Group’s divisions.

Key performance indicators

The below table sets out the Group’s key performance indicators (KPls). The Group’s KPIs are defined on

page 151.
, 2018 2017 |

Assets
Average principal employed (Em) 5,351.8 4,424 .9
Loans and advances to customers (£m) 5,880.0 4,880.4
Profitability (on an underlying basis)
Gross asset yield (%) 6.7 71
Liability yield (%) (1.6) 1.7)
Net interest margin (%) 5.1 5.4
Management expenses ratio (%) (2.6) (2.5)
Cost of risk (%) (0.43) / (0.68)" (0.53)
Return on lending assets before tax (%) 21 24
Return on lending assets after tax (%) 1.5 1.8
Return on tangible equity (%) 16.3 19.9
Cost to income ratio (%) 50.9 45.7
Asset quality
Ratio of Stage 3 loans (%) 2.0 N/a
Ratio of past due over 90 days and impaired loans (%) N/a 1.2
Liquidity
Liquidity coverage ratio (%) 2449 290.6
Capital and leverage
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 12.2 12.8
Total Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 15.2 16.5
Total capital ratio (%) 17.0 191
Leverage ratio (%) 9.1 9.4
Risk-weighted assets (Em) 4,206.8 3,361.7

Underlying profit before taxation in 2018 increased to £110.3 million (2017: £106.0 million) and statutory profit
before taxation increased to £110.3 million (2017: £99.5 million). This increased profitability has been driven
by an increase in the loan book (including operating leases) to £5,880.0 million (2017: £4,880.4 million).

Net interest margin remained relatively stable at 5.1% (2017: 5.4%). Underlying return on tangible equity of
16.3% was achieved in 2018 (2017: 19.9%).

1 During 2018, the Group received £13.0 million relating to the Group’s insurance claim in respect of the controls breach identified in the
Business Finance division in 2016. Cost of risk including this £13.0 million is 0.43%. Cost of risk adjusted to exclude this £13.0 million is
0.68%.
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Business review (continued)

Capital decreased marginally resulting in a Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 12.2% (2017: 12.8%). Total
capital ratio also decreased from 19.1% in 2017 to 17.0% in 2018. Leverage ratio declined from 9.4% in 2017
t0 9.1% in 2018.

Cost to income ratio increased from 45.7% in 2017 to 50.9% in 2018 as a result of the Group’s continued
strategic investment activity.

Divisional performance

The Group has four reportable operating segments. These are the Group’s three lending divisions plus a
central segment representing the savings business, central functions and shared central costs. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive
Officer, who is considered to be the Chief Decision Making Officer.

‘Property Business Consumer
Finance Finance Lending Central Total
Year ended 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m
Interest income, net income from operating
leases, net fee and commission income, and 192.2 98.1 65.3 4.5 360.1
net gains on financial instruments
Interest expense and similar charges (50.5) (15.8) (10.0) (10.9) (87.2)
Net operating income / (expense) 141.7 82.3 55.3 (6.4) 272.9
Administrative expenses and provisions for (16.8) (23.6) (29.3) (69.2) (138.9)
liabilities and charges ) ) ) ) )
Impairment losses on financial assets’ (5.6) 10.9 (28.5) - (23.2)
Total operating expenses (22.4) (12.7) (57.8) (69.2) (162.1)
Share of results of associates (0.5) - - - (0.5)
Profit / (loss) before taxation 118.8 69.6 (2.5) (75.6) 110.3
) " Property = Business Consumer !
: : Finance Finance Lending Central Total
'Year ended 31 December-2017 £m £m £m £m £m
Interest income, net income from operating
leases, net fee and commission income, and 175.6 88.7 445 5.2 314.0
net gains on financial instruments
Interest expense and similar charges (41.1) (13.2) (8.2) (13.4) (75.9)
Net operating income / (expense) 134.5 75.5 36.3 (8.2) - 238.1
Administrative expenses and provisions for
liabilities and charges (17.1) (16.7) (15.5) (66.0) (115.3)
Impairment losses on financial assets’ (2.4) (8.5) (12.4) - (23.3)
Total operating expenses (19.5) (25.2) (27.9) (66.0) (138.6)
Profit / (loss) before taxation 115.0 50.3 8.4 (74.2) 99.5
The strategi ort was approved by the Board of Directors on 18 April 2019 and was signed on its behalf by:

an Cawi
Chief Exe tiVM

1 Impairment losses on financial assets in the year ended 31 December 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with
IFRS 9. Impairment losses on financial assets in the year ended 31 December 2017 reflect impairment losses calculated in accordance
with IAS 39. As such, results are not directly comparable.
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Directors’ report
The Directors present their Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal activities

The Company and its subsidiaries comprise the ‘Group’. The Company is a banking institution which is
authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the
Prudential Regulation Authority.

Results for the year
The Group made profit before taxation for the year of £110 3 million (2017: £99.5 million) and profit after
taxation of £82.0 million (2017: £74.2 million).

The Company made profit before taxation for the year of £110.8 million (2017: £100.2 million) and profit after
taxation of £82.6 million (2017: £74.9 million).

Dividends
The Directors are not recommending a final dividend (2017: nil) in respect of the year ended 31 December
2018.

Directors
The Directors who served during the year were:

* Robin Ashton

¢ John Callender (appointed on 8 March 2018)

¢ lain Cornish (resigned on 8 March 2018)

e lan Cowie (appointed on 27 July 2018)

e  Andrew Didham

e  Cédric Dubourdieu

e David Gagie (resigned on 31 January 2019)
e Sally-Ann Hibberd (resigned on 31 January 2019)
e Stephen Johnson (resigned 23 January 2019)

e Paul Lawrence

o Roger Lovering

e Lindsey McMurray

e Dylan Minto

[ ]

Steve Pateman  (resigned on 27 July 2018)

The Company Secretary during the year was Daniel Rushbrook.

Directors’ interest in the shares of the Company

The Directors of the Group have no interest in the share capital of the Company. The Company is a wholly

owned subsidiary of Shawbrook Group plc.

Directors’ and Officers’ insurance
The Group has maintained appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance throughout 2018.

Share capital
Shawbrook Bank Limited is a company limited by shares.

Details of the Group’s issued share capital is shown in Note 28 of the financial statements.

Rights of the Shareholders of the Company

Holders of the shares of the Company are entitled to dividends as decided from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. There are no restrictions on the rights implicit to
these shares.

Post balance sheet events
Details of any post balance sheet events can be found in Note 40 of the financial statements.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Branches, future developments and financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group operates in the United Kingdom and has a branch in Jersey. Information about future
developments, internal control and financial risk management systems in relation to financial reporting and
financial risk management objectives and policies in relation to the use of financial instruments can be found
in the following sections of the Annual Report which are incorporated into this report by reference:

For further information on future developments of the Group please refer to the strategic report.

For further information on internal control and financial risk management systems in relation to financial
reporting of the Group please refer to the risk management report.

For further information on financial risk management objectives and policies in relation to the use of financial
instruments of the Group please refer to the risk management report.

Information presented in other sections of this document

The Directors elected to present the following information in other sections of this document. The likely future
developments are discussed in the Group's Viability statement in Section 15 of the risk management report.
Information on financial instruments are described in Note 31 of the financial statements. Financial risk
management objectives and policies are described in the risk management report.

Research and development activities
During the ordinary course of business the Group develops new products and services within the business

units.

Employees

The Group is committed to being an equal opportunities employer and opposes all forms of discrimination.
Applications from people with disabilities will be considered fairly and if existing employees become disabled,
every effort is made to retain them within the workforce wherever reasonable and practicable. The Group also
endeavours to provide equal opportunities in the training, promotion and general career development of
disabled employees.

The Group regularly provides employees with information of concern to them, which incorporates the Group’s
current performance and its future aims and strategies. During the year, employees were kept up to date with
developments in strategy and changes to management through a number of channels. Specifically, the Chief
Executive Officer has held all staff calls and introduced a platform to promote feedback to the Executive
Management team. The Group conducts an Annual Employee Survey and uses the results of this survey to
improve performance in areas that are important to staff. A monthly newsletter providing business updates and
background information on the Group is circulated to all staff.

Employee share schemes
Full details of the Group’s employee share schemes are set out in Note 10 of the financial statements. In 2018,

no share-based payment schemes have been in operation.

Slavery and human trafficking

In 2018, the Group took appropriate steps to ensure slavery and human trafficking were absent from both the

business and supply chain through the introduction of a database for the monitoring of Modern Slavery Act

compliance. To further demonstrate the Group’s commitment to the statement the following steps were taken
to ensure it was engrained across the Group:

o Identified and addressed risks: The Group updated its policies and processes for reviewing and
evaluating current and prospective suppliers to understand their self-assessment of slavery and human
trafficking issues;

e Developed policies: The Group has continuously improved its policies throughout the year. During the
year a Group-wide procurement and supplier performance management policy was introduced which
enhances the onboarding process and reinforces the importance of due diligence and supplier governance

~inrelation to slavery and human trafficking issues; and

e Training: Alongside the Group’s employee-based training, the Group also extended training on modern
slavery to suppliers and business owners in line with the new procurement and supplier performance
management policy.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Political and charitable donations . ‘
The Group made charitable donations of £64k during the year (2017: £42k). The Group did not make any

political donations during the year (2017: £nil).

Going concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Directors are satisfied that the Group
has the resources to continue in business for the 12 months from the reporting date. In making this
assessment, the Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including the current state of the balance sheet, future projections of profitability, cash flows and
capital resources and the longer-term strategy of the business. The Group's capital and liquidity plans,
including stress tests, have been reviewed by the Directors.

The Group's forecasts and projections show that it will be able to operate at adequate levels of both liquidity
and capital for the 12 months from the reporting date, including a range of stressed scenarios, the availability
of alternative sources of capital if required and appropriate management actions.

After making due enquiries, the Directors believe that the Group has sufficient resources to continue its
activities for the 12 months from the reporting date and to continue its expansion, and the Group has sufficient
capital to enable it to continue to meet its regulatory capital requirements as set out by the Prudential
Regulation Authority.

Disclosure of information to the auditor
The Directors confirm that:
1. so far as each of the Directors is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditor is

unaware; and
2. the Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that

information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006.

Auditor
Resolutions to reappoint KPMG LLP as the Group’s auditor and to give the Directors the authority to determine
the auditor’'s remuneration will be proposed at the Parent Company’s Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

f
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Risk management report

1. The Group’s approach to risk management

The Group seeks to manage the risks inherent in its business activities and operations through close and
disciplined risk management which quantifies the risks taken, manages and mitigates them as far as possible
and prices appropriately for the residual level of risk carried in order to produce an appropriate commercial
return through the cycle.

The Group’s approach to risk management continues to evolve and has benefited from further investment
during 2018 in areas such as conduct, compliance, financial crime, technology and the embedding of credit
grading within the overall implementation of IFRS 9. There has been further investment in the Group’s key
operating divisions including additional capacity, quality control and quality assurance and portfolio
management to support the Group's lending objectives. The Group’s Risk Management Framework was
further enhanced in 2018, reflecting an increased focus on capacity and capability in the first line of defence
in support of lending growth, technology risk to support the Group’s digital strategy and the maturity of the
Group's quality assurance and financial crime capabilities. The Group also appointed a Data Protection Officer
in 2018 and implemented a new Privacy Working Group as a sub-group of the Enterprise Risk Management
Committee to oversee the privacy framework.

This enterbrise wide Risk Management Framework is underpinned by the following key elements:

Risk strategy

The risk strategy sets out the risk management objectives which support the achievement of the Group’s
commercial goals and the operation of business activities which seek to deliver those aims. The risk strategy
sets out which risks are to be acquired or incurred and how they will be managed by the organisation.

The strategic risk management objectives are to:

identify material risks arising in the day-to-day activities and operations of the Group;
quantify the risks attached to the execution of the Group’s business plans;

set an appropriate risk appetite with calibrated measures and tolerance levels;

optimise the risk/reward characteristics of business written;

set minimum standards in relation to the acquisition, incurrence and management of risk;
secure and organise the required level and capability of risk infrastructure and resources;
undertake remedial action where any weaknesses are identified; and

scan the external horizon for emerging risks.

Risk appetite

The level of risk that the Group is willing to tolerate in operating the various elements of its business are defined
in a risk appetite statement, which is agreed by the Board and reviewed on a regular basis. This articulates
qualitative and quantitative measures of risk which are cascaded across various areas of the Group’s
operations, calibrated by reference to the Group’s absolute capacity for risk absorption, limit of appetite and
target thresholds. During 2018, the Group completed a full review of the Group risk appetite framework
incorporating greater alignment to the Group Risk Management Framework, enhancements in risk
measurement and reflecting changes in the ownership of the Group. The review included a full annual review
of the divisional and functional risk appetite statements.

Risk Management Framework

All of the Group’s business and support service activities, including those outsourced to third party providers
or originated via brokers and other business intermediaries, are executed within the parameters of a single
comprehensive Risk Management Framework (RMF). This sets out minimum requirements and ensures
consistent standards and processes are set across the organisation. Risks are identified, measured,
managed, monitored, reported and controlled using the RMF. The design and effectiveness of the framework
is overseen and reviewed by the Risk Committee. The key elements of the framework are set out later in this
report.
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1. The Group’s approach to risk management (continued)

Governance

All the Group’s risk activities are subject to detailed and comprehensive governance arrangements which set
out how risk-based authority is delegated from the Board to Executive Management and the various risk
management committees and individuals. These bodies and senior officers are accountable and responsible
for ensuring that the day-to-day risks are appropriately managed within the agreed risk appetite and in
accordance with the requirements of the RMF. Escalation and reporting requirements are set out in risk
policies and by the risk appetite thresholds.

Culture

The Group is led by an experienced Executive Management team with a combination of significant underwriting
expertise and institutional and regulatory banking experience at various major financial institutions and
specialist lenders. This heritage provides the platform for a set of values and behaviour where the customer
is at the heart of the decision-making process and business areas are held fully accountable for risk
performance. At the individual level, this process begins with the induction programme and job descriptions,
is carried into the setting of individual objectives and performance reviews and ultimately reflected in the
compensation and reward structure.

Risk appetite statement

The risk appetite statement is a detailed and granular expression of the level of risk the Group is willing to
accept in relation to the pursuit of its business strategy. The risk appetite statement is not static and will evolve
to both reflect and support the Group’s business objectives, the operating environment and risk outlook.

Whilst the risk appetite statement provides an aggregated measure of performance against risk appetite, it is
not just a reporting tool. Just as importantly, it also provides a framework which is used dynamically to inform
strategic and operational management decisions, as well as supporting the business planning process.

The risk appetite statement is reviewed periodically by the Risk Committee and agreed with the Board on an
annual basis as a minimum. A dashboard with the status of each metric is monitored monthly. Executive
Management and the Board exercise their judgement as to the appropriate action required in relation to any
threshold trigger breach, dependent on the scenario at the time.

The risk appetite statement identifies six groups of risk appetite objectives which are further subdivided into
26 appetite dimensions as set out diagrammatically overleaf. A suite of qualitative statements and quantitative
measures have been set for each dimension, with risk limits calibrated by reference to absolute capacity,
maximum risk tolerance and a threshold trigger level.
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1. The Group’s approach to risk management (continued)

Risk appetite statement objectives and dimensions

Creditworthiness
and concentration
risk

Operational

Risk appetite Strategic Liquidity and
risk

objectives risk market risk Conduct Reputation

Technology
(including
systems)

Product Regulatory

Profit Funding and Creditworthiness
design perception

volatility liquidity risk

Interest rate
risk in the
banking book

Lending Information Postsales Media
growth risk service promoter

Concentration Physical assets Sales and Change
risk and security distribution risk perception

Financial
strength

Operlctwns Culture Social
risk advocacy

Change
risk

Third
parties

Risk appetite
dimensions

People

Financial
crime

New product '
approval

Financial
reporting

Model risk

Risk Management Framework
Responsibility for risk management sits at all levels across the Group from the Board and Executive Committee
down through the Group's divisions, central functions, and in turn to each divisional head and their business

managers and risk officers.

In 2018, the Group continued to invest in its risk management capability to position the Group to deliver its
strategic and commercial objectives. This included improving the capacity and capability across the Group and
specifically included the Executive Committee appointment of a Chief Technology Officer and the appointment
of a new Chief Compliance Officer. ‘

The Group's RMF describes the various activities, techniques and tools which are mandated to support the
identification, measurement, control, management, monitoring, reporting and challenge of risk across the
Group. It is designed to provide an integrated, comprehensive, consistent and scalable structure which is
capable of being communicated to and clearly understood by all our employees and is described in the sections

below.

The RMF also incorporates the organisational arrangements for managing risk with specific responsibilities
distributed to certain functions. This ensures that there is clear accountability, responsibility and engagement
at appropriate levels within the organisation which can provide robust review and challenge as well as be
challenged. Operationally, the RMF is organised around the key risk categories (see Section 4).
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2. Risk governance and oversight

Risk governance describes the architecture through which the Board allocates and delegates primary
accountability, responsibility and authority for risk management across the organisation.

Responsibility for risk oversight is delegated from the Board to the Risk Committee and Audit Committee. The
ultimate responsibility for risk remains with the Board.

Accountability, responsibility and authority for risk management is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Risk Officer, who in turn allocate responsibility for oversight and certain approvals across a number of
management committees.

Authority and responsibility for material operational risk management, decision-making and risk assurance is
vested in the Chief Risk Officer and the Risk function. Lesser levels of authority are cascaded to the Senior

Management within the support functions and business divisions.

Oversight of the key risk categories

Board
. . Audit
Risk Committee Committee
Risk category First line Second line Third line
Creditworthiness Credit management in Credit risk Enterprise Risk
risk business areas Management Committee
Liquidity and Market and Asset and Liability
market risk Treasury liquidity risk | Committee
All business divisions, . . .
Operational risk functions and Chief Sspkeratlonal Edr::;pzsrr?eﬁ;séommittee
Operating Office 9 Internal
Conduct, legal and : s . Enterprise Risk audit
compliance risk All'business divisions Compliance Management Committee
o Executive Directors and . . .
Strategic risk Senior Management Finance Executive Committee
Infrastructure and . . .
Systems.and technology / Innovation Qperatlonal Enterprise Risk .
change risk ; risk Management Committee
and delivery

These bodies and senior officers are accountable and responsible for ensuring that the risks are appropriately
managed within the agreed risk appetite and in accordance with the requirements of the RMF.

Individuals are encouraged to adopt an open and independent culture of challenge which is important in
ensuring risk issues are fully surfaced and debated with views and decisions recorded. Risk governance and
culture is reinforced by the provisions of the Senior Managers and Certification Regime.

Formal risk escalation and reporting requirements are set out in risk policies, individual committee terms of
reference and the approved risk appetite thresholds and limits.

Committee structure and risk responsibilities
The monitoring and controlling of risk is a fundamental part of the management process within the Group. The
Board oversees the management of the key risk categories across the organisation.

During 2018, the Group made a number of changes to enhance its risk governance. The Chief Risk Officer
re-instated the Regulatory Change Working Group to oversee the early identification and implementation of
changes in the regulatory landscape. The remit of the Policy Review Group was also widened to provide
consistency in policy development, approval and the annual review cycle across the Group.

-
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2. Risk governance and oversight (continued)

Three lines of defence model :
The Group’s RMF is underpinned by the ‘three lines of defence’ mode! which is summarised in the diagram
below:

Risk strategy

]
{
F Risk appetite 1

Group risk
Business divisions

Led by the Chief Risk Officer Internal audit

Performed by

Deloitte LLP
Creditworthiness
Market .
Central functions ond and Operational >
concep&ratlon liquidity risk risk L] -
risk 3 [
513
thef Chlef Human Conduct, L Systems and g g-,
Finance |Operating Resources fegal and ) Strategic risk change risk = b4
Officer | Officer compliance risk ¢ o
w
Istline of defence 2nd line of defence 3rd line of defence
8 Owner of the risk management m Design, interpret and develop overall u Independent testing
process and regulatory compliance risk management framework, and ond verification of the
. monitor business-as-usual adherence Bank’s business model,
[] Iden?ufles, measures, mcn.cges, ] . _ policies, processes
monitors and reports on risks m Overview and monitors top risks and business line
» Compliance; develop compliance compliance
policies, lead requirements for ® Provides independent
regulatory change and monitor assurance to the Board
horizon risks and regulatory issues and regulator that

the risk management
process is functioning
as designed

The Group implemented a change to its key risk categories in 2018 to reflect the Group’s focus on assessing
a customer's ability and willingness to pay as an integral part of its credit assessment.

First line of defence

Responsibility for risk management resides in the front-line business divisions and central functions, and line
management is directly accountable for identifying and managing the risks that arise in their business or
functional area. They are required to establish effective controls in line with Group risk policy and act within
the risk appetite parameters set and approved by the Board. The first line of defence comprises each of the
three lending divisions. The first line of defence also includes the Finance function led by the Chief Finance
Officer, Operations led by the Chief Operating Officer, Human Resources led by the Group Human Resources
Director and Legal led by General Counsel and Company Secretary. Whilst Human Resources and Legal are
not customer facing themselves, they provide support and back-up to the customer facing divisions and have
insight into many operational factors that could ultimately impact on Group’s exposure to market, liquidity,
credit, regulatory, legal, conduct, compliance and operational risk.

Each division and functional area operates to set risk policies to ensure that activities remain within the Board's
stated risk appetite for that area of the Group. The risk policies are approved by the appropriate committee in
accordance with their terms of reference and reviewed annually with any material changes requiring approval
at committee level.

The first line of defence has its own operational process and procedures manuals to demonstrate and
document how it conforms to the approved policies and controls. Likewise, it develops quality control
programmes to monitor and measure adherence to and effectiveness of procedures. All employees within a
customer facing unit are considered first line of defence. Each employee is aware of the risks to the Group of
their particular activity and the divisional and function heads are responsible for ensuring there is a ‘risk aware’
culture within the first line of defence. For certain key policies, divisional staff complete regular on-line training
programmes to ensure knowledge is refreshed and current.
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2. Risk governance and oversight (continued)

Second line of defence

The second line of defence comprises the Group’s central and independent risk management and compliance
function led by the Chief Risk Officer, who reports to the Chairman of the Risk Committee and to the Chief
Executive Officer. The Chief Risk Officer is also provided with unfettered access to the Chairman of the Board.
The second line of defence also includes the General Counsel and Company Secretary who report to the Chief
Executive Officer. ,

The high-level risk structure is shown below:

] ]
| . ]
: cI?oard ’Rlsk . Chief
ommittee | E tive
! Chair | xecu
1 [}
| S T -— = = d
L e m e e e e e e e e e e e e a =
| |
General
Chief Risk Counsel and
Officer ) Company
Secretary
Enterprise Condugt and Risk ch Market and . Non-‘ Legal
. Compliance Portfolio LT Credit Risk Performing
Risk . . Liquidity Risk Department
Risk Analytics Loans

Operational

Risk

The second line of defence is necessarily and deliberately not customer facing and has no responsibility for
any business targets or performance. It is primarily responsible for:

the design and build of the various components of the Group’s RMF and embedding these, together with
the risk strategy and risk appetite across the organisation;

independent monitoring of the Group’s activities against the Board's risk appetite and limits, and provision
of monthly analysis and reporting on the risk portfolio to the Executive Committee and the Board;

issuing and maintaining the suite of Group risk policies;

undertaking physical reviews of risk management, controls and capability in the first line units and
providing risk assurance reports to the Executive Committee and the Board on all aspects of risk
performance and compliance with the RMF;

providing advice and support to the first line of defence in relation to risk management activities;

credit approvals between divisional authority and the threshold for Credit Approval Committee; and
undertaking stress testing exercises and working with Finance and Treasury on the production of the
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment
Process (ILAAP) and the Recovery Plan and Resolution Pack (collectively the RRP).
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2. Risk governance and oversight (continued)

Third line of defence

The third line of defence, Internal Audit (currently outsourced to Deloitte LLP), provides independent assurance
on the activities of the Group, effectiveness of the Group’'s RMF and internal controls directly to the Board and
Audit Committee. Internal Audit reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as the Chief
Executive Officer and is independent of the first and second lines of defence.

The third line of defence has access to the activities and records of both the first and second lines of defence.
It can inspect and review adherence to policy and controls in the first line, the monitoring of activity in the
second line and the setting of policy and controls in the second line. The third line of defence does not
independently establish policy or controls itself, outside of those necessary to implement its recommendations
with respect to the other two lines of defence. The third line may in some cases use as a starting point the
reports and reviews compiled by the second line but is not restricted to them or necessarily influenced by their
findings.

The third line of defence’'s scope of work is agreed with the Audit Committee to provide an independent
assessment of the governance, risk management and internal control frameworks operated by the Group and
to note the extent to which the Group is operating within its risk appetite. It does this by reviewing aspects of
the control environment, key processes and specific risks and includes review of the operation of the second
line of defence.

The Group’s engagement of Deloitte LLP to carry out the functions of the third line of defence provides the
Group with access to specialist capabilities beyond its current scale and provides insight into best practice.

Risk policies and controls

The RMF is enacted through a comprehensive suite of control documents and risk policies, setting out the
minimum requirements and standards in relation to the acquisition and management of risk assets as well as
the control of risks embedded in the Group’s operations, activities and markets.

The Group's high-level control documents and risk policies are owned and managed by the Group Risk
function, headed by the Chief Risk Officer and approved by the Board or, where delegated, the appropriate
Risk Committee. The suite of policies is grouped according to importance and key risk categories.

Group-level risk policies are supplemented as required by divisional risk processes and procedures, where
more specific and tailored criteria are detailed. Divisional processes and procedures are required to be
compliant with Group policy and dispensations or waivers are required where gaps are identified. These
process and procedure manuals provide staff at all levels with day-to-day direction and guidance in the
execution of their duties. \

The effectiveness of and compliance with the risk policy framework is evaluated on a continuous basis through
the monthly reporting requirements (including risk policy exceptions reporting). Additionally, a quarterly control
self-certification process supplemented by a program of audits, thematic risk assurance reviews and quality
control testing is undertaken by each of the three lines of defence.

Asset class policies

The Group's lending policies are contained in 15 asset class policies and a further 15 lending policies. These
have been arranged to operate on a Group wide basis rather than based upon divisional products. This is
considered to provide a more stable, consistent risk standard and control across the Group’s portfolio of loan
assets. Asset classes can also be aligned more readily with risk-weightings, probability of default (PD), loss
given default (LGD) and expected credit loss (ECL) metrics which facilitates risk reporting, risk adjusted
profitability analysis and modelling for stress testing and capital adequacy purposes.

Asset class policies are structured on the basis of policy rules which must be adhered to and guidelines where
an element of controlled discretion is permitted. All planned exceptions to policy rules require approval at the
Group risk level and both planned and unplanned exceptions to policy rules are reported monthly to the
relevant risk management committee.
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3. Top and emerging risks

The Group’s top and emerging risks are identified through the process outlined in the ‘Risk Management
Framework’ (Section 1) and are considered regularly by Management through the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee and subsequently by the Risk Committee. ‘

Top risks

The Group sees seven themes as its top risks:

e geopolitical risk;

economic and competitive environment;

pace of regulatory change;

intermediary, outsourcing and operational resiliency;
pace, scale of change and people risk;

credit impairment; and

information risk.

These themes, together with the Group’s strategy to mitigate the risk and the direction of each theme are
considered further in the following sections:

Top risk / Mitigation .Change
Geopolitical risk Risk increased

The Group’s financial position | The Group monitors the | The UK economic outlook is
continues to improve with continued | environment and its chosen | expected to remain favourable in
profitability and strong capital ratios. | markets on a regular basis and | the short term but with increasing
However, increasing geopolitical { continues to prioritise return on | risks to the downside driven by

risk presents a risk to the business, | tangible equity over volume. weak productivity that may
its financials and earnings volatility increase the potential for volatility
following an unprecedented political | The Group operates in specialist | for the Group and its customers.
event. _ areas where Management and

staff have significant expertise | Developments regarding the
The UK has experienced a number | and a deep understanding of | UK’'s withdrawal from the EU,
of political events during 2018. | customer needs to drive a long- | and in particular the reaction of
Although the European Union (EU) | term  relationship with its | households, businesses and
has agreed a withdrawal agreement | customers through the cycle. asset prices to them, remain a
with the UK there is no significant influence on, and
parliamentary majority of any option. | The  Group undertakes a | source of uncertainty about, the
The UK Prime Minister has | comprehensive assessment of | economic outlook.

successfully defended a no | its risk appetite and stress tests
confidence vote amongst the | its lending and deposit portfolios
Conservative members, but nothing | to ensure that it can meet its
has materially changed. Global | objectives in severe but plausible
populist trends, terrorist attacks and | economic conditions.

a continued weakening of sterling
remain key features of the wider | The Group reviews its key
economy. These risks have the | outsource partners to establish
potential to have an impact on the | early warning indicators and to
Group and the impact could be wide | formalise exit plans.

reaching affecting other risks such
as economic, regulatory, business
change, outsourcing, people; credit
risk impairment and conduct risk.
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3. Top and emerging risks (continued)

Top risk

‘Mitigation

| Change

Economic and competitive
environment

A reversal in UK economic
conditions, particularly in England
where the majority of the Group’s
operations are based, could affect
the Group's performance in a
number of ways. These are set out
below:

¢ |lower demand for the Group’s
products and services;

e changes in funding costs
resulting from ongoing poalitical
uncertainty accompanied by a
loss of confidence in the market;

e rising competition compressing
Group margins below
sustainable levels; and

e higher impairments through

. increased  defaults  and/or

reductions in collateral values.

The Group uses its expertise and
deep understanding of its
customers’ needs to drive long-
term relationships with its
customers through the cycle.

The Group monitors its chosen
markets on a regular basis,
reviews adjacent markets where
it has expertise and considers
opportunities  for  inorganic
growth that are consistent with its
strategy. The Group operates in
specialist areas where
Management and staff have
expertise and a deep
understanding of  customer
needs to deliver superior service.
As a result, loans to Small and
Medium Enterprises (SMEs) and
consumers are subject to
bespoke underwriting based on
their ability to repay and sufficient
security.

The Group undertakes a
comprehensive assessment of
its risk appetite to ensure that it
can meet its objectives in severe
but plausible economic
conditions. The  Group
completes comprehensive stress
testing of its lending and deposit
portfolios to test resilience to
severe but plausible economic
conditions.

The Group also establishes a
prudent balance sheet strategy
with robust levels of capital and
liquidity and a prudent funding
structure.

Risk increa.éed

The UK economy has proven to
be more resilient during 2018
than expected led by strong
employment and conditions that
continue to support affordability.
However, the strong growth in
Q3 has not continued into Q4
2018 and the Board expects
there to be a continued period of
uncertainty. As at 31 December
2018, the risk of a disorderly exit
from the EU has increased with
no majority in Parliament for any
option.
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3. Top and emerging risks (continued)

regulatory regimes are subject to
change and could lead to increases
in the level and quality of capital that
the Group needs to hold to meet
regulatory requirements.

The countercyclical buffer increased
to 1.0% at the end of November
2018 to add resiliency to the market
prior to the UK's withdrawal from the
EU. The Financial Policy
Committee and the Prudential
Regulation Committee (PRC) could
use any reduction in Common
Equity Tier 1 capital in the event of a
disorderly exit from the EU to inform
the setting of regulatory buffers.

The PRC has indicated that it will set
additional Prudential Regulation
Authority (PRA) buffers in light of the
2018 stress test results to reflect the
judgement that banks need to make
substantial improvements to raise
the management of model risk to a
standard required for stress testing
including whether judgements used
are well supported through the use
of appropriate empirical data or
benchmarking analysis.

The Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA) has undertaken a number of
thematic reviews during 2018
including the implementation of the
Mortgage Credit Directive in second
charge firms, a review of operational
resiliency with the PRA and a review
of credit worthiness and has set out
its plans for 2019.

continues to evolve and change.
The Group actively engages with
regulators, industry bodies and
advisors to actively engage in
consultation processes.

The Group undertakes forward
capital planning and sensitivity
analysis using its ICAAP to
ensure that the Group has
sufficient time to respond to any
changes in capital requirements.

Top risk _ ‘Mitigation Change .
Pace of regulatory change Risk increased
The prudential and conduct | The regulatory environment | UK financial services businesses

remain subject to significant
scrutiny and the current level of
risk is elevated when compared
to last year.

The Group  adopts  the
standardised approach to credit
risk. The Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision announced
changes to the risk-weightings
under the standardised approach
in December 2017 that will lead
to an increase in capital
requirements over the period of
the strategic plan.

The Group implemented IFRS 9

from 1 January 2018 and
achieved General Data
Protection Regulation

compliance by 25 May 2018.

The Group attested to its
compliance with the Mortgage
Credit Directive for its residential
second charge lending business
on 1 May 2018, in line with the
requirement of the Dear CEO
letter to all second charge
lenders from the FCA.

The Group attested to the Risk
Committee to its compliance with
Policy Statement PS18/19 on
assessing credit worthiness on 1
November 2018.

Shawbrook Bank Limited

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

27




3. Top and emerging risks (continued)

Top risk

‘Mitigation

Change

Intermediary, outsourcing and
operational resiliency

The Group is a specialist lending
and savings bank for SMEs and
consumers. The specialist nature of
some of its lending through
intermediaries and brokers could
mean that some customers find
themselves with an increased risk of
an unfavourable outcome. For the
Group this could also lead to
increased conduct related redress,
additional fraud or credit risk
impairments.

The Group uses a number of third
parties to support the delivery of its
objectives. The availability and
resiliency of its core customer facing
systems play a key role in
supporting the Group’s reputation in
its chosen markets.

The Group works with carefully
selected intermediary and broker

_partners who take on the role of

advising SMEs and consumers.
The Group recognises that it is
ultimately accountable for the
lending it originates through its

partners and continually
undertakes reviews of their
performance.

The Group continually reviews its
risk management approach to
intermediaries, brokers and
outsource partners to reflect the
regulatory environment in which
the Group operates.

Risk increased

The Group has continued to
invest in its oversight of
intermediaries, brokers and
outsource partners during 2018.

The Group continued to invest in
its relationship with Target
Servicing Limited and expects to
further improve the Group’s
outsourcing risk profile. This
includes (but is not limited to)
work on arrears management,
forbearance and  resiliency
planning. The Group continues to
explore other third-party
relationships through which to
deliver its objectives and improve
operational resiliency.

Pace, scale of change and people
risk -

The scale and pace of change could
create delivery challenges and could
lead to disruption of the Group’s
plans and in the delivery of its
objectives.

The Group is a diverse specialist
lending and savings bank and has a
need to add a significant number of
colleagues over the plan to deliver
its objectives. Failure to add the
required capacity and capability may
lead to a disruption in the delivery of
its objectives.

The Group understands the need
to manage change without
disrupting the Group’s operating
environment and impacting
customer service. The Group
has implemented a new change
prioritisation process in 2018 to
prioritise change and provide
effective oversight of the change

portfolio to  ensure that
requirements are  delivered
within budget and on time.

These operational risks are

managed through a strong focus
on change governance and
programme management
disciplines and are led by a
dedicated executive member.
The risks are further mitigated by
the Group’s strengthening of the
Executive Management team.

Risk increased

The Group continues to invest in
its change management
processes to increase the pace
and scale of change without

impacting on the Group’s
operations and customer |
service. The Group has

appointed a Chief Technology
Officer in 2018 to support the
delivery of its  technical
transformation over the strategic
plan.

During 2018, the Group has
continued to embed the new
target operating model and the
implementation of the Chief
Operating Office.

The Group has a strong appetite
for change and the risk of an
impact on its operations remains.

The Group has invested in its
leadership community through
an ‘Inspire’ leadership
programme and has focused on
the actions arising from its
people engagement surveys and
regular reviews of the succession
and talent management plans.
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3. Top and emerging risks (continued)

exposed to credit impairment if

and any outstanding interest and
fees.

In addition, the Group has exposure
to a small number of counterparties
with whom it places surplus funding.

customers are unable to repay loans -

exposure by:

e undertaking a  prudent
assessment of through-the-

cycle losses in pricing,
forecasting and  stress
testing;

e maintaining consistent and
conservative loan to value
ratios and avoiding material
weakening of credit quality to
drive volumes;

¢ lending predominantly on a

secured  basis  against
identifiable and accessible
assets;

e operating strong controis
and governance with
effective oversight by a
centralised Group credit
team; and

e maintaining a prudent

Treasury counterparty policy
with surplus funding placed
with the Bank of England and
UK clearing banks.

Top risk | ‘Mitigation Change

Credit impairment No change

As at 31 December 2018, the Group | The Group recognises that it will | Underlying Group credit
had customer loans (including | experience credit impairment in | impairment has remained low,
operating leases and net of loss | connection with its lending | reflecting favourable market
allowances) of £5.9 billion and is | activities, but manages its | conditions in the UK and the

Group’s approach to lending.

The  Group's  counterparty
exposure has remained broadly
unchanged with the majority of
surplus funding placed with the
Bank of England and balances
with UK clearing banks.

The Group believes that the
potential for additional credit
impairment has increased with
uncertainty over the outlook of
the Brexit negotiations and the
outlook for the UK economy
given recent forecasts of
productivity and increasing
consumer debt.

The Group has completed its
implementation of IFRS 9 and
will make use of the transition
arrangements. The  Group
considers that its exposure to the
retail sector and construction is
manageable.

Information risk

The pace of technological
development is changing the way in
which SMEs and consumers want to
engage with the Group, leading to a
number of risks. These are set out
below:

s increasing customer demand
could exceed the Group's ability
to provide highly reliable and
widely available systems and
services,;

e the evolving nature and scale of
criminal activity could increase
the likelihood and severity of
attacks on the Group’s systems;

and
e franchise value and customer
trust could be significantly

eroded by a sustained hack of
the Group's systems leading to
a diversion of funds or the theft
of customer data.

The Group continually reviews its
control environment for
information security to reflect the
evolving nature of the threats to
which the Group is exposed.

The Group's strategy for
mitigating information security
risk is comprehensive, including:
a documented cyber strategy,
ongoing threat assessments,
regular penetration testing, the
wide deployment of detective
controls and a programme of
education and training.

No change

The Group continues to invest in
its capabilities to reduce its
exposure to a cyber-attack and
has further refined its risk
appetite and controls with
respect to information security.
However, the risk of information
security breaches, threats from
cyber-crime and the impact of
new technology on the Group’s
businesses remain.
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3. Top and emerging risks (continued)

Emerging risks
The Group has identified the following emerging risks:

‘Emerging risk

Mitigation

Brexit

Parliament voted against the Government on the
Withdrawal Agreement vote on 15 January 2019 and in
the absence of any majority for any option the likelihood
of a no-deal Brexit has increased. Given the Group does
not have operations outside of the UK, the key risk for
the Group is considered to be a general downturn in the
UK economy. In the event of a no-deal exit, the
availability of skilled workers or ability to export goods
to the EU at competitive prices may impact some of the
Group's customers.

As well as keeping abreast of the negotiations
and the potential impact to the UK economy, the
Group has considered a more severe alternative
downside scenario based on a disorderly no-deal
Brexit. The scenario is based on a significant
reduction in investment which helps to move the
UK into a recession, increasing unemployment. In
the short-term, the consumer price index remains
elevated before deflationary pressures on sterling
and gross domestic product start to reduce the
consumer price index, presenting an opportunity
for the Monetary Policy Committee to reduce
interest rates.

The Group has considered the first order impacts
on its strategy arising from a fall in investment
that may lead to a reduction in demand for its
lending products and that may impact the Group's
ability to grow in its SME markets. It has also
considered the impact of a fall in residential and
commercial property prices within its Property
division and the impact of an increase in default
in its Consumer Lending division following an
increase in unemployment. The Group has
identified a series of early warning indicators that
it has set out in each scenario so that it can react
in a timely manner. The Group has also invested
in its quality control and quality assurance
capabilites and its non-performing loan
management capabilities so that it is well
prepared in case of any scenario emerging. The
Group considers that the current alternatives fall
within its current stress testing scenarios and has
considered through its ICAAP the impact on its
key suppliers.

Minimum requirements for own funds and eligible
liabilities (MREL) funding requirements

MREL is an EU regulation that supports orderly
resolution and protects depositors and taxpayers in the
event of bank failure. The Group is currently not
considered in scope however, over time the Group may
fall in scope for more complex resolution strategies and
going concern requirements.

The Group actively monitors its position in
relation to MREL and as part of its strategic
decision making. The Group will engage with the
PRA during its strategic planning process to
understand the point that the Group may face
additional MREL requirements to ensure that the
Group has plenty of time to prepare.
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3. Top and emerging risks (continued)

Emerging risk

| mitigation

Financial crime

The risk of a downturn in the UK economy could result
in an increased risk of financial crime activity.

The Group is enhancing its expertise in the first
line of defence to ensure a continued focus on
strategy and regulatory compliance. In addition,
the Chief Operating Office continues to build out
their ability to manage financial crime risk as part
of the ongoing servicing.

Climate change

On 15 October 2018, the PRA published a consultation
paper on ‘Enhancing banks’ and insurers’ approaches
to managing the financial risks from climate change’.
Following the consultation period, the PRA will be
setting its expectations from banks on how they
approach the management of the ‘far-reaching and
foreseeable’ financial risks from climate change. For
banks, climate-related risk factors will manifest as credit
risk (e.g. increasing flood risk to mortgage portfolios,
declining agricultural output increasing default rates,
tightening energy efficiency standards impacting
property exposures, disruptive technology leading to
financial losses), market risks (commodity prices,
corporate bonds, equities and certain derivatives
contracts) and operational risks (severe weather events
impacting business continuity).

The Compliance team will monitor developments
during the consultation period and the post-
consultation rule-setting period and update the
relevant governance forums.

General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)

Whilst the GDPR was implemented on 25 May 2018 and
the Group’'s programme team worked with all the
functions to ensure a compliant position was reached,
the increased public awareness of data privacy has
resulted in a risk of increased data subject rights
requests. In addition, the Group must ensure ongoing
compliance to the GDPR as well as effective
management of privacy.

The Group appointed a Data Protection Officer in
May 2018 who supported the GDPR programme
through to conclusion, ensuring that compliant
record of processing activities had been
completed with legitimate, privacy and data
protection impact assessments also being
completed where required. The existing privacy
related policies have been updated and the
Privacy Office will now focus on implementing an
enhanced privacy program framework to ensure
the Group’s privacy management structure is
enhanced.
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4. Key risk categories

The key risk categories faced by the Group are as follows:

concentration and
single name risk)

(Section 5)

[Riski{categoryj
Creditworthiness risk | « The risk that a borrowing client or treasury counterparty fails to repay some or
(including all of the capital or interest advanced to them due to lack of willingness to pay

(credit risk) and/or lack of ability to pay (affordability). This category also
includes credit concentration risk which is the risk of exposure to particular
groups of customers or sectors or geographies that uncontrolled may lead to
additional losses that the Shareholder or the market may not expect.

Liquidity and market
risk

(Section 6and7
respectively)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current and future
financial obligations as they fall due, or is only able to do so at excessive cost.
Market risk is the risk of financial loss through un-hedged or mismatched asset
and liability positions that are sensitive to changes in interest rates or
currencies.

Operational risk

(Section 8)

The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and system failures, or from external events including strategy and reputational
risks.

Conduct, legal and
compliance risk

(Section 9)

Conduct risk is the risk that the Group’s behaviour will result in poor customer
outcomes and that our people fail to behave with integrity.

Legal and compliance risk is the risk of regulatory enforcement and sanction,
material financial loss, or loss to reputation the Group may suffer as a result of
its failure to identify and comply with applicable laws, regulations, codes of
conduct and standards of good practice.

Strategic risk

(Section 10)

The risk that the Group is unable to meet its objectives through the
inappropriate selection or implementation of strategic plans. This includes the
ability to generate lending volumes inside risk appetite.

Systems and change
risk

(Section 11)

Systems risk is the risk that new threats are introduced to our critical systems
resulting in them becoming unavailable during core operational times.
Change risk is the risk that transition changes in the business will not be
supported by appropriate change capability and be improperly implemented. It
is also the risk that too many in-flight changes cause disruption to business
operations.

A more detailed summary of each key risk is contained in the following sections.
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5. Creditworthiness risk

Creditworthiness risk is the risk of suffering financial loss should borrowers or counterparties default on their
contractual obligations to the Group due to lack of willingness to pay (credit risk) and/or lack of ability to pay
(affordability). These risks are managed by the Board Risk Committee and the Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCo). This risk has two main components:

e  Customer credit risk (from core lending activity); and

e  Treasury credit risk (from Treasury activity).

The Group’s treasury credit risk exposure is limited to short-term deposits placed with leading UK banks.

5.1. Credit risk approval process

The Group operates a hierarchy of lending authorities based principally upon the size of the aggregated credit
risk exposure to counterparties, group of connected counterparties or, where applicable, a portfolio of lending
assets that are subject to a single transaction. In addition to maximum amounts of credit exposure, sole
lending mandates may stipulate sub-limits and / or further conditions and criteria.

Each division has a maximum authority level allocated, with exposures above these levels requiring approval
from an approver in the second line of defence or the Credit Approval Committee. In each lending division, at
least one signatory to the loan must be a segregated first line of defence credit approver who has no
responsibility for, or remuneration arrangements linked to, sales targets, on-going sales origination or
relationship responsibility with the borrower.

The maximum divisional mandate for Business Finance and Commercial Property Finance is £1.25 million.
The maximum divisional mandate for Residential Property Finance is £100,000 and for Consumer Lending is
£75,000. Exposures beyond these limits up to £5 million may be approved by an approver in the second line
of defence and exposures up to the Group single name concentration limit of £25 million must be approved by
the Credit Approval Committee. The Group has a nominal appetite for wholesale exposures above £25 million
within the lending authority of the Credit Approval Committee. In addition, where transactions involve financing
portfolios of lending assets in excess of £15 million, or where an individual loan is required in excess of
appetite, Board approval is also required.

Lending is advanced subject to the Group lending approval policy and specific credit criteria. When evaluating
the credit quality and covenant of the borrower, significant emphasis is placed on the nature of the underlying
collateral. This process also includes the review of the Board's appetite for concentration risk.

The Group is a responsible lender and consumer affordability has remained a key area of focus for the Group.
The Group’s approach to affordability is set out in a Board approved responsible lending policy that is
embedded within each lending division’s lending guides.

5.2. Credit monitoring

Approval and on-going monitoring control is exercised both within the divisions and through oversight by the
Group’s Credit Risk function. This applies to both individual transactions as well as at the portfolio level by
way of monthly credit information reporting, measurement against risk appetite limits and testing via risk quality
assurance reviews.

The divisions operate through the Chief Operating Office function’s timely collections and arrears management
processes. The Group further invested in 2018 in the development of its operational arrangements and
capabilities for non-performing loan management to ensure that the Group is capable of operating in a more
challenging environment where interest rates are rising and there is lower demand and liquidity in property
markets.

5.3. Impairment under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018)
Audited: The following section is covered by the independent auditor’s report

From 1 January 2018, impairment of financial assets is calculated using a forward looking expected credit loss
(ECL) model. The Group records an allowance for ECLs ('loss allowance’) for all financial assets not held at
fair value through profit or loss, together with an allowance for ECLs for financial guarantee contracts and loan
commitments. The Group’s accounting policy is detailed in Note 1.7(v) of the financial statements.

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2018 33



5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.3. Impairment under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Measurement of ECLs depends on the ‘stage’ of the financial asset, based on changes in credit risk occurring

since initial recognition, as described below:

e Stage 1: when a financial asset is first recognised it is assigned to Stage 1. If there is no significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition the financial asset remains in Stage 1. Stage 1 also includes
financial assets where the credit risk has improved and the financial asset has been reclassified back
from Stage 2. For financial assets in Stage 1, a 12-month ECL is recognised.

e Stage 2: when a financial asset shows a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition it is
moved to Stage 2. Stage 2 also includes financial assets where the credit risk has improved and the
financial asset has been reclassified back from Stage 3. For financial assets in Stage 2, a lifetime ECL is
recognised.

+  Stage 3: when there is objective evidence of impairment and the financial asset is considered to be in
default, or otherwise credit-impaired, it is moved to Stage 3. For financial assets in Stage 3, a lifetime ECL
is recognised.

e Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI): POCI assets are financial assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition. On initial recognition they are recorded at fair value. ECLs are only
recognised or released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the ECLs. Their ECL is always
measured on a lifetime basis.

In relation to the above:

o Lifetime ECL is defined as ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected behavioural
life of a financial instrument.

e 12-month ECL is defined as the portion of lifetime ECL that will result if a default occurs in the 12 months
after the reporting date, weighted by the probability of that default occurring.

For loan commitments, where the loan commitment relates to the undrawn component of a facility, it is
assigned to the same stage as the drawn component of the facility. For pipeline loans, the loan commitment
is assigned to Stage 1.

For financial guarantee contracts, the Group assigns a stage using the definitions described above.

Under the requirements of IFRS 9, the Group calculates a loss allowance for cash and balances at central
banks, loans and advances to banks, loans and advances to customers and investment securities. A further
loss allowance is calculated for financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.

As at 31 December 2018, the loss allowances for cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to

banks, and investment securities are immaterial, totalling less than £0.1 million. The loss allowance for loans
and advances to customers is £67.8 million. :
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.3. Impairment under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018) (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of loans and advances to customers by reportable segment and the
year-end stage classification:

Property Business  Consumer
Finance Finance Lending Total
_As at 31 December 2018 ; £m ~ £m ~ £m £m
Stage 1 : 3,051.5 1,179.7 690.8 4,922.0
Stage 2 607.8 188.5 75.3 871.6
Stage 3 60.6 54.0 6.6 121.2
Gross loans and advances to customers 3,719.9 1,422.2 772.7 5,914.8
Stage 1 : (2.0) (5.9) (15.6) (23.5)
Stage 2 (5.5) (4.0) (11.2) (20.7)
Stage 3 (6.2) (13.0) (4.4) (23.6)
Loss allowance (13.7) (22.9) (31.2) (67.8)
Fair value adjustments for hedged risk (0.6) - (0.5) (1.1)
Total loans and advances to customers 3,705.6 1,399.3 741.0 5,845.9
Loss allowance coverage (%) 0.4% 1.6% 4.0% 1.1%

As at 31 December 2018, the loss allowance for financial guarantee contracts is £nil because the contract is
fully collateralised through a first fixed charge over a blocked deposit account. As such, the amount the Group
should have to pay should the guarantee be called upon is £nil.

As at 31 December 2018, the loss allowance for loan commitments is £1.0 million. The following table provides
an analysis of loan commitments by reportable segment and the year-end stage classification:

i - T Property = Business Consumer

. . Finance Finance Lending Total

.| As at 31 December 2018 o ‘ £m £m “Em £m
Stage 1 145.6 3449 52.0 542.5
Stage 2 - 6.8 - 6.8
Gross loan commitments 145.6 351.7 52.0 549.3
Stage 1 - (1.0) - (1.0)
Loss allowance - (1.0) - (1.0)
Total loan commitments 145.6 350.7 52.0 548.3
Loss allowance coverage (%) - 0.3% - 0.2%

. Movement in the Group's loss allowance is presented in the financial statements as follows:

e lLoans and.advances to customers: presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount. See
Note 14 of the financial statements.

e Loan commitments: presented as a provision. See Note 25 and Note 38 of the financial statements.
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.3. Impairment under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Calculation of expected credit losses

ECLs are the discounted product of the probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given
default (LGD), detailed below. ECLs are determined by projecting the PD, EAD and LGD for each future month
for each exposure. The three components are multiplied together and adjusted to reflect forward looking
information. This calculates an ECL for each future month, which is then discounted back to the reporting date
and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof.

Probability of default
PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain
time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

The Group has developed a credit grading system for all its asset classes and has mapped these to a common
master grading scale that has been aligned to the Standard and Poor’s grading scale. The Group operates
both a model-based PD for its high volume portfolios such as Consumer Lending and Residential Property
Finance and has developed and implemented a Slotting approach for the low volume and high value obligors
in Business Finance and large ticket commercial property cases. Both processes deliver a measure of a point-
in-time measure of default.

For the model-based portfolios, the measure of PD is based on information available to the Group from credit
reference agencies and internal product performance data. For the Slotted portfolios, the measure of PD
relates to attributes relating to financial strength, political and legal environment, asset/transaction
characteristics, strength of sponsor and security.

The current risk grading framework consists of 25 grades on a master grading scale reflecting varying degrees
of risk and default. The responsibility for setting risk grades lies with the approval point for the risk or committee
as appropriate. Risk grades are subject to regular reviews by Group Risk. The Group's grading scale is mapped
to Standard and Poor’s grading scale and aggregated for reporting purposes in the following way:

[ T S T T ~Standard and Poor’s
*Grading Master grading scale PD range -grade
Low risk 1-10 <=0.38% AAA to BBB-
Medium risk 11-15 >0.38% to <=1.76% BB+ to BB-
High risk 16-25 >1.76% B+toD

For each asset class, the Group has a proprietary approach to extrapolate its best estimate of the point-in-time
PD from 12 months to behavioural maturity, using economic response models that have been developed
specifically to forecast the sensitivity of PD to key macroeconomic variables.

Exposure at default

EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the
exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by
contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed

payments.

EAD is designed to address increases in utilisation of committed limits and unpaid interest and fees that the
Group would ordinarily expect to observe to the point of default, or through to the point of realisation of the
collateral.

The Group determines EADs by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in time,
corresponding to the multiple scenarios.
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.3. Impairment under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Loss given default

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including
from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The Group segments its lending products into smaller homogenous portfolios. In all cases the LGD or its

components are tested against recent experience to ensure that they remain current.

o Property Finance: the LGD is generally broken down into two parts. These include the Group'’s estimate
of the probability of possession given default, combined with the loss given possession. The Group has
continued to focus on the proportion of accounts that have not cured over an emergence period, rather
than the proportion of accounts that enter possession to be appropriately conservative. The LGD is based
on the Group’s estimate of a shortfall, based on the difference between the property value after the impact
of a forced sale discount and sale costs, and the loan balance with the addition of unpaid interest and
fees and first charge claims with regards to first charge residential mortgages.

e Business Finance: the LGD is based on experience of losses on repossessed assets. The LGD on Block
and Wholesale portfolios is based on experience of losses supported by key judgements.

¢ Consumer Lending: the Group uses an estimate of the probability of charge-off, defined as six or more
payments in arrears, combined with an estimate of the expected write-off based on established
contractual forward flow arrangements for the sale of charge-off debt. There is no recovery portfolio.

Measurement of expected credit losses
The measurement of ECLs requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions and key
judgements.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group applies a series of quantitative, qualitative and backstop criteria to determine if an account has

demonstrated a significant increase in credit risk and should therefore be moved to Stage 2:

e Quantitative criteria: this considers the increase in an account’s remaining lifetime PD at the reporting
date compared to the expected residual lifetime PD when the account was originated. The Group
segments its credit portfolios into PD bands and has determined a relevant threshold for each PD band,
where a movement in excess of threshold is considered to be significant. These thresholds have been
determined separately for each portfolio based on historical evidence of delinquency.

e Qualitative criteria: this includes the observation of specific events such as short-term forbearance,
payment cancellation, historical arrears or extension to customer terms.

e Backstop criteria: IFRS 9 includes a rebuttable presumption that 30 days past due is an indicator of a
significant increase in credit risk. The Group considers 30 days past due to be an appropriate backstop
measure and does not rebut this presumption.

Assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk incorporates forward looking
information. The Group undertakes a review of the forward looking economic scenarios at least quarterly and
more frequently if required. The results of this review are recommended to the Audit Committee and Board
prior to any changes being implemented.

As a general indicator, credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since initial
recognition if, based on the Group’s quantitative modelling:

Property Finance — Commercial

e External mortgage payments in arrears from the credit reference agencies. The external arrears
information is statistically a lead indicator of financial difficulties and potential arrears on the loan book;

o for short-term loans with a modelled PD, PD > 0.38% and the absolute movement in remaining lifetime
PD is more than four times the estimate at origination; '

e for term loans with a modelled PD, PD > 0.38% and the absolute movement in remaining lifetime PD is
more than two times the estimate at origination; or

o for all portfolios with a slotted PD, PD > 0.38% and the absolute movement in remaining lifetime PD is
more than three times the estimate at origination.
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.3. Impairment under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Property Finance - Residential

s All exposures are graded under the modelled approach. Where the modelled PD > 0.38% and the
absolute movement in remaining lifetime PD is more than 5.1 times the estimate at origination;

e where the customer has ever been six or more payments in arrears on any fixed term account at the credit
reference agency;

e  where the customer has missed a mortgage payment in the last six months at the credit reference agency;
or

e loan account is forborne.

Business Finance

e  Entry on to watch-list;

e loan account is forborne;

e for accounts with a modellied PD, where the absolute movement in the remaining lifetime PD is more than
4.6 times the estimate at origination; or

e for accounts with a slotted PD, where the absolute movement in the remaining lifetime PD is more than
three times the estimate at origination.

Consumer Lending

¢  Non-personal loans PD > 0.38% and the absolute movement in remaining lifetime PD is more than 3.7
times the estimate at origination;

e personal loans PD > 038% and the absolute movement in remaining lifetime PD is more than 4.6 times
the estimate at origination;

e county court judgements registered at the credit reference agencies of > £150 or > £1,000 in last 3-years;
or

e loan account is forborne.

For low credit risk exposures, the Group is permitted to assume, without further analysis, that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. The Group has opted not to apply this low credit risk
exemption in the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group undertakes an update of all its key impairment judgements in advance of the interim report and
accounts and the annual report and accounts. This includes (and is not limited to) a review of model
monitoring, validation of key assumptions based on trends in actual performance, monitoring of stage
effectiveness and the forward economic scenarios used to support the lifetime ECL calculations. All key
judgements are reviewed and recommended to the Audit Committee for approval prior to implementation.

Stage 2 criteria are designed to be effective early indicators of a significant deterioration in credit risk. As part

of its six-monthly review of key impairment judgements the Group undertakes detailed analysis to confirm that

the Stage 2 criteria remain effective. This includes (and is not limited to):

e Criteria effectiveness: this includes the emergence to default for each Stage 2 criterion when compared
to Stage 1, Stage 2 outflow as a percentage of Stage 2, percentage of new defaults in Stage 2 in the
months prior to default, time in Stage 2 prior to default and percentage of the book in Stage 2 that are not
progressing to default or curing.

Stage 2 stability: this incudes stability of inflows and outflows from Stage 2 and 3.

Portfolio analysis: this includes the percentage of the portfolio that is in Stage 2 and not defaulted, the
percentage of the Stage 2 transfer driven by Stage 2 criterion other than the back stops and back-testing
of the defaulted accounts.

During 2018, the Group used this process to remove some PD floors as they were not appropriately
considering a significant increase in credit risk. In addition, the Group considered the roll back to Stage 1
(ignoring curing requirements) to ensure that the Stage 2 criteria was picking up any significant deterioration
in credit risk.

The Group calculates the ECL on an EAD basis and then separately considers how much of the ECL is
attributable to loan balances and loan commitments which are then reported separately.
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)

5.3. Impairment under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group’s definition of default is fully aligned with the definition of credit-impaired. The Group applies a

series of quantitative and qualitative criteria to determine if an account meets the definition of default and

should therefore be moved to Stage 3. These criteria include:

o when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
when the borrower is more than 90 days past due on any material credit obligation to the Group; and
when a material credit obligation to the Group has gone past maturity or there is a degree of doubt that
the exit strategy for the obligation is likely. :

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over
time to reflect changes in circumstances.

Curing '

A financial instrument is considered to be ‘cured’ and therefore reclassified back to a lower stage when none
of the assessed criteria that caused movement into the higher stage have been present for a consecutive
period of at least 12 months (the ‘curing period’).

For Stage 3 loans with forbearance arrangements in place, the loan must first successfully complete its 12-
month curing period to be moved to Stage 2. Following this, the loan must then successfully complete its 24-
month forbearance probation period before the forbearance classification can be discontinued.

The Group has not implemented curing for forborne loans as at 31 December 2018. The Group believes that
the nature of the cycle and the narrow range of forbearance treatments used means that curing is not material.
The Group has decided to focus on stabilising the ECL during 2018 with a view to implementing curing in Q2
2019.

Forward looking information
The Group incorporates forward looking information into the calculation of ECLs and the assessment of
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Scenario analysis

The Group's central view is informed by the HM Treasury Central forecast that is published quarterly and used
as part of the Group’s corporate planning activity. Intra-quarter, the Group considers survey-based data and
lead indicators to inform whether the central view continues to be appropriate. In the calculation of the ECL
and stage transfer the Group uses two further scenarios to refiect an alternative upside view and an alternative
downside view. These are chosen to be plausible alternative base cases and are not stress-testing scenarios.
The probabilities assigned to the scenarios are a matter of judgement but are generally set to ensure that there
is an asymmetry in the ECL.

The Group is not large enough to have an internal economist and therefore works with a third party on the
narrative of the alternative scenarios and the rate paths to ensure that the scenarios are internally consistent
using the UK Treasury model. The rate paths used in the scenarios are consistent with the core UK
macroeconomic factors that are published by the Bank of England as part of the annual stress testing exercise.
These scenarios are reviewed at the Audit Committee and recommended to Board for approval at least
quarterly.

The Group has regularly considered Brexit within its economic scenarios and specifically the nature and
probability of the alternative downside scenario. In the latter part of 2018, the Board agreed to move from a
50% / 30% / 20% central view / downside view / upside view respectively to a 40% / 40% / 20% central view /
downside view / upside view respectively. The Board also agreed to change the nature of the alternative
downside view from an orderly no-deal Brexit to a disorderly no-deal Brexit as a resuit of there being no
parliamentary majority for any option.
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.3. Impairment under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Estimating forward looking expected credit losses

The Group has developed a proprietary approach to assess the impact of the changes in economic scenarios
on the obligor level ECL. The Group has mapped each asset class to an external long-run benchmark series
that is believed to behave in a similar way to the Group’s portfolio over the cycle. The Group has developed
econometric models to establish how much of the historical series can be explained by movements in the UK
macroeconomic factors. The models deliver an estimate of the impact of a unit increase in default arising from
a 1% increase in the underlying macroeconomic factors. The models are developed in line with the Group'’s
model governance framework and are subject to review at least every six-months. The models are tested
across multiple sets of scenarios to ensure that they work in a range of scenarios, the output of the scenarios
is a series of scalars by asset class and a scenario that can be applied to the underlying PDs to deliver a
forward looking ECL. The Group has developed a proprietary approach to extrapolating its 12-month PDs
over the behavioural maturity of the loans that the scalars can be applied to. The nature of the scenarios means
that there will be an impact on both the PD and the number of obligors moving from Stage 1 to Stage 2.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements and key sensitivity analysis

Individual Stage 3 ECL on loans and advances to customers are calculated based on an assessment of the
expected cash flows and the underlying collateral. For individual Stage 3 ECL, statistical models are used for
Consumer Lending and Residential Property Finance, whilst provisions for Business Finance and Commercial
Property Finance are assessed on a loan-by-loan basis and reviewed at Group Impairment Committee where
the impairment is in excess of £75,000. Where models are used for individual Stage 3 ECLs, score cards are
used to calculate PDs based on the recent performance of the portfolios. These PD estimates are translated
to lifetime PDs using the approach outlined above. LGDs are calculated taking into account the valuations of
available collateral and the experienced forced sale discounts when collateral has been realised. These factors
are applied to all the aged portfolios of debt at each statement of financial position reporting date to derive the
individual impairment requirement.

For Stage 1 impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar risk characteristics. In all situations
a 12-month PD is multipiied by the EAD and LGD to derive an ECL requirement which is incurred at the
statement of financial position reporting date but not yet individually identified.

The key assumptions, being the forced sale discount on the Residential Property Finance portfolio and
Commercial Property Finance portfolio, PD of the portfolios and LGD of the Consumer Lending portfolio are
monitored regularly to ensure the ECL requirement is entirely reflective of the current portfolio. The accuracy
of the ECL calculation would therefore be affected by unanticipated changes to the economic situation and
assumptions which differ from actual outcomes. For example, for loans and advances to customers:

Probability of default

The PD is based on internal and external individual customer information that is updated for each reporting
period. The external customer information is sourced from credit reference agencies and includes information
from a broad range of financial services firms.

e A 10% increase in the PD for each customer would increase the ECL by c.£3.9 million.

Loss given default

For loans where property is taken as collateral the LGD calculates the loss in the event of possession. Not all
cases that have reached Stage 3 will enter possession and the Group calculates as part of its judgements the
probability of possession given default. The loss in the event of possession is driven predominantly by future
property value inflation (or deflation) and changes in force sales discount which affect the underlying value of
the collateral.

e A 10-percentage point reduction in property prices would increase the ECL by ¢.£6.1 million.

e A 5% absolute increase in the force sales discount would increase the ECL by c.£4.1 million.

For loans within Business Finance, the assumption with most judgement is the absolute LGD value calculated

through the twice-yearly judgements.

e A 5% absolute increase in the LGD’s applied in Business Finance would increase the ECL by ¢c.£3.0
million.
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.3. Impairment under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018) (continued)

For loans originated within Consumer Lending, the assumption with most judgement applied is the LGD. Not
all loans are simultaneously charged-off at 180 days past due so the LGD includes a judgement about the
number of loans expected to enter charge-off from default and then the loss given charge-off.

e A 10-percentage point increase in the loss given charge-off would increase the ECL by ¢.£2.9 million.

5.4. Impairment under IAS 39 (prior to 1 January 2018)
Audited: The following section is covered by the independent auditor’s report.

Prior to 1 January 2018, impairment of financial assets was based on the incurred loss model under IAS 39.
The Group’s accounting policy is detailed in Note 1.7(v) of the financial statements.

Under the requirements of IAS 39, loans and advances to customers was the only financial asset category for
which impairments were recognised.

Loans and advances to customers were regularly reviewed to determine if there was any objective evidence
of impairment. They were categorised as follows:

Type of impairment
- assessment . .
Individual impairment Where specific circumstances indicated that a loss was likely to be incurred.
Impairment allowances were calculated for each portfolio on a collective basis,
given the homogenous nature of the assets in the portfolio.

Description

Collective impairment

Iﬁisk categorisation  Description S - —l
Neither past due nor Loans that were not in arrears and which did not meet the impaired asset
impaired definition. This segment could include assets subject to forbearance measures.

This consisted predominantly of loans in Property Finance and Business Finance
Past due but not that were past due and individually assessed as not being impaired. This
impaired definition also included unsecured loans in Consumer Lending that were past due

but not more than 90 days.

Loans that were in arrears or where there was objective evidence of impairment
and where the carrying amount of the loan exceeded the expected recoverable
amount. This definition also included unsecured loans in Consumer Lending that
were more than 90 days in arrears and carried identified impairment.

Impaired assets
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.4. Impairment under |AS 39 (prior to 1 January 2018) (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of loans and advances to customers by reportable segment and
impairment risk categorisation:

Property Business = Consumer

Finance Finance Lending Total
As at 31 December 2017 £m _ £m £m £m
Neither past due nor impaired 3,114.8 1,015.7 611.3 4,741.8
Past due but not impaired
Up to 30 days 9.2 10.4 1.0 20.6
30-60 days 328 40 7.4 442
60-90 days 7.8 1.2 26 11.6
Over 90 days 18.1 2.1 - 20.2
Total past due but not impaired 67.9 17.7 11.0 96.6
Impaired assets 13.3 21.5 49 39.7
Gross loans and advances to customers 3,196.0 1,054.9 627.2 4,878.1
Impairment allowance (6.3) (15.0) (10.3) (31.6)
Fair value adjustments for hedged risk (2.7) - 0.5 (2.2)
Total loans and advances to customers 3,187.0 1,039.9 617.4 4,844.3

5.5. Credit risk grading
Audited: The following section is covered by the independent auditor’s report.

The Group uses the following credit risk grades when assessing the credit risk of its financial assets, financial
guarantee contracts and loan commitments:

Cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks and investment securities
The Group assesses credit risk using the rating agency designation on the reporting date. Ratings are based
on Moody's long-term ratings.

Loans and advances to customers and financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

The Group assesses credit risk using the Group’s internal classifications based on the point-in-time PD of
individual agreements. Classifications are defined as follows:

. Low risk: assets have a point-in-time PD less than or equal to 0.38%.

e  Medium risk: assets have a point-in-time PD greater than 0.38% and less than or equal to 1.76%.

e High risk: assets have a point-in-time PD greater than 1.76%.

In 2017, each of the risk classifications detailed above had the additional criteria that loans were ‘neither past

due nor impaired’, as defined in Section 5.4. Loans that were ‘past due but not impaired’ or ‘impaired assets’,
as defined in Section 5.4, were ‘ungraded'.

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2018 42



5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)

5.6. Credit risk exposure
Audited: The following section is covered by the independent auditor’s report.

Financial assets subject to impairment

The following tables contain an analysis of the credit risk exposure of financial assets for which a loss
allowance is recognised. For financial assets, the gross carrying amount represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk.

The below also provides an analysis of the credit risk exposure of financial guarantee contracts and loan
commitments for which a loss allowance is also recognised. For financial guarantee contracts, amounts
represent the amount guaranteed. For loan commitments, amounts represent the amounts committed. In both
instances, these amounts represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

Information provided below is based on the credit risk grades defined in Section 5.5 and, for 2018, the year-
end stage classification. It should be noted that the credit risk grading assessment is a point-in-time
assessment whereas IFRS 9 stages are determined based on the change in credit risk from initial recognition.
As such, for non-credit impaired financial instruments, there is not a direct relationship between the credit risk
assessment and IFRS 9 stage.

e 2018 2017
‘Cash and balances at central Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total  Total
- banks £m £m £m £fm £m
Credit grade
AA2 645.2 - - 645.2 752.5
Gross carrying amount 645.2 - - 645.2 752.5
Loss allowance - - - - -
Total cash and balances at 645.2 i ) 645.2 7525
central banks
S ] ; 2018 2017

I T Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total "~ Total

Loans and advances to banks £m £fm . £m - £m £m
Credit grade
AA3 12.3 - - 12.3 12.2
A1 7.0 - - 7.0 25
A2 31.3 - - 31.3 -
A3 - - - - 14 .1
Gross carrying amount 50.6 - - 50.6 28.8
Loss allowance - - - - -
Total loans and advances to banks 50.6 . - - 50.6 28.8
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)

5.6. Credit risk exposure (continued)

2018 2017'
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total’
Loans and advances to customers £m £m £m £m £m
Credit grade
Low risk » 1,906.5 26.2 7.7 1,940.4 1,945.9
Medium risk 1,9104 464.5 33.3 2,408.2 2,103.7
High risk 1,105.1 380.9 ~ 80.2 1,566.2 692.2
Ungraded - - - - 136.3
Gross carrying amount 4,922.0 871.6 121.2 5,914.8 4,878.1
Loss allowance (23.5) (20.7) (23.6) (67.8) (31.6)
4,898.5 850.9 97.6 5,847.0 4,846.5
Fair value adjustments for hedged risk (1.1) (2.2)

Total loans and advances to 5,845.9 4,844.3

customers
2018 2017
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
Investment securities ' fm = £m , £m ) £m £m
Credit grade
Low risk 139.9 - - 139.9 -
Gross carrying amount 139.9 - - 139.9 -
Loss allowance - - - - -
Total investment securities 139.9 - - 139.9 -
2018 2017
Stage1 Stage2 . Stage3 Total Total
Financial guarantee contracts £m £m ~ Em £fm £m
Credit grade
Low risk 25 - - 25 2.5
Gross amount guaranteed 25 - - 25 2.5
Loss allowance - - - - -
Total amount guaranteed’ 25 - - 2.5 2.5

1 The Group has one financial guarantee contract amounting to £2.5 million (2017: £2.5 million). The contract is fully collateralised through
a first fixed charge over a blocked deposit account. As such, the amount the Group should have to pay should the guarantee be called
upon is £nil (2017: £nil).
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)

5.6. Credit risk exposure (continued)

2018 2017

Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total.

Loan commitments ; _ £m £m £m £m £m-
"Credit grade

Low risk ‘ 462.1 - - 462.1 467.6

Medium risk 70.5 - - 70.5 -

High risk 9.9 6.8 - 16.7 -

Gross amount committed 542.5 6.8 - 549.3 467.6

Loss allowance (1.0) - - (1.0) -

Total loan commitments 541.5 6.8 - 548.3 467.6

Financial assets not subject to impairment
The following table contains an analysis of the maximum exposure to credit risk from financial assets not
subject to impairment:

2018 ) 2017
£m £m
Derivative financial assets 1.6 1.8

5.7. Collateral held and other credit enhancements
Audited: The following section is covered by the independent auditor’s report.

The Group holds collateral and other credit enhancements against certain of its credit exposures. The amount
and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.

The Group has internal policies on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation.
The Group’s policies regarding obtaining collateral have not significantly changed during the reporting period
and there has been no significant change in the overall quality of the collateral held by the Group since the
prior period.

No collateral or other credit enhancements are held against the Group’s loans and advances to banks and
investment securities.

Details of collateral held against the Group's loans and advances to customers and derivative financial assets
are set out below:

Loans and advances to customers

The main types of collateral obtained are:

¢ Loanreceivables: includes amounts secured by a first or second charge over commercial and residential
property, debt receivables and other assets such as asset backed loans and invoice receivables.

¢ Finance lease receivables and instalment credit receivables: secured on the underlying assets which
can be repossessed in the event of a default.
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.7. Collateral held and other credit enhancements (continued)

The following table sets out the security profile of loans and advances to customers. The amounts in the table
represent gross carrying amounts:

2018 2017

£m £m

Secured on commercial and residential property 3,908.1 3,197.6
Secured on debt receivables 517.3 456.6
Secured on other assets 93.1 68.3
Total secured loan receivables 4,518.5 3,722.5
Secured by finance lease assets 95.0 88.9
Secured by instalment credit assets 409.4 350.8
Total secured loans and advances to customers 5,022.9 4.162.2
Unsecured loan receivables 891.9 715.9
Gross loans and advances to customers 5,914.8 4,878.1

Collateral held in relation to secured loans is capped, after taking into account the first charge balance, at the
amount outstanding on an individual loan basis.

Derivative financial assets

Credit risk derived from derivative transactions is mitigated by entering into master netting agreements and
holding collateral. Such collateral is subject to the standard industry Credit Support Annex and is paid or
received on a regular basis. As at 31 December 2018, net cash collateral posted is £4.5 million (2017: £3.9
million).

Quantification of the collateral arrangements relating to derivatives is set out in Note 31(c) of the financial
statements.

Credit-impaired financial assets

The Group closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired (Stage 3), as
it becomes more likely that the Group will take possession of collateral to mitigate potential credit losses.
Financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral heid in order to mitigate potential losses are set
out below:

Gross . ‘Fair value

carrying Loss Carrying of collateral

; amount allowance amount held

As at 31 December 2018 £fm £m £m £m
Credit-impaired loans and advances to

customers

Property Finance 60.6 (6.2) 54.4 54.4

Business Finance 54.0 (13.0) 41.0 41.0

Consumer Lending 6.6 (4.4) 2.2 -

Total credit-impaired loans and advances 121.2 (23.6) 97.6 95.4

to customers
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.7. Collateral held and other credit enhancements (continued)

The following table shows the distribution of loan-to-value (LTV) ratios for the Group’s credit-impaired Property
Finance portfolio: ’

Gross

carrying

amount

As at 31 December 2018 . . __ £m
LTV ratio

Less than 50% ' 13.3

50-70% 23.6

71-90% - 227

91-100% 0.5

More than 100% 0.5

Total Property Finance credit-impaired assets 60.6

5.8. Repossessions
Audited: The following section is covered by the independent auditor’s report.

There were twelve property repossessions in the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: seven). The total
carrying value of repossessed assets in the year ended 31 December 2018 is £2.1 million (2017: £1.1 million).
Of the twelve repossessions made during the year, five were disposed of by 31 December 2018 and seven
remained on the market. A further one repossession made during 2017 remained on the market as at 31
December 2018.

5.9. Forbearance
Audited: The following section is covered by the independent auditor’s report.

The Group maintains a forbearance policy for the servicing and management of customers who are in financial
difficulty and require some form of concession to be granted, even if this concession entails a loss for the
Group. A concession may be either of the following:

+ a madification of the previous terms and conditions of an agreement, which the borrower is considered
unable to comply with due to its financial difficulties, to allow for sufficient debt service ability, that would
not have been granted had the borrower not been in financial difficulties; or

e atotal or partial refinancing of an agreement that would not have been granted had the borrower not been
in financial difficulties.

Forbearance in relation to an exposure can be temporary or permanent depending on the circumstances,
progress on financial rehabilitation and the detail of the concession(s) agreed. The Group includes short-term
repayment plans within its definition of forbearance.

Year ended 31 December 2018

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group adopted the European Banking Authority (EBA)
Technical Standards on forbearance and non-performing exposures as defined in Annex V of Commission
Implementing Regulation (EU) 2015/227. Under these standards loans are classified as performing or non-
performing in accordance with the EBA rules.
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.9. Forbearance (continued)

The EBA standards stipulate that a forbearance classification can be discontinued when all of the following

conditions have been met': '

e the exposure is considered to be performing, including where it has been reclassified from the non-
performing category, after an analysis of the financial condition of the debtor showed that it no longer met
the conditions to be considered as non-performing;

e a minimum two-year probation period has passed from the date the forborne exposure was considered
to be performing;

e regular payments of more than an insignificant aggregate amount of principal or interest have been made
during at least half of the probation period; and

e none of the exposures to the debtor is more than 30 days past-due at the end of the probation period.

The following tables provide a summary of forborne loans and advances to customers as at 31 December
2018 by reportable segment:

~ APerforming_ - N"on-perfbrmihg_
Instruments Instruments
with with Total
modification Refinan- modification Refinan- forborne
As at 31 to their T&Cs cing Total to their T&Cs cing Total . loans
December 2018 ) £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Property
Finance 9.5 - 9.5 40.1 - 401 49.6
Business
Finance 9.1 . 5.1 14.2 28.3 08 29.1 43.3
Consumer
Lending 29 - 2.9 10.1 - 101 13.0
Total 21.5 51 26.6 78.5 0.8 79.3 105.9
Loss allowance on forborne
Gross amount of forborne loans loans
As at 31 Non- ‘ Non-
December Performing performing Total Performing performing Total Coverage
2018 Number £m £m £Em . . £m £m £m %
Property :
Finance 1,011 9.5 401 49.6 (0.2) (4.1) (4.3) 8.7
Business
Finance 313 14.2 29.1 43.3 (0.3) (3.8) (4.1) 9.5
Consumer
Lending 4,687 2.9 10.1 13.0 (0.3) (5.3) (5.6) 43.1
Total 6,011 26.6 79.3 105.9 (0.8) (13.2) (14.0) 13.2

1 The forbearance probation period of two years (the second condition listed) was not applied in the year ended 31 December 2017 and
as such results are not directly comparable.
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)

5.9. Forbearance (continued)

The following tables provide a summary of forborne loans and advances to customers as at 31 December
2018 by the year-end stage classification:

Performing Non-performing
Instruments Instruments
with with Total
modification Refinan- modification Refinan- forborne
As at 31 to their T&Cs cing Total to their T&Cs cing Total loans
December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Stage 1 6.5 - 6.5 6.8 - 6.8’ 13.3
Stage 2 15.0 5.1 20.1 40.5 - 405 60.6
Stage 3 - - - 31.2 08 320 32.0
Total 21.5 51 26.6 78.5 0.8 79.3 105.9
Gross amount of forborne loans ) Loss allowance on forborne Ioané
As at 31 Non- Non-
December Performing performing Total Performing performing Total Coverage
2018 Number £m £m £m £m £m £m %
Stage 1 1,097 6.5 6.8 13.3 (0.1) (0.4)' (0.5) 3.8
Stage 2 1,421 20.1 40.5 60.6 (0.7) (29) (3.6) 59
Stage 3 3,493 - 320 320 - (9.9) (9.9) 309
Total 6,011 26.6 79.3 105.9 (0.8) (13.2) (14.0) 13.2

Year ended 31 December 2017

In the year ended 31 December 2017, the conditions to discontinue the forbearance classification did not
include the forbearance probation period of two years applied in the year ended 31 December 2018 and as
such results are not directly comparable.

The following table provides a summary of forborne loans and advances to customers as at 31 December
2017: ‘

Capital
balances Provisions Coverage
As at 31 December 2017 Number £m £m %
Property Finance 239 16.2 1.0 6.2
Business Finance 361 35.8 5.3 14.8
Consumer Lending 830 53 238 52.8
Total 1,430 57.3 9.1 15.9

1 As detailed in Section 5.3 on page 39, the Group has not implemented IFRS 9 curing for forborne loans during 2018. Loans are classified
as non-performing and Stage 1 where the latest forbearance measure was extended more than a year ago and the number of days past
due at the current reporting period is more than zero but less than 30.
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)

5.10. Concentrations of credit risk
Audited: The following section is covered by the independent auditor’s report.

The Group monitors concentrations of credit risk from its loans and advances to customers by geographic
location and by loan size.

Geographic location
An analysis of credit risk from loans and advances to customers by geographic location is shown below:

Property Business  Consumer
Finance Finance Lending Total
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m ‘ £m
East Anglia 117.8 69.6 323 219.7
East Midlands 120.6 58.2 58.8 237.6
Greater London 1,454.9 300.8 82.3 1,838.0
Guernsey / Jersey / Isle of Man 245 46.3 0.1 70.9
North East 52.8 31.4 35.3 119.5
North West 305.6 171.4 92.0 569.0
Northern Ireland 9.6 1.8 21 13.5
Scotland 2221 93.2 89.4 404.7
South East 747.4 221.4 1411 1,109.9
South West 263.6 113.3 61.3 438.2
Wales 80.0 95.0 313 206.3
West Midlands 141.6 151.4 74.9 367.9
Yorkshire / Humberside 179.4 68.4 71.8 319.6
Gross loans and advances to customers 3,719.9 1,422.2 772.7 5,914.8
Property Business Consumer
Finance Finance Lending Total
As at 31 December 2017 ] £m - Em £m £m
East Anglia 99.0 75.3 256 199.9
East Midlands 100.5 34.7 48.6 183.8
Greater London 1,233.8 169.8 64.9 1,468.5
Guernsey / Jersey / Isle of Man 18.6 47.0 0.1 65.7
North East 45.5 16.4 29.9 91.8
North West 264.5 159.9 754 499.8
Northern ireland 13.6 2.8 1.7 18.1
Scotland 183.0 71.0 76.9 330.9
South East 648.3 169.3 109.9 927.5
South West 239.5 89.7 48.3 3775
Wales 69.4 84.8 24.4 178.6
West Midlands 125.0 74.8 62.0 261.8
Yorkshire / Humberside 165.3 59.4 59.5 274.2
Gross loans and advances to customers 3,196.0 1,054.9 627.2 4,878.1
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5. Creditworthiness risk (continued)
5.10. Concentrations of credit risk (continued)

Loan size
An analysis of credit risk from loans and advances to customers by loan size is shown below:

Property Business  Consumer

Finance Finance Lending Total

As at 31 December 2018 £m £fm £fm £m
0 - £50k 215.3 140.5 772.5 1,128.3
£50k - £100k 378.5 723 0.2 451.0
£100k - £250k 883.5 120.4 - 1,003.9
£250k - £500k 797.2 107.9 - 905.1
£500k - £1.0 million 609.3 135.6 - 744.9
£1.0 miltion - £2.5 million 463.8 200.2 - 664.0
£2.5 million - £5.0 million 208.7 156.1 - 364.8
£5.0 million - £10.0 million 108.4 157.3 - 265.7
£10.0 million -~ £25.0 million 55.2 331.9 - 387.1
Gross loans and advances to customers 3,719.9 1,422.2 772.7 5,914.8

Property Business Consumer

_ Finance Finance Lending Total

As at 31 December 2017 v . £m £m £m £m
0 - £50k 246.1 164.6 627.0 1,037.7
£50k - £100k 369.2 79.7 0.2 4491
£100k - £250k 784.9 113.3 - 898.2
£250k - £500k 657.0 80.3 - 737.3
£500k - £1.0 million 4781 106.1 - 584.2
£1.0 million - £2.5 million 379.2 153.7 - 532.9
£2.5 million - £5.0 million 167.1 80.2 - 247.3
£5.0 million - £10.0 million 61.8 77.4 - 139.2
£10.0 million -~ £25.0 million 52.6 199.6 - 252.2
Gross loans and advances to customers 3,196.0 1,054.9 627.2 4,878.1

6. Liquidity risk
Audited: The following section is covered by the independent auditor’s report.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current and future financial obligations as they fall
due, or is only able to do so at excessive cost.

The Group has, therefore, developed comprehensive funding and liquidity policies to ensure that it maintains
sufficient liquid assets to be able to meet all its financial obligations and maintain public confidence.

The Group’s Treasury function is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s liquidity and
wholesale funding. The Board sets limits over the level, composition, and maturity of liquidity and deposit
funding balances, reviewing these at least annually. Compliance with these limits is monitored daily by Finance
and Risk personnel independent of Treasury. Additionally, a series of liquidity stress tests are performed
weekly by Risk and formally reported to the ALCo and the Board to ensure that the Group maintains adequate
liquidity for business purposes even under stressed conditions.

The Group reports its liquidity position against its liquidity coverage ratio (LCR), net stable funding ratio (NSFR)
and other key regulatory ratios for regulatory purposes.
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6. Liquidity risk (continued)

A liquid asset buffer of government Treasury bills acquired under the Funding for Lending Scheme, and
reserves with the Bank of England, are maintained as a source of high-quality liquid assets that can be called
upon to create sufficient liquidity in order to meet liabilities on demand. The Group also holds extremely high-
quality covered bonds.

Further details of the Group’s funding sources are as follows:
¢ Funding for Lending Scheme: see Note 1.7(0) of the financial statements.
e Term Funding Scheme: see Note 1.7(0) of the financial statements.

Stress testing is a major component of liquidity risk management and the Group has developed a range of
scenarios covering a range of market wide and firm specific factors. A comprehensive stress testing exercise
is conducted at least annually, and the methodology is incorporated into the Group’s statement of financial
position risk management model to ensure that stress tests are run on a regular basis. The output of stress
testing is circulated to the Board and to the ALCo who use the results to decide whether to amend the Group’s
risk appetite and liquidity limits.

Maturity analysis for financial assets and liabilities
The table below segments the Group’s contractual undiscounted cash flows of its non-derivative financial
assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings:

" Gross

nominal Less . 3 More
As at 31 Carrying inflow / than 1 - 1-3 months 1-2 2-5 than5
December amount (outflow) month months -1 year years years  years
2018 £m i £m £m . £m ~ £m £m £m £m
Financial
assets
Cash and
balances at 645.2 645.2 636.3 - - - - 8.9
central banks
Loans and
advances to 50.6 50.6 50.6 - - - - -
banks
Loans and
advances to 5,845.9 5,944 .1 285.4 212.9 817.3 814.0 1,269.1 2,545.4
customers
Investment 139.9 140.2 0.2 - - - 140.0 -
securities
Totalfinancial ¢ oq16 67801 972.5  212.9 817.3 814.0 1,4091 2,554.3
assets
Financial
liabilities
pmountsdueto - (4,020.4) (1,0399)  (1.9) - . (@2739)  (764.1) -
g::;‘;{‘:’ (4,977.9) (5,083.8) (1,507.3) (292.1) (1,800.2) (820.2) (598.4) (65.6)
Subordinated
debt liability (76.1) (120.8) - - (7.5) (6.4) (19.1) (87.8)

poaiinancial - (60834) (6,244.5) (1,509.2) (2921) (1.807.7) (1,100.5) (1,381.6) (153.4)
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6. Liquidity risk (continued)

Gross

v nominal Less 3 More
' As at 31 Carrying inflow / than 1 1-3  months 1-2 2-5 than§
December amount  (outflow) month months -1 year years years years
. 2017 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial
assets
Cash and
balances at 752.5 752.5 748.2 - - - - 4.3
central banks
Loans and
advances to 28.8 28.8 28.8 - - - - -
banks
Loans and
advances to 48443 4,989.8 211.8 218.7 646.3 690.8 1,222.7 1,999.5
customers
Totalfinancial g eo56 57711 9888 2187 6463 6908 1,2227 2,003.8
assets
Financial
liabilities
pmountsdueto eo7.3)  (6124)  (24) . . - (6100) .
g::;‘;’i?se’ (4,376.2) (4,448.7) (1,026.3) (317.1) (1,818.7) (837.3) (440.1)  (9.2)
Subordinated
debt liability (76.1) (127.1) - - (7.5) (6.4) (19.1)  (94.1)
I:éﬁ:t{;”sanc'a' (5059.6) (5188.2) (1,028.7) (317.1) (1,826.2) (843.7) (1,069.2) (103.3)

Amounts due to banks include £875.0 million of drawings made under the Bank of England’'s Term Funding
Scheme (2017: £605.0 million) and £152.0 million of secured bank borrowings (2017: £nil). See Note 23 of the

financial statements.

Liquidity buffer

The following table sets out the components of the Group’s liquidity buffer:

2018 2017

. . . . ) . E€m £m
Cash and withdrawable central bank reserves 636.1 747.9

Extremely high-quality covered bonds 129.5 -

Debt securities - 100.9

Total liquidity buffer 765.6 848.8

Debt securities are Treasury bills issued by the Bank of England under its Funding for Lending Scheme which
are not recognised on the statement of financial position but are available to be sold under repurchase
agreements and are therefore included in the liquidity buffer (see Note 1.7(0) of the financial statements).

The average liquidity buffer throughout the year is £805.1 million (2017: £669.3 million).

Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio

Liquidity is actively monitored on a daily basis and reported on a monthly basis through the ALCo and the Risk
Committee. A range of early warning indicators are monitored for early signs of liquidity risk. These include a
range of quantitative and qualitative measures that include the close monitoring of the LCR and NSFR.
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6. Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group’'s LCR aims to monitor the resilience of the Group to a liquidity risk over a 30-day period. New
guidelines were issued by the European Banking Authority (EBA) in March 2017 to complement the disclosure
of liquidity risk management under Article 435 of Regulation (EU) No 575/2013. The following table sets out
the LCR as at 31 December:

[ o © 2018 2017 |
Liquidity buffer (£m) 765.6 848.8
Total net cash outflows (£m) 312.6 2921
Liquidity coverage ratio (%) 2449 290.6

The Group’s NSFR aims to ensure that the Group has an acceptable amount of stable funding to support
assets over a one-year period of extended stress. Based on current interpretations of regulatory requirements
and guidance, the NSFR as at 31 December 2018 is 128.5% (2017: 129.2%). This is in excess of the minimum
level of 100% proposed by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision and European Commission”.

Assets available to support future funding

The Group’s assets can be used to support collateral requirements for central bank operations or third party
repurchase transactions. Assets that have been set aside for such purposes are classified as encumbered
assets and cannot be used for other purposes. The majority of asset encumbrance arises from participation
in the Bank of England’s Term Funding Scheme, Funding for Lending Scheme and investment securities.

All other assets are defined as unencumbered assets. These comprise assets that are readily available to
secure funding or meet collateral requirements (‘available as collateral’), and assets that are not subject to any
restrictions but are not readily available for use (‘other’).

The table below sets out the availability of the Group’s assets to support future funding:

Encumbered Unencumbered
Pledged as Available as

collateral Other collateral Other Total

"As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and balances at central banks - 8.9 - 636.3 645.2

Loans and advances to banks 53 - 453 - 50.6

Loans and advances to customers 1,603.4 - 4,242.5 - 5,845.9

Investment securities - - - 139.9 139.9

Derivative financial assets - - - 1.6 1.6

Non-financial assets - - 34.1 101.8 135.9

Total assets 1,608.7 8.9 4,321.9 879.6 6,819.1

Encumbered Unencumbered
Pledged as Available as

collateral Other collateral Other Total

As at 31 December 2017 £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and balances at central banks - 4.3 - 748.2 752.5

Loans and advances to banks - - 28.8 - 28.8

Loans and advances to customers 1,081.7 - 3,762.6 - 4,8443

Derivative financial assets - - - 1.8 1.8

Non-financial assets - - 36.1 88.5 124.6

Total assets 1,081.7 4.3 3,827.5 838.5 5,752.0

1 The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision issued its final recommendations for the implementation of the NSFR in October 2016,
proposing an implementation date of 1 January 2018 and a minimum ratio of 100%. The European Commission also proposed a NSFR
of at least 100% as part of the CRR 2 package of legislative proposals in November 2016. The timing of a binding NSFR in the United
Kingdom remains subject to uncertainty.
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6. Liquidity risk (continued)

Encumbered assets pledged as collateral includes:

e Loans and advances to banks of £5.3 million (2017: £nil) pledged as collateral against derivative
contracts.

e Loans and advances to customers of £1,402.7 million (2017: £1,081.7 million) positioned with the Bank
of England for use as collateral under its funding schemes. This comprises £1,402.7 million (2017: £902.2
million) for the Term Funding Scheme and £nil (2017: £179.5 million) for the Funding for Lending scheme.

e Loans and advances to customers of £200.7 million (2017: £nil) pledged as collateral against secured
bank borrowings.

Other encumbered assets are assets that cannot be used for secured funding due to legal or other reasons
and includes:
¢ Mandatory deposits with central banks of £8.9 million (2017: £4.3 million).

7. Market risk
Audited: The following section is covered by the independent auditor’s report.

Market risk is the risk that the value of, or income arising from, the Group’s assets and liabilities change as a
result of changes in market prices, the principal element being interest rate risk.

The Group’s objective is to manage and control market risk exposures while maintaining a market profile
consistent with the Group's risk appetite.

The Group’s Treasury function is responsible for managing the Group’s exposure to all aspects of market risk
within the operational limits set out in the Group's treasury policies. The ALCo approves the Group's treasury
policies and receives regular reports on all aspects of market risk exposure, including interest rate risk.

Basis risk

Basis risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in the relationship between interest rates which have similar
but not identical characteristics (for example, London Inter Bank Offer Rate (LIBOR) and the Bank of England
Bank Rate). This is monitored closely and regularly reported to the ALCo. The ALCo is monitoring the Group’s
transition from LIBOR to the Sterling Overnight Index Average in advance of 2021. This risk is managed by
matching and, where appropriate and necessary, through the use of derivatives, with established risk limits
and other control procedures.

The Group's forecasts and plans take account of the risk of interest rate changes and are prepared and
stressed accordingly, in line with PRA guidance.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of, or net income arising from, assets and liabilities changes
as a result of movements in exchange rates. The Group has low levels of foreign exchange risk which is
managed by natural hedging and appropriate financial instruments including derivatives.

The table below sets out the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk:

Australian

: Euros US Dollars Dollars
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m
Loans and advances to banks 4.4 2.1 (0.1)
Loans and advances to customers 28.7 5.7 0.1
Net position 331 7.8 -
Australian

Euros US Dollars Dollars

As at 31 December 2017 _ - £m £m £m
Loans and advances to banks 1.9 (0.8) (0.1)
Loans and advances to customers 24.4 7.7 0.1
Net position 26.3 6.9 -
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7. Market risk (continued)

The Group estimates that a 5% movement in exchange rates would have no greater'impact on the Group's
profit before taxation than an increase or decrease of £2.0 million (2017: £1.7 million).

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse movements in market interest rates. Interest rate risk
arises from the loan and savings products that the Group offers. This risk is managed through the use of
appropriate financial instruments, including derivatives, with established risk limits, reporting lines, mandates
and other control procedures.

The following is a summary of the Group’s interest rate gap position. ltems are allocated to time bands by
reference to the earlier of the next contractual interest rate change and the maturity date.

T T T 3'months ‘6 months 1year " " Non-
\ i Within 3 ‘but <6 ‘but <1 but <5 >5 interest

As at 31 December months months year ‘years years Dbearing Total
2018 . . . .. Em | . £m ‘£m £m £m . fm_ = £m
Assets

Cash and balances at

central banks 636.3 - - - - 8.9 645.2
Loans and advances to

banks 50.6 - - - - - 50.6
Loans and advances to

customers 2,941.0 240.9 520.4 1,963.1 1729 7.6 5,845.9
Investment securities 139.9 - - - - - 139.9
Derivative financial ) ) ) ) ) 16 16
assets

Non-financial assets 1.7 2.0 4.7 22.3 34 101.8 135.9
Total assets 3,769.5 242.9 5251 1,985.4 176.3 1199 6,819.1
Equity and liabilities

Amounts due to banks 1,027.5 - - - - 1.9 1,0294
Customer deposits 1,765.2 813.5 1,0029 1,382.3 14.0 - 4,9779
Derivative financial

liabilities - - - - - 5.7 5.7
Subordinated debt

liability - - - 761 - - 764
Non-financial liabilities - - - - - 56.6 56.6
Equity - - - - - 673.4 673.4
Total equity and '

liabilities 2,792.7 813.5 1,002.9 1,458.4 14.0 737.6 6,819.1
Notional values of

derivatives 430.7 (10.0) 40.0 (433.4) (27.3) - -
Interest rate sensitivity

1,407.5 580.6 437.8 93.6 135.0 617.7 -

gap (5806)  (437.8) (617.7)
Cumulative gap 1,407.5 826.9 389.1 482.7 617.7 - -
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7. Market risk (continued)

3months 6 months 1 year Non-

Within 3 but <6 but <1 but <5 >5 interest

months months year years years bearing Total
As at 31 December 2017 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Cash and balances at
central banks 748.2 - - - - 4.3 752.5
Loans and advances to .
banks 28.8 - - - - - 28.8
Loans and advances to
customers 2,495.5 210.1 3636 1,533.5 296.4 (54.8) 4,8443
Derivative financial
assets - - - ( - - 1.8 1.8
Non-financial assets 3.6 2.1 41 22.2 4.8 87.8 124.6
Total assets 3,276.1 212.2 367.7 1,555.7 301.2 391 5,752.0
Equity and liabilities
Amounts due to banks 607.3 - - - - - 607.3
Customer deposits 1,412.4 787.7 9556 1,212.6 79 - 4,376.2
Derivative financial
liabilities - - - - - 34 3.4
Subordinated debt
liability - - - - 76.1 - 76.1
Non-financial liabilities - - - - - 74.0 74.0
Equity - - - - - 615.0 615.0
Total equity and liabilities 2,019.7 787.7 9556 1,2126 84.0 692.4 5,752.0
Notional values of 578.0 (250)  (2820) (2400) (31.0) ; -
derivatives ) ’ ’ ) )
ggg’ est rate sensitivity 18344  (600.5)  (869.9) 1031 1862  (653.3) ;
Cumulative gap 1,834.4 1,233.9 364.0 467 1 653.3 - -

The Group considers a parallel 250 basis points (bps) (2017: 200 bps) movement to be appropriate for scenario
testing given the current economic outlook and industry expectations.

The Group estimates that a +/- 250 bps (2017: +/- 200 bps) movement in interest rates paid/received would
have impacted the economic value of equity as follows:

+250 bps: £10.9 million negative (2017: £10.5 million negative, based on 200 bps)
-250 bps: £31.9 million positive (2017: £41.0 million positive, based on 200 bps)

In addition, the effect of the same two interest rate shocks is applied to the statement of financial position at
year end, to determine how net interest income may change on an annualised basis for one year, as follows:

+250 bps: £65.5 million positive (2017: £20.8 million positive, based on 200 bps)
-250 bps: £0.7 million positive (2017: £4.0 million positive, based on 200 bps)

In preparing the above sensitivity analyses, the Group makes certain assumptions consistent with expected
and contractual re-pricing behaviour as well as behavioural repayment profiles, under the two interest
scenarios, of the underlying statement of financial position items. The results also include the impact of hedge
transactions.

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2018 57



8. Operational risk

The Risk Committee received regular reports across the spectrum of operational risks and information security.
These reports cover incidents that have arisen to allow the Committee to assess Management's response and
proposed remedial actions. Although a number of incidents were raised during the course of 2018, none of
these were material in nature and the Risk Committee was satisfied that the action taken was appropriate and
that the control of operational incidents continued to improve. A fire-drill test of the Recovery Plan was
completed in September 2018 to test the end to end Recovery Plan playbook and to identify priorities for more
targeted testing in 2019. The operational risk reports were developed throughout 2018 to include more focus
on forward looking risks which permits a more strategic discussion at Risk Committee level.

9. Conduct, legal and compliance risk

The Group continually reviews its risk management approach to reflect the regulatory and legal environment
in which the Group operates.

The Group has no appetite for knowingly behaving inappropriately, resulting in unfair outcomes for its
customers. During 2018, the Group appointed a new Chief Compliance Officer to further develop its risk
appetite for conduct risk and to introduce and embed measures across the conduct risk lifecycle, which
includes product design, sales or after sales processes and culture. It also embedded revisions to annual
product reviews and risk appetite to support the management of brokers, intermediaries and outsource
partners. These measures are reported to the Board monthly and provide the basis for demonstrating that the
Group is operating within its risk appetite. The Group also invested in its financial crime capability within the
second line of defence and latterly in 2018 invested in additional capacity and capability within the first line of
defence. Where the Group identifies potential unintended outcomes for customers the Group uses its risk
management process to proactively escalate, agreeing appropriate actions and communicating clearly with its
customers to ensure a fair outcome is achieved.

The Group invested in its information risk capability through the appointment of a Data Privacy Officer in 2018
and implemented a Privacy Working Group as a sub-group of Enterprise Risk Management Committee to
oversee the Group’s privacy framework.

10. Strategicl risk

Strategic risk focusses on large, long-term risks that could become a material issue for the delivery of the
Group’s goals and objectives. Management of strategic risk is primarily the responsibility of Executive
Management. The management of strategic risk is intrinsically linked to the corporate planning and stress
testing processes and is further supported by the regular provision of consolidated business performance and
risk reporting to the Executive Committee and the Board. The Board received and approved a number of
reports during 2018 including the Strategy Update and the 2018 Annual Review of Risk Appetite. It has also
been engaged actively in the formation of the Group’s ICAAP, ILAAP and RRP which are critical tools to
managing strategic risk.

11. Systems and change risk

Customer expectations for service availability are rising with the rapid pace of new technologies leading to a
significantly lower tolerance for service disruption. The Group recognises that in order to continue to be
recognised for very high levels of customer satisfaction it needs to continually monitor systems risk and ensure
that change is delivered with minimum disruption to customers. During 2018, the Group reviewed its
operational resilience and appointed a new Chief Technology Officer to oversee the Group's strategic
technology requirements.

12. Capital risk and management

Capital risk is the risk that the Group has insufficient capital to cover regulatory requirements and/or to support
its own growth plans. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is not able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due or can do so only at excessive cost.

The Group’s objective in managing Group capital is to maintain appropriate levels of capital to support the
Group’s business strategy and meet regulatory requirements.
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12. Capital risk and management (continued)

Policies and processes for managing the Group’s capital
The Group’s approach to capital management is driven by strategic and organisational requirements, while
also taking into account the regulatory and commercial environments in which it operates.

The Group’s principal objectives when managing capital are to:

e address the expectation of the Shareholders and optimise business activities to ensure return on capital
targets are achieved though efficient capital management;

¢ ensure that the Group and Bank hold sufficient risk capital. Risk capital caters for unexpected losses that
may arise, protects Shareholders and depositors and thereby supports the sustainability of the Group and
Bank through the business cycles; and

e comply with capital supervisory requirements and related regulations.

The PRA supervises the Group on a consolidated basis and receives information on the capital adequacy of,
and sets capital requirements for, the Group as a whole. In addition, a number of subsidiaries are regulated
for prudential purposes by either the PRA or the FCA. The aim of the capital adequacy regime is to promote
safety and soundness in the financial system and embed the requirements of Pillar 3 on market discipline.
Under Pillar 2, the Group completes an annual self-assessment of risks known as the ICAAP. The ICAAP is
reviewed by the PRA which culminates in the PRA setting a Total Capital Requirement on the level of capital
the Group and its regulated subsidiaries are required to hold. Pillar 3 requires firms to publish a set of
disclosures which allow market participants to assess information on that firm's capital, risk exposures and risk
assessment process. The Group’s Pillar 3 disclosures can be found on the Group's website.

The Group maintains a strong capital base with the aim of supporting the development of the business and to
ensure it meets the Total Capital Requirement at all times. As a result, the Group maintains capital adequacy
ratios above minimum regulatory requirements. The Group's individual regulated entities complied with all of
the externally imposed capital requirements to which they are subject for the years ended 2018 and 2017.

Regulation

Capital Requirements Directive IV (CRD 1V) requires the Group to hold Common Equity Tier 1 capital to
account for capital conservation, countercyclical and systemic risk buffers. A capital conservation buffer of
0.625% was introduced on 1 January 2016 and will increase each year to 2019 in line with regulations. As at
31 December 2018 the capital conservation buffer is set at 1.875% (2017: 1.250%).

CRD MV also introduced a new leverage ratio requirement. The leverage calculation determines a ratio based
on the relationship between Tier 1 capital and total consolidated exposure, being the sum of on-balance sheet
exposures, derivative exposures, securities financing transaction exposures and off-balance sheet exposures.
This leverage ratio is a risk-based measure that is designed to act as a supplement to risk-based capital
requirements.

Minimum requirements for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL) are applicable from 1 January 2016 and
will be phased in fully by 1 January 2020. Prior to 31 December 2019, MREL will be equal to an institution’s
minimum regulatory capital requirements. The Bank of England has provided MREL guidance to the Group,
as well as guidance on the transitional arrangements until 1 January 2020.

The Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio for the Group is 12.2% as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
12.8%), compared with a regulatory minimum of 4.5%. The Total Tier 1 capital ratio for the Group is 15.2% as
at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: 16.5%), compared with a regulatory minimum of 6.0%.

The leverage ratio for the Group (based on the Basel Ill definition of January 2014, and the CRD IV definition
of October 2014) is 9.1% (2017: 9.4%), compared to the minimum requirement of 3.0%. The Group is not
required to comply with the PRA leverage ratio framework until its retail deposits exceed the £50 billion
threshold; however, the Group maintains a prudent risk appetite for leverage.

The Total Capital Requirement of the Group is 10.27% of risk-weighted assets (2017: 10.50%)".

7 On 28 November 2018, the Prudential Regulation Authority granted permission for the Group to reduce its Total Capital Requirement.
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12. Capital risk and management (continued)

IFRS 9 transitional arrangements

The Group has elected to use a transitional approach when recognising the impact of adopting IFRS 9. The
transitional approach involves phasing in the full impact using transitional factors published in Regulation (EU)
2017/2395. This permits the Group to add back to their capital base a proportion of the impact that IFRS 9 has
upon their loss allowances during the first five years of use. The proportion that the Group may add back in
2018 is 95%. Further details are set out in Note 2.3 of the financial statements.

In the following tables, unless otherwise stated, the 2018 figures are prepared under IFRS 9 adjusted for
transitional arrangements and the 2017 figures are prepared under IAS 39.

Capital resources
The following table shows the regulatory capital resources managed by the Group and Company:

Group  Company - Group  Company-
-2018 2018 2017 2017
. £m £m . £m £m

Share capital 175.5 175.5 175.5 175.5
Share premium account 81.0 81.0 81.0 81.0
Capital redemption reserve 16.4 16.4 16.7 16.7
Merger reserve , 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6
Retained earnings , 273.9 260.8 215.2 201.2
Intangible assets (60.7) (46.4) (59.4) (44.6)
Transitional adjustment!? 25.7 25.5 - -
Common Equity Tier 1 capital 513.4 514.4 430.6 431.4
Capital securities 125.0 125.0 125.0 125.0
Additional Tier 1 capital 125.0 125.0 125.0 125.0
Total Tier 1 capital 638.4 639.4 555.6 556.4
Subordinated debt liability? 75.0 75.0 75.0 75.0
Collective impairment allowance - - 11.1 11.0
Tier 2 capital : 75.0 75.0 86.1 86.0
Total regulatory capital 713.4 714.4 641.7 642.4

1 The year ended 31 December 2018 includes adjustments for phasing in the impact of IFRS 9 adoption in accordance with EU regulatory
transitional arrangements.

2 For the purpose of regulatory capital calculations, capitalised interest of £1.1 million is excluded for Group (2017: £1.1 million) and £1.1
million is excluded for Company (2017: £1.1 million). Accrued interest is payable semi-annually and is therefore excluded from capital
reserves.
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12. Capital risk and management (continued)

Regulatory capital reconciles to total equity per the statement of financial position as follows:

Group Company " Group  Company

2018 2018 2017 2017

£m _ £m £m £m

Total regulatory capital 713.4 714.4 641.7 642.4
Subordinated debt liability? (75.0) (75.0) (75.0) (75.0)
Collective impairment allowance - - (11.1) (11.0)
Intangible assets E 60.7 46.4 59.4 44.6
Transitional adjustment? (25.7) (25.5) - -
Total equity 673.4 660.3 615.0 601.0

The following table shows the movement in Total Tier 1 capital during the year:

Group Company ~ Group = Company
2018 2018 2017 - 2017
. S £m £m £m £m
Total Tier 1 capital as at 1 January 555.6 556.4 367.5 367.6
Impact of adopting IFRS 93 (16.0) (15.7) - -
Restated balance as at 1 January 539.6 540.7 367.5 367.6
Movement in Common Equity Tier 1
capital:
(Decrease) / increase in capital redemption (0.3) (0.3) 75 75
reserve
Movement in retained earnings:
Profit for the year 82.0 - 82.6 74.2 74.9
Dividend paid - - (19.5) (19.5)
tCac:(l)Jpon paid 9n capital securities (net of (7.3) (7.3) ) _
Increase in intangible assets (1.3) (1.8) (5.8) (5.8)
Transitional adjustment? 25.7 25.5 - -
Decrease in foreseeable dividend - - 6.7 6.7
Total movement in Common Equity Tier 1
capital 98.8 98.7 63.1 63.8
Movement in Additional Tier 1 capital:
Increase in capital securities - - 125.0 125.0
Tota'll movement in Additional Tier 1 _ . 1250 125.0
capital
Total Tier 1 capital as at 31 December 638.4 639.4 555.6 556.4

1 For the purpose of regulatory capital calculations, capitalised interest of £1.1 million is excluded for Group (2017: £1.2 million) and £1.1
million is excluded for Company (2017: £1.1 million). Accrued interest is payable semi-annually and is therefore excluded from capital
reserves.

2 The year ended 31 December 2018 includes adjustments for phasing in the impact of IFRS 9 adoption in accordance with EU regulatory
transitional arrangements.

3 Further details of the impact of IFRS 9 adoption is set out in Note 2 of the financial statements.
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12. Capital risk and management (continued)

Risk-weighted assets

Group Company Group Company
2018 2018 2017 2017
£m £m £m _£m
Property Finance 1,660.7 1,660.7 1,529.1 1,529.1
Business Finance 1,464.3 1,476.2 967.2 945.3
Consumer Lending 560.2 560.2 489.8 489.8
Other 134.4 133.8 70.7 65.8
Operational risk 383.8 383.8 304.0 304.5
Credit valuation adjustment 34 34 09 09
Total risk-weighted assets 4,206.8 4,218.1 3,361.7 3,335.4
Capital ratios
Group Company Group Company
2018 2018 2017 2017
% % % - %
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 12.2 12.2 12.8 12.9
Total Tier 1 capital ratio 15.2 15.2 16.5 16.7
Total capital ratio 17.0 16.9 19.1 19.3
Leverage
Group Company Group Company
2018 2018 2017 2017
£m £m £m £m
Total Tier 1 capital 638.4 639.4 555.6 556.4
Exposure measure
Total statutory assets (excluding derivatives) 6,817.5 6,804.0 5,750.2 5,699.6
Off-balance sheet items 197.7 197.6 2247 2247
Exposure value for derivatives 6.3 6.3 2.2 2.2
Transitional adjustment? 257 25.5 - -
Other regulatory adjustments (60.7) (46.4) (59.4) (44.6)
Total exposures 6,986.5 6,987.0 59177 5,881.9
Leverage ratio (%) 9.1% 9.2% 9.4% 9.5%

Off-balance sheet items comprise pipeline and committed facilities balances which have a credit conversion

factor of medium risk attached to them.

Exposure values associated with derivatives have been reported in compliance with CRD IV rules. The
derivative measure is calculated as the replacement cost for the current exposure plus an add-on for future
exposure and is not reduced for any collateral received or grossed up for collateral provided.

Other regulatory adjustments comprise net replacement costs of securities financing transactions and

derivatives to the leverage ratio exposure.

1 The year ended 31 December 2018 includes adjustments for phasing in the impact of IFRS 9 adoption in accordance with EU regulatory

transitional arrangements.
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12. Capital risk and management (continued)

IFRS 9 transitional arrangements impact analysis

To illustrate the impact of IFRS 9 adoption, the following table provides an overview of the Group’s capital
metrics under IFRS 9 adjusted for transitional arrangements, compared to if IFRS 9 transitional arrangements
had not been applied (i.e. full adoption):

. Grdup ‘ Company '
Adjusted for IFRS 9 Adjusted for IFRS 9.
IFRS 9 transitional IFRS 9 transitional
transitional arrangements transitional arrangements
As at 31 December 2018 arrangements not applied arrangements not applied.
Capital resources
g‘r’n";m” Equity Tier 1 capital 513.4 487.7 514.4 488.9
Total Tier 1 capital (Em) 638.4 612.7 639.4 613.9
Total regulatory capital (Em) 713.4 687.7 714.4 688.9
Risk-weighted assets
Total risk-weighted assets (£m) 4,206.8 4,189.5 4,218.1 4,202.9
Capital ratios
Co.mngon Equity Tier 1 capital 12.2 1.6 12.2 1.6
ratio (%)
Total Tier 1 Capital Ratio (%) 15.2 14.6 15.2 14.6
Total capital ratio (%) 17.0 16.4 16.9 16.4
Leverage
z'gn‘g‘;'age ratio total exposures 6,986.5 6,960.8 6,987.0 6,961.5
Leverage ratio (%) 9.1 8.8 9.2 8.8

13. ICAAP, ILAAP and stress testing

The ICAAP, ILAAP and associated stress testing exercises represent important elements of the Group’s on-
going risk management processes. The results of the risk assessment contained in these documents is
embedded in the strategic planning process and risk appetite to ensure that sufficient capital and liquidity are
available to support the Group’s growth plans as well as cover its regulatory requirements at all times and
under varying circumstances.

The ICAAP and ILAAP are reviewed at least annually, and more often in the event of a material change in
capital or liquidity. On-going stress testing and scenario analysis outputs are used to inform the formal
assessments and determination of required buffers, the strategy and planning for capital and liquidity
management as well as the setting of risk appetite limits.

The Board and Executive Management have engaged in a number of exercises which have considered and
developed stress test scenarios. The output analysis enables Management to evaluate the Group’s capital
and funding resilience in the face of severe but plausible risk shocks. In addition to the UK Annual Cyclical
Scenario on capital prescribed by the Regulator, the stress tests have included a range of Group wide, muiti-
risk category stress tests, generic and idiosyncratic financial shocks as well as operational risk scenario
analyses. Stress testing is an integral part of the adequacy assessment processes for liquidity and capital,
and the setting of tolerances under the annual review of Group risk appetite.

The Group also performed reverse stress tests to help Executive Management understand the full continuum

of adverse impact and therefore the level of stress at which the Group would breach its individual capital and
liquidity guidance requirements as set by the Regulator under the ICAAP and ILAAP processes.
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14. Recovery Plan and Resolution Pack
The Group has prepared an RRP in accordance with PRA Supervisory Statements SS9/17 and SS19/13.

The plan represents the Group’s ‘Living Will' and examines in detail:

e the consequences of severe levels of stress (i.e. beyond those in the ICAAP) impacting the Group at a
future date;

e the state of preparedness and contingency plan to respond to and manage through such a set of
circumstances; and

» the options available to Executive Management to withstand and recover from such an environment.

This plan is prepared annually, or more frequently in the event of a material change in the Group's status,
capital or liquidity position. The Board of Directors and Executive Management are fully engaged in
considering the scenarios and options available for remedial actions to be undertaken.

The Board considers that the Group’s business model, its supportive owners and the diversified nature of its
business markets provides it with the flexibility to consider selective business or portfolio disposals, loan book
run off, equity raising or a combination of these actions. The Group would invoke the RRP in the event they
are required.

15. Group viability statement

The Directors have assessed the outlook for the Group over a longer period than the 12 months required by
the ‘going concern’ statement in line with good governance practice and reporting.

The assessment relied on the following:

¢ the Board considered updates to the strategy and four-year plan at various times during 2018. The Board
approved the Strategic Update in February 2019 that outlines the business plans and financial projections
from 31 December 2018 to 31 December 2022;

e the amount of capital resources available to support the delivery of the Group’s objectives following the

addition of further verified profits and completion of an issuance of £125 million of Additional Tier 1 in

December 2017;

the ICAAP and ILAAP (as detailed in Section 13);

a review and evaluation of its top and emerging risks (as reported in Section 3);

the Group funding plan and the Management plans to manage the refinance of the Term Funding Scheme;

consideration of the effect of a moving regulatory landscape on the Total Capital Requirement, Pillar 2B

and the CRD IV combined buffer requirements, together with the effect of the Group's capital contingency

plan to restore the capital position in scenarios of capital headwinds; and

o the effect of the implementation of IFRS 9, taking into account the transitional arrangements published in
Regulation (EU) 2017/2395 (as detailed in Section 12 and Note 2 of the financial statements).

The Group is not large enough to participate in the annual Bank of England concurrent stress testing
programme but has, as part of its ICAAP, performed a variety of equivalent stress tests and reverse stress
tests of its business. These include two market wide stress tests and five Group specific (idiosyncratic) stress
tests. The stress tests were derived through discussions with Executive Management and the Board, after
considering the Group's top risks. The Group also considered its funding and liquidity adequacy in the context
of the reverse stress testing. The risk of the UK leaving the EU has been considered and the Board believe
this risk was captured within its stress testing scenarios and will keep this risk under review.

The stress tests enable the Group to assess the impact of a number of severe but plausible scenarios on its
business model. In the case of reverse stress testing, the Board is able to assess scenarios and circumstances
that would render its business model unviable, thereby identifying business vulnerabilities and ensuring the
development of early warning indicators and potential mitigating actions.

The Board aims to build a sustainable lending and savings bank for SMEs and consumers over the medium
to long term. The Board monitors a four-year strategic plan that provides a robust planning tool against which
strategic decisions are made. Whilst the Board has no reason to believe that the Group will not be viable for a
four-year period, given the inherent uncertainty involved, the Board concluded that a three-year period is an
appropriate length of time to perform a viability assessment with a greater level of certainty.

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2018 64



15. Group viability statement (continued)

Based on the results of the above mentioned assessments, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over a period of at least

three years.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
in respect of the Annual Report & Accounts

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report & Accounts and the Group and Parent Company
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent Company financial statements for each
financial year. Under that law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent Company financial
statements on the same basis.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they

give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of their profit or loss for

that period. In preparing each of the Group and Parent Company financial statements, the Directors are

required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;

e state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

¢ assess the Group and Parent Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and

e use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Parent Company'’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a strategic report and
Directors’ report, that complies with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Group’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of the annual financial report

The Directors as at the date of this statement whose names are set out on page 3 confirm that to the best of

their knowledge:

o the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Group and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

e the strategic report and Directors’ report includes a fair review of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the Group and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a
whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors and is signed on its behalf by:

M-

Daniel Rushbrook
Company Secretary

18 April 2019
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Independent auditor’s report

kPG -

report

1. Our opinion iz unmodified
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Independent auditor’s

to the members of Shawbrook Bank Limited

\We were first sppointed 5 suditor Dy the directors in June
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Shawbrook Bank Limited

Independent auditor’s report (continued)

2. Key sudit matters: our assessrnent of risks 0f material misstetement
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

Group: £67.8 milions 2017; £34.6 miTion
Compeny. £57.8 enilbon; 2017: £31.6 million
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

Effective interest rate accounting

Interest psia by qustomer
Group: £331.4 milbiorg 2017: £307.1 mition
Compary: £331.1 mitliong 2017: £307.1 million

Rafer to segos 85-S6 (cocounting poicy) cnd pege 119 (fircncict diztiosuros)
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— ingep re-pef V/e eviissted the mathematics! scourecy
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profites used to spresd those c2:h Rowsz. The mest critical — Sencitivity snslyzis: We &:2e2328 and chslanged the ressonsbieness 67
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

' Provizion resting to conduct mattess

Group: £10.2 miffiors 2037: £2.3 miffion
Compeny: £10.2 miffon; 2017: 2.3 maFon

The rex

Estimation of exposure
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Our response
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

Vaksation ot goodwill

Group: £43.7 milion; 2017: £44.8 miflion
Compary: £38.3 mi¥on; 2017: £380 milfon

Rajur to poge 92 (ooxourting poscy) ono geges 134233 (fFrarcisl dZclozures)

The rek Our response

Forecast-bazed evanzation Our procedures includea:

The carnrying vaiue of $00Cwill & tested for implirment on — Our zector experience: EVIRRIRg aumptions used, in partiouisr those
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than exp =ngi3) perto inthe yeer. — Assessing Gancparency: Assesing whether the Group's izcoaTes

adout the zenzitivity of the outcome of the impsirment axessment to
change: in key actumplions refiected the fizks inherent in the vahustion
of so0awill.

Our rezults

Ve found the resulting estimate of the CITYing vekie of SooCwill to Se
scxepdle (2017: soceptadte)

AXey 2uait malter was reported in 2017 i respeq of Enpeirmer Provisioning. As 3 recumt of the Group’s Fencition Lo I7RS 9, this key sudit
mater hs Seen replaced with Expectes Credit Lozz Proveioning in 2018.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

Shawbrook Bank Limited

3. Our apptication of materiafity end an overview of the Profit befoze tax Group Materizity

2cope of our sudit £110.3:1 (2017: £99.3m) £4.5m (2017: £3.4m)
Materiality $o¢ the Group finangsl tetements 853 whole €“Sm

. wa:ma::&sm(mta.un).cmew:m ‘Whole finzexcfa$
r t0ad 1% of Group protit detore tox, Qatements matertafty
normafced to exciude thiz year's incursnes recoveries o3 (017: £5.1m)
dizciozed in note 12, 07 £43.0m, of whith it represents
4.6% (2017: 4.2%).
Materiafity for the perent Compary financisl statements
22 3 whole was set 8t £4.3m (2037 £3.14m), consistent

_ With that 6? Growp 83 the Prent company represents
100% of the Group.
V/e egreed o report to the Aucit Committee sny
corrected of uncomrected icentified mizsiatements
exceeding £0.2, in 2agition 0 other icsntified
mizzatements thet warranted reporting on quetiztive 2 Prodt before tax 02m

. B Group mazertafity Mutements reported to the

grouncs. audh commPTee (2017: €0 2cn)

Teom structure

The Group team performed the 2udit of the Group 3s &
it was 8 single ogzresated s2t of financisi informstion.
The eudit was pertormed using the materizfty level set
outedove.

We have nothing to report on §oing concem

The Oirectors have prepered the finands| stetements on
the soing concern bas a2 they €0 nAt intend to
tqucste the Compary O the Group of t0 Caaze their
OPEFEUIONS, EnC 33 they hsve CONCIICSS that the
Company's 3ng the Grovy’s finsnds! pozition means
that thic iz reatitic They have 320 conctucad that there
sre no matenisl uncentsinties et couls heve cat
signdficznt Goudt over their adifty to continue 33 8 going
€ONCEMN £0f 8T 12252  Yeor fTom the Cote of 3ppTovel of
the financial st2tements (the going oncemn period”).

Our rezponcidiity is to conczge on the sparopristens
©? the Directors’ concuzions eng, hed there deen 8
materis) uncertainty refatec to SOiRg concem, to make
reference to that in thic sudit report. However, 3z we
CInnGt Predicr 23 future events 07 conditions and a2
Dzequent events may result in ovitomes that sre
with jugse 23 thst were ? le 3t
the time they were made, the 2dzence of reference 0 3
meterist uncertainty in this suditors report & not 2
suanmef st the Sroup or the compsrzy will contivee
0 operstion.
in our evslustion of the Directors” condusions, we
conziceres the inharent risks to the Grouy’s and
Comparys duzines: model ana endlysed how those rizks
might sffect the Group's 3nc Compsny’s finanais!
resourcss of sXXity to continue operstions over the
$oing conoerm periog. The fiks thet we consicerec most
Hkely 20 sgverzely sfect the Group’s 2nd Company's
avsitedle £nsncisl resources over thic perios were:
® sveitedifty of funding anc liquicity in the event o3
market wics Rtress xcenerio induting the impect of
Brexit, ana
[ im?&@ on regy Y ceghel l:‘qu;' inthe
evert 07 2N economit SIOWTOWN OF recession.

Kb

As these were risks thst could potentizly caxt significent
cout on the Grouy's ans the Company's 23ifty to
continue 82 8 $ONS CONCEIN, We CONECEres senzidvities
orer the ievel oF Svsindle finzndel recowee: indicsted
Oy the Grouy's financisl forecssts teking ecoount of
reazonadly possidie (Sut not unresktic) soverse eftects
22 COUAC 2rice from thase risks indhidually 3nc
collectivedy 3nc evluate the s ditity of the
2ctions the DireCtors consicer they wouad t23e to
improve the pozition mhould the rexs materisize. We
3120 conzicered lezs precictadle Sut rezfictit secons
orger imascEs, such a2 the impact of Brext 2nd the
erozion of austomer or suppler corficance, which could
rezuttin @ r2pio reduction of evaitedle finsndst
rezources.
BaseC On this wWork, we 2re requirec to report to you if
we have conciuded thet the uze of the $oing concern
besis 62 socounting i insppropricte o there iz en
LNCicO0seT MATEN3] urkertsinty that may ca3t
SEgrificent Coudt over the use Of thet basis for 8 Jeniod
of 3112322 3 yels from the Geie OF 8pRTOVal Of the
finsncist statemants,
V/€ h3ve ROTRINZ tO FEDOM in Thest respects, end we Gt
Ot Bendfy SOIng concem 22 o key Sudit Mater.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

S. We have nothing to report on other i

Shawbrook Bank Limited

tion in the 1

Report

Tha cirectors ere responzidte for the other mformation in the
Annwsl Report. Our opinion on the finengsl tetements coes not
cover those reports and we GO not expre=s an audit opinion
thereon.

Our responzidiity iz to re2d the other information end, in 0oing
20, consicer whethes, dase on Our finandsl statements sucit
worK, the irlo therein is mesenslly miz or
inconcistent with the finsngal s33tements o7 ow sudit
kncatadse. Saced solely on thet work we have noticentifiec
materis) mizssteMents in the other informaton.

Strotogic report cng dysctors’ roport

Baced solely on OUr WOrk on the other informedon:

— we heve notigentifieg meteridl miztatements inthe
stratesic report 2nd the directors’ report;

— inour opinion the irformation given in thoze reports for the
finands) yeer iz conz with the finsncict st sno

— inour opinion thoce reports have been preaered in
sccordance with the Compsries Act 2005,

We hsve nothing to repart on the othes matters on whikh we

sre required to report by exceplion

Uncer the Companies Act 2006, we a7e required to report to you

2, in our opirdon

— 2cquIle SCOOUNTNG recorss have not Seen Kepk by the
perent Company, of returmns sgequate for our sutit have not
been received from dranches not visited Sy ussor

= the perent Company finandis) ents ere notin
a5f wmn:n: ing ¢ 2 eng returns; of

— certein Cicclozures of cirectors’ remunerstion spedfise by
Isw ere not mace; or

— wehsve not received all the informstion end expinstions
we require for Gur Sudit.

We heve nothing to report in these respects.

Respective responsidilities
Oiroctors’ rozsonsidifitios

As expisinec more fully in their statement se1 out on page 65,
the Directors are responsiste for: the preperslion of the £nengsl
Retements induCing Demg seUies that they give a true anS B
view; zuch intamns] QOnYo! as they Ceterming is necessery to
ensdie the preparation of financis) statements that are free from
material mizstatement, whether due to freuc o7 ervor; assessing
the Group =ng perent Compsny's siXfly to continue o2 8 5oing
concermn, cizgozing, &s epplicedie, matters refstad to going
CONCEITC 2Nt Uing the SOMS CONCern DEE 67 SCCoumting untess
they either intend to Bquicsie the Group o7 the parent Compsry
©7 10 cesze 0perstions, o7 have no realistic slRemstive DUt to €0
0.

Auditors rosponsisifties

Our objectives are to Ot2in reasoNabie Sssurance 8DOUT whether
the fnenas! tetements 32 8 whots ere free from msterist
miztstement, whether Gue to fraud of Giher irregutenities (2
delow’), 07 efror, 2ne to Esue our opinion in an auditors report.
Reasonadie amsurance is 8 high level of azsurance, but 6oes not
Susrentee thet an eudit cted in scoordance with ISAs {UX)
will 2243z Cetect 3 materisl miztatament when it exscts.
Mizatements can arize rom fraud, oWher & ties o eror
anc 2re concitered materist i, incivicuslly or in gsresste, they
coVlE reazonsdly de expectad to influsnce the ECONOMIC
gecisions of users taken ON the B3zis Of the fnentst stetements.

A fuer Gescription of our responcdifities & provided on the
FRCs wedsite ot wavw.frc ofs uk/auditorsresponsibititiss.

greguiarities - cbility to cotect

\We ioentifiec areaz of 3wz and regulstions that coulc ressonsdly
e expectsc to have d materisl effect on the finencie) stetements
from our genersl COMMEIGS1 and seCtor experiznce roush
Cizauzsish With the directors 3nd other Mmansgement (== requirec
by suditing stencards), enc from inzpection of the group’s
regulatory ang lese) commesponcence Sns disasses with the
directors and other managemnent the poliies enc procedures
regercing compisnce with Dws end regultions. Ve
communicetes igerlified tras eng regutstions Ywroughout our
team eng remsined alert to eny indicetion: of noncompliance
throughout the suciR. The pOtentizi effect of these [swz anc
reguistions on the & s vanes Fceresty.

sray, meerw?u'a,ec:oz:r_mmgu.:m. st directty
aftecttne finangal ing finang ?oms
tegit=tion (inccing resstza compenies t:gznon; dizrisutadle
profits legicistion 2nc taxation tesictelon anc we acsessed the
exient of compiance with these 3wz ancs reguistions 82 pert of
our procedures on the reisted financie! stetement items.

Seconaly, the Grow is amject to many other 3w: end
regutsticn: where the q ot non~comp e couts
have 3 matenislefect on 3

or gize ¢3 in the Snenasy
statemants, for instEnce throush the inposition of fines or
£rization or the 22 of the Group's icense to opersie. We
idendtied the following aress &s thoze mozt Exely to have zuch
en effect: specitic sreac of ugawry cspislena Equicky,
congucy, S crime en¢ certsin
aspects ol the con?arr{ l:g:t::wn mosmzna the financisl ene
reguistes asture of the Grouy's sctiaties Aucmno sngarg:
£mit the requiree sucit procedures to idendty non-comptisnce
with theze B3ws end regut=tions to engquizy of the directors eng
other mansgement anc inzpection of resulstory snc tegs!
corresponcance, if 3ry. Through these procecures, we decsme
swsre of sctusl of Rmpectes non-compiance 3ng consiceres the
effect & part of our procecures on the reistec finsngsl
stetement itemns. Rurther cet2d in respect of concuct retsted
maters is setout in the Rey audit meRer cizclozures in secton 2
of thE: report.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

Owing to the inherent (imtzYons of an 2wk, there iz &
unvoIgadle FTk that we M3y Not Asve detectad some materis!
mizztatements in the finanddi ststements, even though we have
property glanned eng pasformed our 2udit in acoordance with
suditing tangergs. For example, the funther removed non-
com;pfisnce with {3ws enc reguistions (imeguiarnities} is from the
events angd transactions refiected in the finzngal tetements, the
lesz Gkely the inherentty Bmited procedures requires by suditing
standeras would icantify it. I scdition, &3 with any Sudi?, there
remainec o higher rick 02 non-Getection of irregutarities, &3 these
mayinvole cofkizion, forgery, intentions! omizsions,

misre precentations, o7 the overrice of intemass controts. We sre
not responzidie for greventing non-compiance ans cznnot de
expected to C2tect non-compfisnce with o8 tras and regut:tons.

8. The purpose of our SUGH Wozk 2nd to whom we owe our
responsiditities
Thiz report is mege 2oiely to the Comparny’s membders, 33 8 bogy,
in acoordance with Chapter 3 0f Part 16 of the Compenies Act
2006. OuT sudit Work Ras Deen uncertsken o that we might
2ate to the CompIrvy’s MeMdETS thoze MIRers we 2re required
to :2ate to them in 3n 2uditor’s report 8nd 107 NO Other Surpose.
To the et extent permitted By law, we 6o not scept oF
2szume responsidifly o eayons other than the COMpeny anc the
Compsrys membders, &5 8 body, for Our Sudit work, for this
report, or for the opiniors we heve formed. ’

A

Sunon Ryder {Jehior Statutory Auditor)

for and on denlt of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Crarneres ACooUrcnts

13 Cenacs Square

Loncon

ELLIGL

18 Aprit 2019

KPIAG]
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Consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2018

T ) ‘ ' ' ' . 2018 - 2017
' . , _Note £m £m,
Interest income calculated using the effective interest rate method 4 356.0 308.9
Other interest and similar income 4 0.8 44
Interest expense and similar charges 5 (87.2) (75.9)
Net interest income 269.6 237.4
Operating lease rentals 10.0 12.3
Other operating lease expense (0.6) -
Depreciation on operating leases 17 (7.6) (10.6)
Net income from operating leases - 1.8 1.7
Fee and commission income 6 10.7 12.3
Fee and commission expense (9.7) (13.5)
Net fee and commission income / (expense) 1.0 (1.2)
Net gains on financial instruments mandatorily at fair value through 16(c) 0.5 0.2
profit or loss
Net operating income - 2729 238.1
Administrative expenses 7 (128.8) (113.2)
Impairment losses on financial assets’ 12 (23.2) (23.3)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 25 (10.1) (2.1)
Total operating expenses (162.1) (138.6)
Share of results of associates 20 (0.5) -
Profit before taxation 110.3 99.5
Taxation 13 (28.3) (25.3)
Profit after taxation, being total comprehensive income, 82.0 74.2

attributable to owners

~ The notes on pages 81 to 149 are an integral part of these financial statements.

1 Impairment losses on financial assets in the year ended 31 December 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with
IFRS 9. Impairment losses on financial assets in the year ended 31 December 2017 reflect impairment losses calculated in accordance
with IAS 39. As such, results are not directly comparable.
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Consolidated and Company statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2018

Group Company Group  Company
2018 2018 2017 2017
Note £m . £m £m £fm:
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 645.2 645.2 752.5 752.5
Loans and advances to banks 50.6 50.1 28.8 28.5
Loans and advances to customers 14 5,845.9 5,805.7 4,844.3 4,799.3
Investment securities 15 139.9 139.9 - -
Derivative financial assets 16(a) 1.6 1.6 1.8 1.8
Property, plant and equipment 17 39.1 38.1 39.6 39.2
Intangible assets 18 60.7 46.4 59.4 446
Deferred tax assets 19 18.0 18.0 16.7 15.7
Investment in associates 20 5.5 5.5 - -
Other assets 21 12.6 55.1 9.9 19.8
Total assets 6,819.1 6,805.6 5,752.0 5,701.4
Liabilities
Amounts due to banks 23 1,029.4 1,029.4 607.3 607.3
Customer deposits i 24 4,977.9 4,977.9 4,376.2 4,376.2
Provisions for liabilities and charges 25 11.6 11.6 2.8 28
Derivative financial liabilities 16(a) 5.7 5.7 3.4 34
Current tax liabilities 3.9 3.9 7.8 7.8
Other liabilities 26 411 40.7 63.4 26.8
Subordinated debt liability 27 76.1 76.1 76.1 76.1
Total liabilities 6,145.7 6,145.3 5,137.0 5,100.4
Equity
Share capital 28 175.5 175.5 175.5 175.5
Share premium account 81.0 81.0 81.0 81.0
Capital securities 29 125.0 125.0 125.0 125.0
Merger reserve 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6
Capital redemption reserve 16.4 16.4 16.7 16.7
Retained earnings 2739 260.8 215.2 201.2
Total equity 673.4 660.3 615.0 601.0
Total equity and liabilities 6,819.1 6,805.6 5,752.0 5,701.4.

The notes on pages 81 to 149 are an integral part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 April 2019 and were signed on its
behalf by: ,

~F s ,
fan ie Dylan Minto
Chigf Executive Sfficer Chief Financial Officer

Registered number 00388466
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Share Capital ‘
Share premium Capital Merger redemption Retained Total
Year ended 31 capital account securities reserve reserve earnings equity
December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
'::13; 1 January 175.5 81.0 125.0 1.6 16.7 2152  615.0
Impact of adoptin
IFFFR)S 91 P - - - - - (16.0) (16.0)
Restated balance as
at 1 January 2018 175.5 81.0 125.0 1.6 16.7 199.2 599.0
Profit for the year - - - - - 82.0 82.0
Coupon paid on
capital securities (net - - - - - (7.3) (7.3)
of tax)
Share-based
payments - - - - (0.3) - (0.3)
Ao at 31 December 4755 81.0 125.0 1.6 164 2739 6734
Share : Capital =~ .
Share  premium Capital Merger . redemption Retained Total
Year ended 31 capital account  securities reserve reserve  earnings equity
. December 2017 . £m £m £m fm | £m £m £m.
As at 1 January 2017 175.5 81.0 - 1.6 9.2 160.5 427.8
Profit for the year - - - - - 74.2 74.2
Dividend paid - - - - - (19.5) (19.5)
Issue of capital
securities j ) 1250 ) ) - 1280
Share-based
payments - - - - 7.5 - 7.5
’2)‘3137' 31 December 175.5 81.0 125.0 16 167 2152  615.0
The notes on pages 81 to 149 are an integr'al part of these financial statements.
1 See Note 1.6(a) and Note 2 for details.
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Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Share Capital’
Share premium Capital Merger redemption Retained Total
‘Year ended 31 capital account securities reserve reserve -earnings equity
December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
;‘:1“‘8‘ 1 January 175.5 81.0 125.0 1.6 16.7 201.2  601.0
Impact of adoptin
|F|§s o pting . - - - - (15.7) (15.7)
Restated balance as
at 1 January 2018 175.5 81.0 125.0 1.6 16.7 185.5 585.3
Profit for the year - - - - - 82.6 82.6
Coupon paid on
capital securities (net - - - - - (7.3) (7.3)
of tax)
Share-based
payments - - - - (0.3) - (0.3)
oo 231 December 4755 81.0 125.0 1.6 164 2608  660.3
Share , Capital ,
Share  premium Capital Merger  redemption Retained Total
Year ended 31 capital account  securities reserve reserve  earnings equity
December 2017 £m £m £m £m : £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2017 175.5 81.0 - 1.6 9.2 145.8 413.1
Profit for the year - - - - - 74.9 74.9
Dividend paid - - - - - (19.5) (19.5)
Issue of capital - - 125.0 - - - 125.0
securities
Share-based ) ) N ) 75 ) 75
payments
9313; 31 December 175.5 81.0 125.0 16 167 2012 601.0
The notes on pages 81 to 149 are an integral part of these financial statements.
1 See Note 1.6(a) and Note 2 for details.
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Consolidated and Company statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018

T T . o - .Group™ "Company =~  Group ~Company
! ’ 2018 2018 2017 2017
! o Note £m . £m . £fm £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 110.3 110.9 99.5 100.2
Adjustments for non-cash items and
other adjustments included within the 30(a) 39.7 39.2 54.4 54.3
statement of profit and loss
Increase in operating assets 30(b) (1,050.5) (1,087.2) (816.5) (780.9)
Increase in operating liabilities 30(c) 590.0 626.2 471.8 435.3
Tax paid (26.4) (26.4) (29.5) (29.5)
Net cash used by operating activities (336.9) (337.3) (220.3) (220.6)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment securities (139.7) (139.7) - -
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (3.6) (3.4) (1.6) (1.6)
Purchase of intangible assets (9.8) (9.8) (9.8) (9.8)
Purchase of shares in associates (6.0) (6.0) - -
Net cash used by investing activities (159.1) (158.9) (11.4) (11.4)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in amounts due to banks 4221 422.1 459.6 459.6
Payment of subordinated debt interest (6.4) (6.4) (6.4) (6.4)
Net p(qceeds from the issue of capital ) ) 125.0 125.0
securities
Couppp paid to holders of capital (9.8) (9.8) ) )
securities
Dividends paid to Shareholders - - (19.5) (19.5)
Net_ c_a.sh generated from financing 405.9 405.9 558.7 558.7
activities
Net (decrgase) / increase in cash and (90.1) (90.3) 3270 326 7
cash equivalents
‘(JZash and cash equivalents as at 1 777.0 776.7 450.0 450.0
anuary
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 30(d) 686.9 686.4 777.0 776.7
The notes on pages 81 to 149 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

1.1. Reporting entity

Shawbrook Bank Limited (the ‘Company’) is domiciled in the UK. The registered office is Lutea House, Warley
Hill Business Park, The Drive, Great Warley, Brentwood, Essex, CM13 3BE. The consolidated financial
statements of Shawbrook Bank Limited, for the year ended 31 December 2018, comprise the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the ‘Group’). The ultimate parent company is detailed in Note 32.

The principal activities of the Group are lending and savings.

1.2. Basis of accounting and measurement

Both the consolidated and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and as
adopted by the EU, including interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee and those parts of
the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. No individual statement of profit and
loss or related notes are presented for the Company as permitted by section 408 (4) of the Companies Act
2006.

As detailed in the Directors' report, the Directors believe that it remains appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as required in the valuation of
certain financial instruments which are carried at fair value.

1.3. Functional and presentation currency

- The financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest million, except where otherwise
indicated.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the spot exchange rate at the date
of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
using the spot exchange rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
restatement and settlement of such transactions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured on a historical cost basis and denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value and denominated in foreign
currencies are transtated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate at the date of valuation. Where
these assets and liabilities are held at fair value through profit and loss, exchange differences are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss.

1.4. Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the ‘Group’). The Group’s subsidiaries are detailed in Note 33.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
e has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are

deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. Accounting policies are applied consistently across the
Group. Intragroup transactions and balances are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)

1.4. Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group's interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting as detailed in
Note 1.7(n).

1.5. Presentation of risk and capital management disclosures
The disclosures required under IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ concerning the nature and extent
of risks relating to financial instruments and under IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ concerning
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital have been included within the audited section of the
risk management report. Where information is marked as ‘audited’ these are covered by the independent
auditor’s report. '

1.6. Adoption of new and revised standards and interpretations

On 1 January 2018, a number of new and revised standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board, and endorsed for use in the EU, came into effect. New and revised standards adopted in the period
that are deemed significant to the Group are outlined below. A number of other new standards are also effective
from 1 January 2018 but they do not have a material effect on the Group’s financial statements.

(a) IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

On 1 January 2018, the Group adopted the requirements of IFRS 9 as issued in July 2014 and the amendments
to IFRS 9 ‘Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’. The amendments to IFRS 9 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early adoption permitted. The Group elected to early
adopt the amendments. The new standard replaces IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’.

To reflect the difference between IFRS 9 and IAS 39, consequential amendments were also made to other
standards including IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ and IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’. The Group adopted these consequential amendments, along with IFRS 9, on 1 January 2018.

Changes in accounting policies
IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting of financial assets and liabilities. The key changes to the Group’s accounting policies are as follows:

Classification of financial assets

Under IFRS 9 there are three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income and fair value through profit or loss. The IAS 39 categories
of held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and available-for-sale are eliminated.

Classification of financial assets is dependent on the outcome of two assessments which evaluates the
business model in which financial assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics.

Full details of the accounting policies relating to the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities are set out in Note 1.7(u).

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the incurred loss model implemented under IAS 39 with an expected credit loss (ECL) model
which results in earlier recognition of credit losses. The new model applies to all financial assets not held at
fair value through profit or loss, together with financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments. Equity
instruments are not subject to impairment.

Full details of the accounting policies relating to impairment of financial assets are set out in Note 1.7(v).
Consequential amendments to IFRS 7, introduces the requirement for detailed qualitative and quantitative
information about the ECL calculations such as assumptions and inputs. These additional disclosures are set
out in Note 1.9(d) and Section 5.3 of the risk management report.

Hedge accounting

As permitted by IFRS 9, the Group has elected to continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements of IAS
39.

Full details of the accounting policies relating to hedge accounting are set out in Note 1.7(j).
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
1.6. Adoption of new and revised standards and interpretations (continued)

Consequential amendments to IFRS 7 introduce the requirement for additional and more detailed disclosures
for hedge accounting. These disclosures are required even when continuing to apply the hedge accounting
requirements of IAS 39 and are set out in Note 16(b). As permitted by IFRS 7, the Group has not provided
comparative information for periods before the date of initial application of IFRS 9 for the new disclosures.

Changes in presentation ,

Consequential amendments to IAS 1 require interest income calculated using the effective interest rate
method, as detailed in Note 1.7(b), to be presented separately on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
Comparatives have been restated accordingly to reflect this change in presentation.

Transition

The Group has adjusted the opening balance of retained earnings to reflect the application of the new
requirements of IFRS 9. In accordance with the transition requirements, comparative information is not
restated. As such, the comparative information for 2017 is reported under the requirements of IAS 39 and is
not comparable to the information presented for 2018.

Full details regarding the impact of IFRS 9 adoption and transition disclosures required by IFRS 7 are set out
in Note 2. ‘

(b) IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
On 1 January 2018, the Group adopted the requirements of IFRS 15. The new standard replaces IAS 18
‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and related interpretations.

Changes in accounting policies

IFRS 15 establishes the principles to apply when reporting information about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows from a contract with a customer. The standard introduces a five step
revenue recognition model to be applied to all contracts with customers to determine whether, how much, and
when revenue is recognised. IFRS 15 does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease
contracts, which fall under the scope of other IFRSs. It also does not apply if two companies in the same line
of business exchange non-monetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties. Of particular note, interest
income, the main source of revenue for the Group, falls outside the scope of IFRS 15.

Transition

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method (without practical expedients). As such,
the standard is applied as of 1 January 2018 with the cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings. Comparative information for 2017 is not restated.

The Group assessed its non-interest revenue streams that fall under the scope of IFRS 15 and determined
that the approach to revenue recognition was unchanged and there was no impact on the amount or timing of
revenue to be recognised as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15. As such, there is no adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings or related tax balances. Furthermore, there is no impact to the consolidated
statement of financial position or the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income. Revenue is disaggregated by reportable segment as detailed in Note 3.

(c) IFRS 2 amendment ‘Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions’
On 1 January 2018, the amendments to IFRS 2 became effective in relation to the classification and
measurement of share-based payment transactions.

Changes in accounting policies

The amendments to IFRS 2 specifically relate to: effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-
settled share-based payment transaction; classification of a share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding tax obligations; accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled.

Transition

As at 1 January 2018, the Group had no share schemes in operation. The amendments will be adopted for
any new share schemes introduced after this date.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)

1.7. Significant accounting policies

With the exception of changes to the Group’s accounting policies resulting from new and revised accounting
standards adopted in the year (see Note 1.6), the Group has consistently applied the following accounting
policies to all periods presented in the financial statements.

(a) Operating segments
See disclosures at Note 3

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports and components of the Group which are
regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker to allocate resources to segments and to assess
their performance. For this purpose, the Group Executive Committee has been determined to be the Chief
Operating Decision Maker for the Group.

The Group determines operating segments according to similar economic characteristics and the nature of its
products and services. Segment performance is evaluated on an underlying basis which excludes certain items
included in the statement of profit and loss determined under IFRS as adopted by the EU.

{b) Interest income and expense
See disclosures at Note 4 and Note 5

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Under both IFRS 9 and IAS 39, interest income and expense are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
for all instruments measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018)

The effective interest rate method calculates the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability, and
allocates the interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, or the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial instrument is measured on initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest rate method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for
any loss allowance.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments, with the exception of credit-impaired
financial assets, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, for example prepayment options, but does not consider the loss allowance. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Transaction costs include incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial instrument.

For credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using estimated future
cash flows including loss allowances.

In calculating interest income and expense, the calculated effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired), or to the amortised cost of the financial
liability.

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying a
credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. The calculation of interest
income does not revert to the gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

Where a financial asset becomes credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

A financial asset is deemed to be credit-impaired when it is in Stage 3 as detailed in Note 1.7(v).
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Under IAS 39 (prior to 1 January 2018)

Interest income and expense were recognised in the statement of profit and loss using the effective interest
rate method. The effective interest rate was the rate that exactly discounted the estimated future cash flows
through the expected life of the financial instrument (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying
amount of the financial instrument.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimated future cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument, for example prepayment options, but did not consider impairment allowances.
The calculation included all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that were an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group recognises net interest income on derivative financial instruments forming part of hedging
relationships and economic hedging relationships based on the underlying hedged items. For derivative
financial instruments hedging assets, the net interest income is recognised in interest income. For derivative
financial instruments hedging liabilities, the net interest income is recognised in interest expense.

(c) Fee and commission income
See disclosures at Note 6

Where fees and commissions are not included in the effective interest rate calculation (see Note 1.7(b)), they
are recognised as follows:

Under IFRS 15 (from 1 January 2018)

Income is recognised when performance obligations attached to the fee or commission have been satisfied.
Where income is earned from the provision of a service, for example an account maintenance fee, the
performance obligations are deemed to have been satisfied when the service is delivered. Where income is
earned upon the execution of.a significant act, for example CHAPS payment charges, the performance
obligations are deemed to have been satisfied when the act is completed for the customer.

Under IAS 18 (prior to 1 January 2018)
Income was recognised on an accruals basis when the service had been provided, or on the completion of the

act the fee related to.

(d) Administrative expenses
See disclosures at Note 7

Administrative expenses are recognised on an accruals basis. The Group’s significant accounting policies
relating to specific components of administrative expenses are as follows:

Payroll costs
Salaries and social security costs are recognised over the period in which the employees provide the service
to which the payments relate.

Cash bonus awards are recognised to the extent that the Group has a present obligation to its employees that
can be measured reliably and are recognised over the period that employees are required to provide services.

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for eligible employees and does not operate any
defined benefit pension schemes. Under the defined contribution pension arrangements, the Group pays fixed
contributions into employees’ personal pension plans, with no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The Group’s contributions to such arrangements are recognised as an expense
when they fall due.

The accounting policies for employee share-based payments are detailed in Note 1.7(e).

Depreciation and amortisation
See Note 1.7(k) for details of depreciation and Note 1.7(m) for details of amortisation.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Operating lease payments
The Group leases land and buildings under operating lease agreements. See Note 1.7(1) for details.

(e) Share-based payments
See disclosures at Note 10

The Group historically operated a number of equity-settled share-based payment schemes in respect of
services received from certain employees. All such schemes fully vested in 2017. In 2018, no share-based
payment schemes have been in operation.

Accounting policies implemented by the Group when share-based payment schemes are in operation are as
follows:

The grant date fair value of a share-based payment transaction is recognised as a payroll cost in administrative
expenses in the statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding increase in retained earnings in equity, on
a straight-line basis over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards (the
vesting period). In the absence of market prices, the grant date fair value is estimated using an appropriate
valuation technique.

The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service
and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an
expense is based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance
conditions at the vesting date.

For share-based payment awards with market performance conditions or non-vesting conditions, the grant
date fair value of the award is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences
between expected and actual outcomes.

Taxation on the amount recognised as an expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Tax
benefits of equity-settled share-based payment transactions that exceed the tax effected cumulative
remuneration expenses are considered to relate to an equity item and are recognised directly in equity.

Expected volatility is determined by reviewing the share price volatility for the expected life of each
option/scheme up to the date of the grant.

Cancellations of share-based payments during the vesting period are accounted for as accelerated vesting.
The share-based payment is recognised immediately at the amount that would have been recognised for
services received over the remainder of the vesting period, as if the service and the non-market performance
conditions were met for the cancelled awards.

(f) Taxation
See disclosures at Note 13 and Note 19

Taxation comprises current tax and deferred tax. Taxation is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided in full using the liability method on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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1.7 Significant accounting policies (continued)

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

(g) Loans and advances
See disclosures at Note 14

Loans and advances comprise both loans and advances to banks and loans and advances to customers.

Under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018)
Loans and advances are classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost. See Note 1.7(u) for details.

Under IAS 39 (prior to 1 January 2018)
Loans and advances were classified as loans and receivables. See Note 1.7(u) for details.

Included within loans and advances to customers are assets acquired in exchange for loans, instalment credit
and finance lease receivables as part of an orderly realisation. The difference between the gross receivable
and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.

(h) Investment securities
See disclosures at Note 15

Investment securities are held for long-term yield. These securities may be sold, but such sales are not
expected to be more than infrequent. As such, the Group considers these securities to be held within a
business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect the contractual cash flows. Accordingly the
securities are classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost. See Note 1.7(u) for details.

(i) Derivative financial instruments
See disclosures at Note 16

Derivatives are entered into only for the purposes of matching or eliminating risk from potential movements in
interest rates and foreign exchange rates in the Group’s assets and liabilities. Derivatives are not used for
trading or speculative purposes. The Group uses the International Swaps and Derivatives Association Master
Agreement to document these transactions in conjunction with a Credit Support Annex.

Derivatives are mandatorily classified as fair value through profit and loss. They are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at

fair value.

To calculate fair values, the Group typically uses discounted cash flow models using yield curves that are
based on observable market data. For collateralised positions, the Group uses discount curves based on
overnight indexed swap rates. For non-collateralised positions, the Group uses discount curves based on term
London Inter Bank Offer Rate (LIBOR). See Note 1.7(u) for further details.

Where derivatives are not designated as part of an accounting hedge relationship, gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised in net gains/(losses) on financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss in the statement of profit and loss. Where derivatives are designated within an accounting hedge
relationship, the treatment of the changes in fair value are as described in the hedge accounting section in
Note 1.7(j).

Derivatives are classified as financial assets where their fair value is positive and financial liabilities where their
fair value is negative. Where there is the legal right and intention to settle net, then the derivative is classified
as a net asset or net liability, as appropriate.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

The Group enters into master netting and margining agreements with all derivative counterparties. In general,
under master netting agreements the amounts owed by each counterparty that are due on a single day in
respect of all transactions outstanding under the agreement are aggregated into a single net amount payable
by one party to the other. In certain circumstances, for example when a credit event such as a default occurs,
all outstanding transactions under the agreement are aggregated into a single net amount payable by one
party to the other and the agreements terminated. ‘

Under margining agreements where the Group has a net asset position valued at current market values, in
respect of its derivatives with a counterparty, then that counterparty will place collateral, usually cash, with the
Group in order to cover the position. Similarly, the Group will place collateral, usually cash, with the
counterparty where it has a net liability position.

(i) Hedge accounting
See disclosures at Note 16

The Group applies the exemption under IFRS 9 to continue to apply the hedge accounting rules set out in IAS
39. However, the Group has adopted the requirements for additional and more detailed disclosures for hedge
accounting introduced by IFRS 9's consequential amendments to IFRS 7. As permitted by IFRS 7, the Group
has not provided comparative information for periods before the date of initial application of IFRS 9 for the new
disclosures.

IAS 39 permits hedge accounting when documentation, eligibility and testing criteria are met. As such, at the
inception of the hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship (the
link between the hedging instrument and the hedged item) to which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and
the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Group also documents the method
that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship. From March 2018, the Group changed
the methodology of hedge effectiveness testing from linear regression to the dollar-offset method. This was an
interim operational decision to enable the Group to bring hedge effectiveness testing in-house. The Group
makes an assessment, both at inception and on a periodic basis (monthly), of whether the derivatives used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value.
The hedge is deemed to be highly effective where the actual results of the hedge are within a range of 80-
125%.

Currently, the Group designates certain derivatives as fair value hedges. The Group does not currently
designate any derivatives as cash flow hedges or net investment hedges.

Fair value hedges

The Group applies fair value hedge accounting for portfolio hedges of interest rate risk. The hedged items are
portfolios that are identified as part of the risk management process. These comprise either fixed rate assets
only, or fixed rate liabilities only, in respect of a benchmark interest rate (currently mainly GBP three- month
LIBOR). Each portfolio is grouped into repricing time periods based on expected repricing dates, by scheduling
cash flows into the periods in which they are expected to occur. Interest rate swaps are used as the hedging
instruments to manage this interest rate risk to swap the fixed rate interest flows to floating.

Sources of ineffectiveness on the hedged asset portfolios is predominantly driven by the prepayment behaviour
deviating from forecast behaviour.

Sources of ineffectiveness on the hedged liabilities portfolios is driven by the repayment behaviour deviating
from forecast behaviour.

The Group also holds floating rate assets in the form of property loan portfolios. These contain non-separated
embedded purchased floors with the interest rate floors being referenced to the three-month LIBOR index, but
with a minimum reference rate of 0.75%. These floors form part of a fair value hedge of interest rate risk due
to changes in the benchmark rate. This portfolio of purchased interest rate floors is behaviouralised by the
expected prepayment behaviour. The hedging instrument is a series of sold floors (interest rate options). Any
changes to the actual prepayment behaviour compared to the expected prepayment behaviour is a source of
ineffectiveness.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges and changes in the fair value of
the hedged asset or liability attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in net gains/(losses) on financial -
instruments at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of profit and loss. The hedging gain or loss on
the hedged items are included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

Iif the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.
The cumulative fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item is amortised to the statement
of profit and loss over the remaining period to maturity.

(k) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
See disclosures at Note 17

Property, plant and equipment is divided into the following asset categories:
e Leasehold property;

e Fixtures, fittings and equipment; and

e Assets on operating leases.

Assets on operating leases refers to assets that are leased to customers under operating lease agreements.
The accounting policies relating to such assets can be found at Note 1.7(l). Accounting policies for all other
asset categories are detailed below.

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure is only capitalised when
it improves the expected future economic benefits of the asset. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are
expensed to administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the net disposal proceeds with the carrying
amount of the asset and are included in administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the asset less its estimated residual value on a straight line
basis over its estimated useful life, as follows:
Leasehold property: Life of the lease

e  Fixtures and fittings: 10 years
e Office equipment: 3-5 years
e  Motor vehicles: 4 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.
Depreciation is charged to administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

Assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date and whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where the carrying amount is not recoverable the
asset is written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are charged to
administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

() Leases

Group acting as a lessee - finance leases

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group is recorded as a finance
lease. The leased asset is initially recognised at the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments
or fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policies detailed in Note 1.7(k). Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and a reduction of
the lease liability to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Group acting as a lessee — operating leases

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating leases are not recognised in the Group’s
statement of financial position. Operating lease payments are charged to administrative expenses in the
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless a different systematic basis is
more appropriate. Where an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lessor in compensation is charged to administrative expenses in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which termination is made.

Group acting as a lessor - finance leases

Lease agreements in which the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
underlying asset to the lessee are classified as finance leases. A finance lease receivable equal to the net
investment in the lease (representing the future lease payments less profit and costs allocated to future
periods) is recognised and is presented within loans and advances to customers. Lease payments are
apportioned between interest income and a reduction of the finance lease receivable to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the receivable.

Group acting as a lessor - operating leases

Lease agreements in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the underlying asset to the lessee are classified as operating leases. The leased asset is included in
property, plant and equipment in the statement of financial position at the lower of its fair value (less costs to
sell) and the carrying amount of the lease (net of impairment allowance) at the date of exchange. Depreciation
is calculated to write off the cost of the asset less its estimated residual value on a straight line basis over the
life of the lease. Depreciation is charged to depreciation on operating leases in the statement of profit and loss.
No depreciation is charged in respect of assets held for sale. Assets on operating leases are reviewed annually
for impairment as detailed in Note 1.7(k). Impairment losses are charged to other operating lease income in
the statement of profit and loss.

Operating lease income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term unless a different systematic basis is deemed to be more appropriate. Where an operating lease is
terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made by the lessee in
compensation is charged to other operating lease income in the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which termination is made. :

Where an agreement is classified as an operating lease at inception but is subsequently reclassified as a
finance lease following a change to the agreement or an extension beyond the primary term, then the
agreement is accounted for as a finance lease.

(m) Intangible assets and amortisation
See disclosures at Note 18

Intangible assets held by the Group primarily consists of computer software and goodwill.

Computer software

Externally acquired computer software is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and any directly
attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use.

Internally developed computer software is recognised as an asset only when the Group is able to demonstrate
that the following conditions have been met:

expenditure can be reliably measured;

the product or process is technically and commercially feasible;

future economic benefits are probable; and

the Group has the intention and ability to complete development and subsequently use or sell the asset.

If these conditions are not met, expenditure is recognised in administrative expenses in the statement of profit
and loss as incurred. Capitalised costs include all costs directly attributable in preparing the asset so that it is
capable of operating in its intended manner. Internally developed computer software is measured at capitalised
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in administrative
expenses in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Computer software is amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life of between three and
seven years. Amortisation is recognised in administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The
amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Computer software is reviewed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. If such an indication exists,
the asset's recoverable amount, being the greater of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated
and compared to the carrying amount. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount an
impairment loss is recognised in administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill may arise on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the aggregate of the fair
value of consideration transferred and the fair value of any non-controlling interest over the fair value of
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment and additionally whenever there is an indication
that impairment may exist. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash generating units
{(CGUs). A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
- independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the greater of the CGUs
value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on estimated future cash flows less a
residual value, discounted at a risk-adjusted discount rate appropriate to the CGU. Where impairment is
required, the amount is recognised in administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss and cannot
subsequently be reversed.

(n) Investment in associates
See disclosures at Note 20

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
undertaking nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Investments are initially measured at cost, which includes transaction
costs, and are presented as investment in associates in the statement of financial position.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group includes its share of the post-acquisition profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. Dividends receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group'’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

Investment in associates is reviewed for impairment at each reporting date and whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where the carrying amount is not
recoverable the investment is written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount.

The Group continues to use the equity method of accounting until the date on which significant influence
ceases.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Amounts due to banks
See disclosures at Note 23

Amounts due to banks are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. See Note 1.7(u) for
details.

Amounts due to banks includes amounts drawn under the Bank of England’'s Funding for Lending Scheme
and Term Funding Scheme. The Funding for Lending Scheme and Term Funding Scheme were closed to new
drawdowns in January 2018 and February 2018 respectively.

Funding for Lending Scheme
The Funding for Lending Scheme allows the Group to borrow highly liquid UK Treasury bills in exchange for

eligible collateral.

Receipt of Treasury bills under the Funding for Lending Scheme does not involve the transfer of substantially
all the risks and rewards associated with the collateral assets, or the right to receive its related cash flows. As
such, the derecognition criteria outlined in Note 1.7(u) are not satisfied and the collateral assets continue to
be recognised in their entirety in the statement of financial position. The Treasury bills are not recognised in
the statement of financial position as ownership remains with the Bank of England.

Where Treasury bills are sold to third parties under repurchase agreements, the associated liability to the
counterparty is recognised in amounts due to banks in the statement of financial position.

Costs of borrowing are recognised in interest expense and similar charges in the statement of profit and loss
using the effective interest rate method.

Term Funding Scheme
The Term Funding Scheme allows the Group to borrow central bank reserves in exchange for eligible collateral

at rates close to Bank Base Rate.

The Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards associated with the collateral assets. As
such, the derecognition criteria outlined in Note 1.7(u) are not satisfied and the collateral assets continue to
be recognised in their entirety in the statement of financial position.

Drawings from the scheme are included in amounts due to banks in the statement of financial position.

Costs of borrowing are recognised in interest expense and similar charges in the statement of profit and loss
using the effective interest rate method.

(p) Customer deposits
See disclosures at Note 24

Customer deposits are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. See Note 1.7(u) for details.

(q) Provisions
See disclosures at Note 25

Provisions are recognised when:

* there is a present obligation arising as a result of a past event;

e itis probable (more likely than not) that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and

e areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The Group has an obligation to contribute to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme to enable it to meet
compensation claims from, in particular, retail depositors of failed banks. A provision is recognised, to the
extent that it can be reliably estimated, when the Group has an obligation and the levy is legally enforceable.
Provisions for levies are recognised when the conditions that trigger the payment of the levy are met.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Subordinated debt liability
See disclosures at Note 27

Under both IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018) and 1AS 39 (prior to 1 January 2018) the subordinated debt liability
is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost. See Note 1.7(u) for details.

Interest costs arising on the subordinated debt liability are capitalised in accordance with the agreed terms and
are incorporated into the total debt payable. Interest costs are recognised on an effective interest rate basis.

(s) Capital securities
See disclosures at Note 29

Capital instruments are classified on initial recognition as either financial liabilities or equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements. Where the contractual arrangements do not
result in the Group having a present obligation to deliver cash, another financial asset or a variable number of
equity instruments, the capital instrument is classified as an equity instrument. Where the Group does have a
present obligation, the capital instrument is classified as a financial liability.

Based on the characteristics associated with redemption and interest payments, the capital securities are
classified as equity instruments. As such, capital securities are measured at the fair value of the proceeds from
the issuance less any costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the issuance (net of applicable
tax). Distributions to holders of the capital securities are recognised when they become irrevocable and are
deducted, net of tax where applicable, from retained earnings in equity.

(t) Cash flows
See disclosures at Note 30

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances at
central banks, loans and advances to banks and short-term highly liquid debt securities with less than three
months to maturity from the date of acquisition. Loans and advances to banks comprise cash balances and
call deposits.

(u) Financial instruments
See disclosures at Note 31

Recognition
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date.

Classification and measurement
Under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018)

Financial assets
There are three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

To classify financial assets the Group performs two assessments to evaluate the business model in which
financial assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics.

The ‘business model assessment’ determines whether the Group's objective is to generate cash flows from
collecting contractual cash flows, or by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. The
assessment is performed at a portfolio level as this best reflects the way business is managed and how
information is provided to Management. The assessment is based on expected scenarios. If cash flows are
realised in a manner that is different from the original expectation, the classification of the remaining assets in
that portfolio is not changed but such information is used when assessing new financial assets going forward.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

The assessment of cash flow characteristics determines whether the contractual cash flows of the financial
asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI) and is referred
to as the ‘SPPI test’. For the purposes of the SPPI test, principal is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset at initial recognition. Interest is defined as consideration for the time value of money and credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), as well as a reasonable profit margin. The SPPI test is performed at an instrument
level based on the contractual terms of the instrument at initial recognition. Only debt instruments can meet
the SPPI test. Derivative financial instruments and equity instruments will always fail the SPPI test.

Based on the two assessments, financial assets are classified as follows:

A financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

o itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

A financial asset is classified as FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at

FVTPL:

e itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

Financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are classified as FVTPL. This includes
all derivative financial assets.

On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Equity instruments are normally classified as FVTPL. However, on initial recognition of an equity instrument
that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in the
statement of other comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

Derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset are never separated. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are reclassified only when the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets. Where this is the case, the Group reclassifies all affected financial assets
in accordance with the new business madel. The reclassification is applied prospectively.

Initial measurement of financial assets is as follows:
e Financial assets at FVTPL.: initially measured at fair value.
*  All other financial assets: initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial asset categories held by the Group is as follows:

¢ Financial assets at FVTPL: subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

e Financial assets at amortised cost: subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities

The classification of financial liabilities under IFRS 9 largely retains the requirements prescribed in IAS 39 as
detailed below. The exception is the presentation of changes in fair value due to own credit risk under other
comprehensive income for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL. The Group currently has no financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL that this applies to.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Under IAS 39 (prior to 1 January 2018)

Financial assets
The Group classified its financial assets as either loans and receivables or FVTPL. The Group had no financial

assets classified as held-to-maturity or available-for-sale.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables were defined as non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that were not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables were initially
recognised at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs. Subsequent recognition was at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment allowance.

Financial assets categorised as FVTPL were initially recognised at fair value and were subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Net gains and losses were recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
The Group classified its financial liabilities as either measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Financial liabilities categorised as measured at amortised cost were initially recognised at fair value minus
incremental direct transaction costs. Subsequent recognition was at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method.

Financial liabilities categorised as FVTPL were initially recognised at fair value and were subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Net gains and losses were recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
Derecognition is the point at which the Group ceases to recognise a financial asset or financial liability on its

statement of financial position.

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset (or a part of a financial asset) when:

¢ the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset have expired;

e the Group transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred; or _

e the Group transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the asset. If the Group
retains control of the asset it continues to recognise the transferred asset only to the extent of its
continuing involvement and derecognises the remainder.

On derecognition of a financial asset the difference between the carrying amount (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion being derecognised) and the sum of the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) when its contractual obligations
are extinguished (i.e. discharged, cancelled, or expired).

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount (or the carrying amount

allocated to the portion being derecognised) and the sum of the consideration paid (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Modifications

Financial assets

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flow of a financial asset. When
this happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the original terms.
The Group does this by considering, among others, the following factors:

° if the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows
to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay;

whether any substantial new terms are introduced that substantially affects the risk profile of the loan;
significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial difficulty;

significant change in the interest rate; and

insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.

If the terms and cash flows of the modified asset are deemed to be substantially different, the contractual rights
to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. This meets the derecognition criteria
outlined above and as such the original financial asset is derecognised and a ‘new’ financial asset is recognised
at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the derecognised financial asset and the new
financial asset with modified terms is recognised in the statement profit and loss.

Under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018)

If the cash flows of the modified asset are not deemed to be substantially different, the financial asset is not
derecognised and the Group recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset based on the revised
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises any associated gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss.
The new gross carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective
interest rate.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when there is deemed to be a substantial modification of the terms.
Where this is the case, the contractual obligations from the original financial liability are deemed to have been
extinguished. This meets the derecognition criteria outlined above and as such the original financial liability is
derecognised and a 'new’ financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the derecognised financial liability and the new financial liability with
modified terms is recognised in the statement profit and loss.

Under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018) A

When a financial liability measured at amortised cost is modified without this resulting in derecognition, a gain
or loss is recognised in the statement profit and loss. The gain or loss is calculated as the difference between
the original contractual cash flows and the modified cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

Where possible, fair value is determined with reference to quoted prices in an active market or dealer price
quotations. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Where quoted prices are not available, the Group uses generally accepted valuation techniques to estimate
fair value. The valuation techniques used include discounted cash flow models and Black-Scholes option
pricing. Wherever possible these valuation techniques use independently sourced market parameters, such
as-interest rate yield curves, option volatilities and currency rates. This reduces the need for Management
judgement and estimation, as well as the uncertainty related with the estimated fair value.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

On initial recognition, the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument is normally transaction price
(i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received). If the Group determines that the fair value on initial
recognition differs from the transaction price, the Group accounts for such differences as follows:

e if fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or based
on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss on initial recognition (i.e. day 1 profit or loss);

¢ inall other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day 1 profit
or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or liability). Subsequently,
the deferred gain or loss will be released to the statement of profit and loss on an appropriate basis over
the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market
data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the Group measures assets at
bid price and liabilities at ask price.

The Group does not adjust fair value estimates derived from models for any factors such as credit risk, liquidity
risk or model uncertainties.

For measuring derivatives that might change the classification from being an asset to a liability or vice versa,
fair values do not take into consideration either the credit valuation adjustment or the debit valuation adjustment
as the Group’s portfolio is fully collateralised and it is deemed to be immaterial.

The Group uses a fair value hierarchy that categorises financial instruments into three different levels as
detailed in Note 31(b). Levels are reviewed at each reporting-date and this determines whether transfers
between levels are required.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(v) Impairment of financial assets
See disclosures at Note 12

Under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018)

Measurement of ECLs

Impairment of financial assets is calculated using a forward looking ECL model. The Group records an
allowance for ECLs (‘loss allowance’) for all financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with an allowance for
ECLs for financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment.

ECLs are an unbiased probability-weighted estimate of credit losses determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes. They are measured in a manner that reflects the time value of money and uses reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Measurement of ECLs depends on the ‘stage’ of the financial asset, based on changes in credit risk occurring

since initial recognition, as described below:

e Stage 1: when a financial asset is first recognised it is assigned to Stage 1. If there is no significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition the financial asset remains in Stage 1. Stage 1 also includes
financial assets where the credit risk has improved and the financial asset has been reclassified back
from Stage 2. For financial assets in Stage 1, a 12-month ECL is recognised.

e Stage 2: when a financial asset shows a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition it is
moved to Stage 2. Stage 2 also includes financial assets where the credit risk has improved and the
financial asset has been reclassified back from Stage 3. For financial assets in Stage 2, a lifetime ECL is
recognised.

e Stage 3: when there is objective evidence of impairment and the financial asset is considered to be in
default, or otherwise credit-impaired, it is moved to Stage 3. For financial assets in Stage 3, a lifetime ECL
is recognised.

e Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI): POCI assets are financial assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition. On initial recognition they are recorded at fair value. ECLs are only
recognised or released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the ECLs. Their ECL is always
measured on a lifetime basis.

In relation to the above: ‘

o Lifetime ECL is defined as ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected behavioural
life of a financial instrument.

e 12-month ECL is defined as the portion of lifetime ECL that will result if a default occurs in the 12 months
after the reporting date, weighted by the probability of that default occurring.

For loan commitments, where the loan commitment relates to the undrawn component of a facility, it is
assigned to the same stage as the drawn component of the facility. For pipeline loans, the loan commitment
is assigned to Stage 1.

For financial guarantee contracts, the Group assigns a stage using the definitions described above.

A summary of ECL measurement is as follows:

o Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls. Cash shortfalls are the difference between the contractual cash flows due to the Group and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive.

« Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.

+ Financial guarantee contracts: as the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts
that the Group expects to recover.

¢ Loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows the Group expects to receive.

Credit-impaired is defined by the Group as a financial asset in Stage 3 as detailed above.

The Group can elect as an accounting policy choice, to use the ‘simplified approach’ for trade receivables,
contract assets and lease receivables. The Group has chosen not to use the simplified approach.

Further details of the measurement and calculation of ECLs are set out in Section 5.3 of the risk management
report.
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Modifications

If a financial asset is modified, an assessment is made to determine whether the asset should be derecognised

as detailed in Note 1.7(u). Subsequently ECLs are measured as follows:

o if the modification does not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected cash flows
arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing
asset; or

e if the modification does result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair value of the
new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its derecognition.
This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are
discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original effective
interest rate of the existing financial asset. The date of renegotiation is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for impairment calculation purposes, including in determining whether a significant increase
in credit risk has occurred and whether the new financial asset is deemed to be credit-impaired on initial
recognition.

Write-offs

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the borrower does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. Write-
offs constitute a derecognition event as detailed in Note 1.7(u). Financial assets that are written off can still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
Amounts subsequently recovered on assets previously written off are recognised in impairment losses on
financial assets in the statement of profit and loss.

Presentation of loss allowances in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

e financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
financial assets;

o financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments: generally, as a provision; and
where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Group cannot
identify the ECL on the undrawn loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn
component: the Group presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount
is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the
loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision.

Under IAS 39 (prior to 1 January 2018)

Objective evidence of impairment

On an ongoing basis, the Group assessed whether there was objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets was impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets was impaired and impairment
losses incurred if, and only if, there was objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) had an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that could be
reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group used to determine whether there was objective evidence of an impairment loss
included, but was not limited to, the following:

e delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;

cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower;

initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

the customer being granted a concession that would otherwise not be considered; and

observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the portfolio.
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If there was objective evidence that an impairment loss on an individual financial asset had occurred, the
amount of the loss was measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset was reduced through the use of an allowance account (‘impairment allowance’) and the
amount of the loss was recognised in impairment losses on financial assets in the statement of profit and loss.
If a loan had a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss was the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.

Individual and collective impairment

If the Group determined that no objective evidence of impairment existed for an individually assessed financial

asset, whether significant or not, it included the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk

characteristics and collectively assessed the group for impairment. Objective evidence of impairment of a

portfolio of receivables existed if objective data indicated a decrease in expected future cash flows from the

collection of receivables and the decrease could be measured reliably but could not be identified with the
individual receivables in the portfolio. When this was the case a collective provision was applied.

Modifications

If a financial asset was modified, an assessment was made to determine whether the asset should be

derecognised as detailed in Note 1.7(u). Subsequently impairments were measured as follows:

o if the modified asset did not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the estimated cash flows
arising from the modified financial asset were included in the measurement of the existing asset based
on their expected timing and amounts discounted at the original effective interest rate of the existing
financial asset; or

o if the modified asset did result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair value of the
new asset was treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognition. This amount was then discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting
date using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

Write-offs '

When a loan or receivable was not economic to recover, it was written off against the related impairment
allowance. Such loans were written off after all the necessary procedures had been completed and the amount
of the loss had been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off were recognised
directly in the statement of profit and loss through the impairment losses on financial assets line as post write-
off recoveries. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreased and the decrease could
be related objectively to an event that occurred after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the customer’s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss was reversed by adjusting the
impairment allowance. The amount of reversal was recognised in impairment losses on financial assets in the
statement of profit and loss.

(w) Contingent liabilities
See disclosures at Note 37

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence, or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. Alternatively, they are present obligations that have arisen from past events where the outflow
of resources is uncertain or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the
financial statements but are disclosed, unless the probability of settlement is remote.
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(x) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments
See disclosures at Note 38

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. They are included in provisions for liabilities and charges in the statement
of financial position. Initially financial guarantees are measured at their fair value, being the premium received.
Subsequently, financial guarantees are measured as follows:

Under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018)

At the higher of the amount initially recognised less the cumulative amount of income recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15, and the amount of loss allowance
determined in accordance with the policies set out in Note 1.7(v).

Under IAS 39 (prior to 1 January 2018)
At the higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, and the present value of expected
payment to settle the liability when a payment under the contract becomes probable.

Loan commitments

Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. The
Group has not provided any commitment to provide loans at below-market interest rate, or that can be settled
net in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

Under IFRS 9 (from 1 January 2018)
The Group recognises loss allowances in accordance with the policies set out in Note 1.7(v). Loss allowances
are included within provisions for liabilities and charges in the statement of financial position.

Under IAS 39 (prior to 1 January 2018)
The Group recognised a provision in the statement of financial position only when the contract was considered

onerous.
(y) Other reserves

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the fair value of the consideration given in excess of the nominal value of the
ordinary shares issued in acquisitions made by the issue of shares.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve is a statutory, non-distributable reserve into which amounts are transferred
following the redemption or purchase of a company's own shares. The provisions relating to the capital
redemption reserve are set out in section 733 of the Companies Act 2006.

1.8. New and revised standards and interpretations not yet adopted
A number of new and revised standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board have not yet
come into effect. Those deemed relevant to the Group are as follows:

(a) IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 becomes effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption
is permitted if IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ has also been applied. The Group will adopt
IFRS 16 from its effective date of 1 January 2019 and will not early adopt. The new standard will replace IAS
17 ‘Leases’ and related interpretations.

IFRS 16 will apply to all leasing arrangements and sets outs the requirements for both lessor and lessee
accounting.

The Group will adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. As such, the
cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings. Comparative information will not be restated.
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1.8. New and revised standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

The Group will utilise the practical expedient set out in IFRS 16 to not reassess whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease at the date of initial application and will only apply the new requirements of IFRS 16 to
contracts previously identified as leases under IAS 17.

The Group has assessed the estimated impact of IFRS 16 adoption, as described below.

Lessor accounting

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is largely unchanged from IAS 17 and lessors will continue to classify leases
as either finance or operating leases. Based on information currently available, no significant impact is
expected for leases in which the Group acts as a lessor.

Lessee accounting

IFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model that requires a lessee to recognise all leases (subject to
certain optional exemptions) on-balance sheet. A lessee will recognise a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There
are optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value items.

On initial application of IFRS 16, lease liabilities will be recognised at the present value of the remaining lease
payments and the right-of-use asset will be recognised at the amount of the lease liability.

The Group will apply the optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value items. As such,
the Group will not apply the new requirement of IFRS 16 to leases for which the lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application. Lease payments under such contracts will continue to be recognised
directly to administrative expenses on a straight line basis.

No significant impact is expected in relation to leases currently classified as finance leases under IAS 17.

In relation to leases currently classified as operating leases under IAS 17, based on information currently

available, the Group estimates it will recognise:

e additional lease liabilities of £10.2 million, representing the present value of future lease payments for
leasehold properties.

e right-of-use assets of £10.2 million, representing the amount of the lease liability.

Under IFRS 16, the income statement charge comprises the right-of-use asset depreciation charge and
interest expense on the lease liability. When comparing the income statement charge under IFRS 16 and IAS
17, the total income statement charge over the life of the lease will not change, however the Group estimates
there will be immaterial timing differences when comparing the annual charge of up to £0.1 million per annum.

1.9. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires Management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are as follows:

(a) Effective interest rate
See accounting policies at Note 1.7(b) and disclosures at Note 4

Under both IFRS 9 and IAS 39, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method.
Management must use judgement to estimate the expected life of each instrument and hence the expected
cash flows relating to it. Management reviews the expected lives on a segmental basis, whereby products of
a similar nature are grouped into cohorts that exhibit homogenous behavioural attributes.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
1.9. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Key assumptions

The key assumption applied by Management in the effective interest rate methodology is the behavioural life
of the assets. The expected life behaviours are subjected to changes in internal and external factors and may
result in adjustments to the carrying amount of loans which must be recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. The effective interest rate behavioural models are based on market trends and experience. The actual
behaviour of the portfolios is compared to the modelled behaviour on a quarterly basis and the modelled
behaviours are adjusted if the modelled behaviour materially deviates from actual behaviour, with adjustments
recognised in net interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis was performed to assess the impact of a 10% decrease in the redemption curves used. A
10% decrease in the redemption curves would result in a net expense to the Group’s statement of profit and
loss of £0.7 million. This is attributable to the Property Finance and Consumer Lending divisions. Property
Finance would see income of £0.3 million, mainly due to income received from early settlement fees. Consumer
Lending would see an expense of £1.0 million, mainly attributable to the acceleration of the amortisation of
broker commissions.

(b) Impairment testing of goodwill
See accounting policies at Note 1.7(m) and disclosures at Note 18

The review of goodwill for impairment reflects Management'’s best estimate of future cash flows of the Group’s
cash generating units (CGUs) and the rates used to discount these cash flows. Both these variables are
subject to judgement and estimation uncertainty as follows:

o the future cash flows of the CGUs are sensitive to projected cash flows based on the forecasts and
assumptions regarding the projected periods and the long-term pattern of sustainable cash flows
thereafter,;

o the rates used to discount future expected cash flows can have a significant effect on their valuations and
are based on the price-to-book ratio method which incorporates inputs reflecting a number of variables.

An impairment is recognised if impairment testing finds that the carrying amount of a CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the CGU is calculated based on its value in use, determined
by discounting the future cash flows (post-tax profits) to be generated from its continuing use. Forecast cash
flows are reduced by any earnings retained to support the growth in the underlying CGU’s loan books through
higher regulatory capital requirements. Forecast post-tax profits are based on expectations of future outcomes
taking into account past experience and adjusted for anticipated revenue growth.

Key assumptions
The key assumptions used in the calculation of value in use are as follows:

Discount rate

The post-tax discount rate is an estimate of the return that investors would require if they were to choose an
investment that would generate cash flows of amount, timing and risk profile equivalent to those that the entity
expects to derive from the asset. The Group calculates discount rates using the price-to-book ratio method
which incorporates target return on equity, growth rate and price-to-book ratio. The discount rate for each CGU
is adjusted to reflect the risks inherent to the individual CGU. Discount rates used were as follows:

2018 - 2017
. Post-tax Pre-tax’ Post-tax Pre-tax'
Discount rate
Property Finance 12.7% 15.1% 12.0% 16.6%
Business Finance 13.2% 15.9% 12.5% 16.3%
Consumer Lending 13.7% 16.3% 13.0% 16.8%

1 Management applies post-tax discount rates to post-tax cash flows when testing the CGU for impairment. The pre-tax discount rate is
disclosed in accordance with IAS 36.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
1.9. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Cash flow period
Five years of cash flows (post-tax profits) (2017: four years) are included in the discounted cash flow model

based on the Group’s business plan.

Terminal value growth rate

A terminal value growth rate is applied into perpetuity to extrapolate cash flows beyond the cash flow period.
The terminal value growth rate of 2.0% (2017: 2.0%) is estimated by Management taking into account rates
disclosed by comparable institutions.

Sensitivity analysis

The key assumptions described above may change in response to changes in economic and market
conditions. Sensitivity analysis was performed for the Property Finance and Business Finance CGUs to assess
the impact of reasonable changes in the discount rate, cash flows and terminal value growth rate on the
outcome of impairment testing. As detailed in Note 18, Goodwill in the Consumer Lending CGU has been fully
impaired in the year ended 31 December 2018. As such, no sensitivity analysis was required for this CGU.

Sensitivity analysis on the discount rate identified that an increase of 2.0% to the individual CGU's discount
rate would not result in any impairment to goodwill.

Sensitivity analysis on the cash flows identified that a decrease in cash flows of 10.0% would not result in any
impairment to goodwill. - :

Sensitivity analysis on the terminal value growth rate identified that a decrease in the terminal value growth
rate to 0% would not result in any impairment to goodwill.

(c) Customer remediation and conduct issues
See accounting policies at Note 1.7(q) and disclosures at Note 25

Provisions have been recognised in respect of potential instances of misrepresentation or breaches of contract
by suppliers where the suppliers have become insolvent, and therefore the Group has limited recourse to those
suppliers. The provisions represent Management's best estimate of the likely costs.

Key assumptions
The key factors driving the provision are the estimated number of complaints and the estimated redress costs

per case.

Key considerations in deriving the estimated number of complaints include:

e complaint volumes taking into account both the status of current claims and Management's estimate of
potential future claims based on existing complaint data;

e the origin of the claim. For example, if the claim relates to a solvent or insolvent supplier, or if the route of
the claim is via a claims management company;

e the statutory limitation period (6 years from the date of the loan); and
Management's estimate of claim uphold rates based on existing complaint data.

Key considerations in deriving the estimated redress costs per case include:

e Management's expected method of redress should claims be upheld based on agreed redress strategies;
and

e Management's estimate of legal and complaint handling costs based on existing complaint data.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
1.9. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(d) Impairment losses on financial assets
See accounting policies at Note 1.7(v) and disclosures at Note 12

The measurement of ECLs prescribed by the new requirements of IFRS 9 requires a number of significant
judgements. ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Specifically, judgements and estimation
uncertainties relate to assessment of whether credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition, incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurement of ECLs and key
assumptions used in estimating recoverable cash flows. These estimates are driven by a number of factors
that are subject to change which may result in different levels of loss allowances.

Key assumptions and sensitivities associated with ECL calculations are detailed in Section 5.3 of the risk
management report.

(e) Investment in associates
See accounting policies at Note 1.7(n) and disclosures at Note 20

Note 20 describes that The Mortgage Lender Limited is an associate of the Group, even though the Group
holds only 19.99% of ownership interest. Management concluded the Group has significant influence as
demonstrated by its representation on the-board of directors, the expectation for material transactions
occurring between the Group and the associate and the capacity for the Group to influence policy-making
processes and decisions.

2. IFRS 9 adoption

On 1 January 2018, the Group adopted the requirements of IFRS 9 and the amendments to IFRS 9
‘Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’ (see Note 1.6(a)).

Impacts of adopting IFRS 9 and transition disclosures are provided in the following sections.
2.1. Classification and measurement

{a) Impact of adopting IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018

Financial assets

As detailed in Note 1.7(u), classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is dependent on the outcome of two
assessments which evaluates the business model in which financial assets are managed (the ‘business model
assessment’) and their cash flow characteristics (the ‘SPPI test').

Under IFRS 9, derivative financial instruments are classified as mandatorily at FVTPL as they fail the SPPI
test. This is unchanged from the classification under IAS 39.

In relation to debt instruments, the outcomes of the business model assessment and SPPI test are summarised

below:

e Business model assessment: this assessment is performed at a portfolio level. For all portfolios, the
Group concluded that the objective of Management's strategy is to hold the assets to earn contractual
cash flows. The intention is not to sell the assets. For portfolios where sales have taken place in the past,
Management concluded that the sales were due to increases in credit risk for the purposes of managing
credit risk.

e SPPI test: the Group considered the contractual terms at an instrument level and concluded that the
contractual cash flows of the debt instruments were SPPI.

The conclusions from the business model assessment and SPPI test mean debt instruments meet the
conditions to be classified as measured at amortised cost. This is unchanged from the loans and receivables
classification under’|AS 39.
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2. IFRS 9 adoption (continued)
2.1. Classification and measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities :

There were no changes in the classification and measurement of financial liabilities. The Group continues to
classify all financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost, with the exception of derivatives which are
mandatorily at FVTPL.

(b) Transition disclosures

The following table shows the original measurement categories in accordance with IAS 39 and the new
measurement categories under IFRS 9 for the Group and Company's financial assets and financial liabilities
as at 1 January 2018:

‘Original carrying ~ 'New carrying
amount under amount under
1AS 39 as at IFRS 9 as at
Original ‘New 31 December 1 January
classification  classification 2017 2018
Group under IAS 39 _under IFRS 9 £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central Loa.ns and Amortised 7525 762.5
banks receivables cost
Loans and advances to Loa.ns and Amortised 28.8 28.8
banks receivables cost
Loans and advances to Loa.ns and Amortised 48443 4,823.2
customers receivables cost
T . Mandatorily at
Derivative financial assets FVTPL FVTPL 1.8 1.8
Total financial assets 5,627.4 5,606.3
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to banks Amortised cost Amort::soes(: 607.3 607.3
Customer deposits Amortised cost Amort::soesc: 4,376.2 4,376.2
T R Mandatorily at
Derivative financial liabilities FVTPL FVTPL 34 34
Subordinated debt liability ~ Amortised cost A'“°”";es‘: 76.1 76.1
Total financial liabilities 5,063.0 5,063.0
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2. IFRS 9 adoption (continued)

2.1. Classification and measurement (continued)

Original carrying

amount under

‘New carrying
amount under

IAS 39 as at IFRS 9 as at
Original New 31 December 1 January
classification classification 2017 2018

‘Company under IAS 39  under IFRS 9 £m £m.
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central Loa_ns and Amortised 7525 752.5
banks receivables cost
Loans and advances to Loans and Amortised
banks receivables cost 285 28.5
Loans and advances to Loa.ns and Amortised 4799.3 4778.5
customers receivables cost

R, . Mandatorily at
Derivative financial assets FVTPL FVTPL 1.8 1.8
Total financial assets 5,5682.1 5,561.3
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to banks Amortised cost Amort::soesti 607.3 607.3
Customer deposits Amortised cost Amort::soesti 4,376.2 4,376.2

L L ess Mandatorily at
Derivative financial liabilities FVTPL FVTPL 3.4 3.4
Subordinated debt liability Amortised cost A"‘°"foes‘: 76.1 76.1
Total financial liabilities 5,063.0 5,063.0

There were no reclassifications as a result of the transition to IFRS 9. Going forward it is expected that
reclassifications will be very rare, occurring only when there is a change in the business model for managing

financial assets.
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2. IFRS 9 adoption (continued)

2.1. Classification and measurement (continued)

The following table sets out the impact of adopting IFRS 9 on the statement of financial position carrying
amounts and retained earnings as at 1 January 2018. Only balances impacted by the transition to IFRS 9 are
included in the table; all other balances are unchanged.

IAS 39 IFRS 9 Retained
carrying carrying profits
amount as at amount as at impact as at’
31 December Reclassifi Remeasu- 1 January 1 January
2017 -cation rement 2018 2018
.Group £m . £m £m £m £m
Assets
Loans and advances to
customers
Opening balance 4,844.3 - - 4,844.3
Remeasurements:
Expected credit loss - - (21.1) (21.1) (21.1)
Total loans and advances to
customers 48443 - (21.1) 4,823.2 (21.1)
Deferred tax assets
Opening balance 15.7 - - 15.7
Remeasurements:
Expected credit loss - - 5.6 5.6 5.6
Total deferred tax assets 16.7 - 5.6 21.3 5.6
Total change to assets N/a - (15.5) N/a (15.5)
Liabilities
Provisions for liabilities and
charges
Opening balance 2.8 - - 2.8
Remeasurements:
Expected credit loss - - 0.5 0.5 (0.5)
Total provisions for
liabilities and charges 28 ) 0.5 33 (0.5)
Total change to liabilities N/a - 0.5 N/a (0.5)
Equity
Retained earnings
Opening balance 215.2 - - 215.2
Increases/decreases:
Remeasurements due to
impairment (after tax) - - (16.0) (16.0) (16.0)
Total retained earnings 215.2 - (16.0) 199.2 (16.0)
Total change to equity N/a - (16.0) N/a (16.0)
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2. IFRS 9 adoption (continued)

2.1. Classification and measurement (continued)

IAS39 IFRS 9 Retained
carrying carrying profits
amount as at amount as at impact as at
31 December Reclassifi Remeasu- 1 January 1 January
2017 -cation rement 2018 2018
Company v , ‘ £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Loans and advances to
customers
Opening balance 4,799.3 - - 4,799.3
Remeasurements:
Expected credit loss - - (20.8) (20.8) (20.8)
Total loans and advances to
customers 4,799.3 - (20.8) 4,778.5 (20.8)
Deferred tax assets '
Opening balance 15.7 - - 15.7
Remeasurements: ‘
Expected credit loss - - 5.6 5.6 5.6
Total deferred tax assets 15.7 - 5.6 21.3 5.6
Total change to assets N/a - (15.2) N/a (15.2)
Liabilities
Provisions for liabilities and
charges
Opening balance 28 - - 28
Remeasurements:
Expected credit loss - - 0.5 0.5 (0.5)
Total provisions for
liabilities and charges 28 - 0.5 3.3 (0.5)
Total change to liabilities N/a - 0.5 N/a (0.5)
Equity
Retained earnings
Opening balance 201.2 - - 201.2
Increases/decreases:
Remeasurements due to ‘
impairment (after tax) ) ) (15.7) (15.7) (15.7)
Total retained earnings 201.2 - (15.7) 185.5 (15.7)
Total change to equity N/a - (15.7) N/a (15.7)
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2. IFRS 9 adoption (continued)

2.2. Impairment of financial assets

(a) Impact of adopting IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018

The most significant impact on the Group’s financial statements from the adoption of IFRS 9 results from the
new impairment requirements as detailed in Note 1.7(v). On the adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
increase in loss allowance (before tax) was £21.6 million for the Group and £21.3 million for the Company.
The associated deferred tax impact was an increase in deferred tax assets of £5.6 million for both the Group
and the Company.

The deferred tax adjustment is spread, for tax purposes, on a straight-line basis over the following ten years
with the first accounting period beginning on 1 January 2018. This is with the exception of financial instruments
maturing in the first accounting period, which are taxed or relieved in full in that accounting period.

(b) Transition disclosures

The following table reconciles the closing impairment allowance for financial assets in accordance with IAS 39
and provisions for financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments in accordance with IAS 37 as at 31
December 2017, to the opening loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018:

: Of which:_
Impairment '
allowance
under |AS 39 Loss
/ provision ‘ allowance:
under |AS 37 under IFRS'9
as at as at
31 December Reclassi- 'Remeasu- 1January Stage Stage Stage
2017  fication rement 2018 1 2 3
Group .. £m _£m £m . £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Loans and advances
to customers 31.6 - 211 52.7 17.3 12.5 229
Total financial ~
assets 31.6 - 21.1 52.7 17.3 12.5 229
Loan commitments - - 0.5 0.5 0.5 - -
Total allowance 31.6 . 21.6 532 17.8 125 229

and provision

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2018 110



2. IFRS 9 adoption (continued)

2.2. Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Of which:
Impairment
allowance
under IAS 39 Loss
/ provision allowance
under IAS 37 under IFRS 9
as at as at
31 December Reclassi- Remeasu- 1January Stage Stage Stage
2017 fication rement 2018 1 2 3
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Loans and advances :
to customers 31.5 - 20.8 52.3 16.9 125 229
Total financial 315 - 208 523 169 125 229
assets
Loan commitments - - 0.5 0.5 0.5 - -
Total allowance 31.5 . 21.3 528 174 125 229

and provision

Allowances for cash and balances at central banks and loans and advances to banks are immaterial, totalling
less than £0.1 million for both the Group and the Company.

Allowance for financial guarantee contracts is £nil because the contract is fully collateralised through a first
fixed charge over a blocked deposit account. As such, the amount the Group should have to pay should the
guarantee be called upon is £nil.

2.3. Regulatory capital

(a) Impact of adopting IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018

The Group’s regulator has issued guidelines regarding transition requirements when adopting IFRS 9. The

guidelines allow a choice of two approaches to recognise the impact of adopting IFRS 9 on regulatory capital:

e Transitional: this involves phasing in the full impact using transitional factors published in Regulation
(EU) 2017/2395; or

* Full adoption: recognising the full impact on the day of adoption.

The Group has elected the transitional approach and will phase in the full impact using the EU regulatory
transitional arrangements. This permits the Group to add back to their capital base a proportion of the impact
that IFRS 9 has upon their loss allowances during the first five years of use. The proportion that the Group
may add back starts at 95% in 2018 and reduces to 25% by 2022. The impact in relation to loss allowances is
the sum of the increase in loss allowances on day one of IFRS 9 adoption plus any subsequent increase in
ECLs in the non-credit- impaired book thereafter. Any add-back must be tax-affected and accompanied by a
recalculation of capital deduction thresholds, exposure and risk weighted assets.
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2. IFRS 9 adoption (continued)
2.3. Regulatory capital (continued)
(b) Transition disclosures

Group

The following table shows the Group’s total regulatory capital as at 1 January 2018 calculated under IAS 39
compared with IFRS 9 full adoption and IFRS 9 transitional.

Asat ' ~ As at
31 December 1 January
2017 2018
"IFRS 9 IFRS 9 full
» IAS 39 transitional - adoption
Group . : ‘ £m . £m £m.
Share capital 175.5 175.5 175.5
Share premium account 81.0 81.0 81.0
Merger reserve 1.6 1.6 1.6
Capital redemption reserve 16.7 16.7 16.7
Retained earnings 215.2 199.2 199.2
Intangible assets (59.4) (59.4) (59.4)
Transitional adjustment - 15.2 -
Common Equity Tier 1 capital 430.6 429.8 414.6
Capital securities 125.0 125.0 125.0
Additional Tier 1 capital 124.0 125.0 125.0
Total Tier 1 capital 555.6 554.8 539.6
Subordinated debt liability’ 75.0 75.0 75.0
Collective impairment allowance 111 - -
Tier 2 capital 86.1 75.0 75.0
Total regulatory capital 641.7 629.8 614.6

Full adoption

Full adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 results in a reduction in the Group’s Common Equity Tler 1 capital
of £16.0 million. This is as a result of the following movements:

e a£21.6 million reduction in retained earnings due to a rise in ECLs;-and

* af£5.6 million increase in retained earnings due to the impact of these changes on deferred tax.

Total regulatory capital is reduced by an additional £11.1 million due to the reduction of the collective
impairment allowance included in Tier 2 capital. This results in an overall reduction to total regulatory capital
of £27.1 million.

The corresponding impact of full adoption of IFRS 9 to risk-weighted assets is a decrease of £24.8 million.

Transitional

Under the EU regulatory transitional arrangements, the add back is £15.2 million. This results in an increase
in Common Equity Tier 1 capital and total regulatory capital of £15.2 million, when comparing to full adoption.
The corresponding impact of the transitional adjustment to risk-weighted assets is an increase of £12.6 million,
when comparing to full adoption.

1 Excludes capitalised interest of £1.1 million. Accrued interest is payable semi-annually and is therefore excluded from capital reserves.
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2. IFRS 9 adoption (continued)
2.3. Regulatory capital (continued)
Company

The following table shows the Company's total regulatory capital as at 1 January 2018 calculated under IAS
39 compared with IFRS 9 full adoption and IFRS 9 transitional.

As at ‘ ‘As at

31 December 1 January
S - ! 4 2018
IFRS 9 IFRS 9 full

IAS 39 transitional adoption

Company £m £m £m
Share capital 175.5 175.5 175.5
Share premium account 81.0 81.0 81.0
Merger reserve 1.6 1.6 1.6
Capital redemption reserve 16.7 16.7 16.7
Retained earnings 201.2 185.5 185.5
Intangible assets (44.6) (44.6) (44.6)
Transitional adjustment - 14.9 -
Common Equity Tier 1 capital 431.4 430.6 415.7
Capital securities 125.0 125.0 125.0
Additional Tier 1 capital 125.0 125.0 125.0
Total Tier 1 capital 556.4 555.6 540.7
Subordinated debt liability’ 75.0 75.0 75.0
Collective impairment allowance 11.0 - -
Tier 2 capital 86.0 75.0 75.0
Total regulatory capital 642.4 630.6 615.7

Full adoption

Full adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 results in a reduction in the Company’s Common Equnty Tier 1
capital of £15.7 million. This is as a result of the following movements:

e a£21.3 million reduction in retained earnings due to a rise in ECLs; and

e a£5.6 million increase in retained earnings due to the impact of these changes on deferred tax.

Total regulatory capital is reduced by an additional £11.0 million due to the reduction of the collective
impairment allowance included in Tier 2 capital. This results in an overall reduction to total regulatory capital
of £26.7 million.

The corresponding impact of full adoption of IFRS 9 to risk-weighted assets is a decrease of £24.5 million.

Transitional

Under the EU regulatory transitional arrangements, the add back is £14.9 million. This results in an increase
in Common Equity Tier 1 capital and total regulatory capital of £14.9 million, when comparing to full adoption.
The corresponding impact of the transitional adjustment to risk-weighted assets is an increase of £12.5 million,
when comparing to full adoption.

1 Excludes capitalised interest of £1.1 million. Accrued interest is payable semi-annually and is therefore excluded from capital reserves.
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2. IFRS 9 adoption (continued)
2.4. Governance and risk management

The Group governed the implementation of IFRS 9 through a steering committee that represented finance,
risk and information technology. Subsequent to the implementation of IFRS 9, all governance and risk
management processes were adapted to ensure adequate governance and control exist over the IFRS 9 ECL
model.

The main change to the governance framework is the implementation of the Model Management Group. This
group comprises risk and finance subject matter experts. The purpose of the group is to continuously review
and challenge the inputs to the IFRS 9 ECL models, to review and challenge the outputs of the models and to
recommend model! calibrations where needed.

The Group and Divisional Impairment Committees were adapted to ensure compliance with the new IFRS 9
target operating model, and various layers of review were implemented to ensure appropriate review at
divisional level.
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3. Operating segments
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(a)

The Group has four reportable operating segments. These are the Group's three lending divisions plus a
central segment representing the savings business, central functions and shared central costs. The following
summary describes the operations of each of the reportable operating segments:

Property Finance
Provides mortgages to investors, businesses and personal customers. it serves professional landlords and
property traders in residential and commercial asset classes across long-term and shorter-term funding
solutions. The division lends to trading businesses to fund the acquisition, refinancing and development of
business premises.

The division also serves the needs of personal customers through the provision of loans secured by a second
charge on the main residence, for a range of purposes including; home improvements, loan consolidation and
larger consumer purchases. It also lends in specialist areas of first charge mortgages, introducing the lending
into retirement products.

Business Finance

Provides the following propositions:

e the Regional Business Centres provide finance solutions to established businesses in the UK Small and
Medium Enterprises (SME) markets, principally through a direct product offering. The centres primarily
provide leasing finance for business critical assets operated by established UK SME businesses, and
working capital solutions in the form of invoice discounting and asset-based lending;

e the Structured Finance proposition includes lending to SME finance companies with security against
receivables within their portfolios. The Structured Finance product set provides wholesale finance and
block discounting to smaller UK financial institutions to allow customers to release cash and grow their
businesses;

e the Development Finance proposition provides finance solutions to SME developers looking to build or
refurbish properties in the residential and commercial sectors for sale or investment;

e the Specialist Asset Finance proposition includes leasing and hire purchase finance solutions in specialist
UK SME market segments such as marine, aviation, healthcare and agriculture; and

e Shawbrook International Limited provides finance solutions to consumers and SMEs in the Channel
Islands, with a growing range of products designed to address a breadth of needs in the Jersey and
Guernsey market.

Consumer Lending
Provides a broad range of lending products enabling the delivery of unsecured loans to consumers for a variety
of purposes, including home improvements, holiday ownership, personal loans and retail finance.

Central :
As well as common costs, Central includes the Group’s Treasury function and Consumer Savings business
which are responsible for raising funding to support the lending divisions.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment and their reconciliation to the total results of the
Group is included below. Performance is measured based on the product contribution as included in the
internal management reports. All revenue for each operating segment is earned from external customers.

The underlying basis is the basis on which financial information is presented to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker, which excludes certain items included in the statutory results. The table on the following page includes
a reconciliation between the statutory results and the underlying basis.

Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to segments as they
are managed on a Group basis.
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3. Operating segments (continued)

Property Business Consumer
Finance  Finance Lending Central Total -

.Year ended 31.December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m
Interest income calculated using the effective
interest rate method 194.9 87.1 69.1 4.9 356.0
Other interest and similar income - - - 0.8 0.8
Interest expense and similar charges (50.5) (15.8) (10.0) (10.9) (87.2)
Net interest income / (expense) 144.4 71.3 59.1 (5.2) 269.6
Operating lease rentals - 10.0 - - 10.0
Other operating lease expense - (0.6) - - (0.6)
Depreciation on operating leases - (7.6) - - (7.6)
Net income from operating leases - 1.8 - - 1.8
Fee and commission income 0.3 9.6 0.8 - 10.7
Fee and commission expense (3.0) (0.4) (4.6) (1.7) (9.7)
Net fee and commission income /
(expense) (2.7) 9.2 (3.8) (1.7) 1.0
Net gains on financial instruments ) ) ) 05 05
mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss ) )
Net operating income / (expense) 141.7 82.3 55.3 (6.4) 272.9
Administrative expenses (16.6) (23.1) (20.0) (69.1) (128.8)
Impairment losses on financial assets’ (5.6) 10.9 (28.5) - (23.2)
Provisions for liabilities and charges (0.2) (0.5) (9.3) (0.1) (10.1)
Total operating expenses (22.4) (12.7) (57.8) (69.2) (162.1)
Share of results of associates (0.5) - - - (0.5)
Statutory profit / (loss) before taxation 118.8 69.6 (2.5) (75.6) 110.3
Underlying adjustments - - - - -
Profit / (loss) before taxation on an
underlying basis 118.8 69.6 (2.5) (75.6) 110.3
Taxation on an underlying basis (28.3)
Profit after taxation on an underlying

. 82.0
basis
Assets 3,705.6 1,433.4 741.0 939.1 6,819.1
Liabitities - - - (6,145.7) (6,145.7)
Net assets / (liabilities) 3,705.6 1,433.4 741.0 (5,206.6) 673.4

1 Impairment losses on financial assets in the year ended 31 December 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with

IFRS 9.
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3. Operating segments (continued)

Property Business Consumer

Finance  Finance Lending  Central Total
Year ended 31 December 2017 : £m £m £m £m £m
Interest income calculated using the effective
interest rate method 178.5 76.5 52.2 1.7 308.9
Other interest and similar income (0.1) - (0.4) 49 44
Interest expense and similar charges (41.1) (13.2) (8.2) (13.4) (75.9)
Net interest income / (expense) 137.3 63.3 43.6 (6.8) 237.4
Operating lease rentals - 12.3 - - 12.3
Depreciation on operating leases - (10.6) - - (10.6)
Net income from operating leases - 1.7 - - 1.7
Fee and commission income 04 11.2 0.7 - 12.3
Fee and commission expense (3.3) (0.7) (8.5) (1.0) (13.5)
Net fee and commission (expense) / income (2.9) 10.5 (7.8) (1.0) 1.2)
Net gains / (losses) on financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss 0.1 ) 0.5 (04) 02
Net operating income / (expense) 134.5 75.5 36.3 (8.2) 238.1
Administrative expenses (17.1) (16.7) (13.0) (66.4) (113.2)
Impairment losses on financial assets! (2.4) (8.5) (12.4) - (23.3)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - - (2.5) 04 (2.1)
Total operating expenses (19.5) (25.2) (27.9) (66.0) (138.6)
Statutory profit / (loss) before taxation 115.0 50.3 8.4 (74.2) 99.5
Underlying adjustments 04 - - 6.1 6.5
Profit / (loss) before taxation on an
underlying basis 115.4 50.3 8.4 (68.1) 106.0
Taxation on an underlying basis (26.8)
Profit after taxation on an underlying basis 79.2
Assets 3,187.0 1,076.0 617.4 8716 5,752.0
Liabilities - - - (5,137.0) (5,137.0)
Net assets / (liabilities) 3,187.0 1,076.0 617.4 (4,265.4) 615.0

1 Impairment losses on financial assets in the year ended 31 December 2017 reflect impairment losses calculated in accordance with IAS
39.
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4. Interest and similar income
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(b)

2018 - 2017

) _£m £m.
Interest income calculated using the effective interest rate method
On cash and balances at central banks 4.7 1.8
On loans and advances to customers 351.1 307.1
On investment securities 0.2 -
Total interest income calculated using the effective interest rate method 356.0 308.9
Other interest and similar income
On derivative financial instruments 0.8 4.4
Total other interest and similar income 0.8 4.4
Total interest and similar income 356.8 313.3

Interest income recognised during the year on Stage 3 loans under the requirements of IFRS 9 is £7.6 million.
In 2017, interest on impaired loans under the requirements of IAS 39 was £2.7 million.

The Group did not capitalise any interest income during 2018 (2017: £nil).

The amounts reported above include £356.0 million (2017: £308.9 million) of interest income on financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

5. Interest expense and similar charges
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(b)

© 2018 2017

_ £fm  £m

On amounts due to banks 6.2 1.8
On customer deposits 74.3 67.3
On derivative financial instruments (0.2) -
On subordinated debt liability 6.4 6.4
Other interest 0.5 0.4
Total interest expense and similar charges 87.2 75.9

The amounts reported above include £87.4 million (2017: £75.9 million) of interest expense on financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost.

6. Fee and commission income
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(c)

T 2018 T 2017

. . £m £m

Fee income on loans and advances to customers 8.3 104
Credit facility related fees 24 1.9
Total fee and commission income 10.7 12.3
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7. Administrative expenses
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(d)

2018 2017

_ ; .. Em £m

Payroll costs (Note 9) 64.9 66.1
Depreciation (excluding operating lease assets) 20 26
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.1 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 6.1 4.0
Impairment of goodwill 05 -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets ‘ 1.9 -
Operating lease payments 24 1.6
Other administrative expenses 50.9 38.9
Total administrative expenses 128.8 113.2

Other administrative expenses include fees paid to the Group’s auditor as detailed in Note 8.

8. Auditor’'s remuneration

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor, KPMG LLP, are analysed below:

- 2018 © 2017
. y , , . . £000 £000
Audit of these annual accounts 515 451
Audit of the annual accounts of the subsidiaries of the Company 15 15
Adjustments in respect of prior year and IFRS 9 45 -
Other tax advisory services 19 2
Audit related assurance services - 50
All other assurance services 59 105
All other services 90 33
Total auditor’s remuneration 743 656

9. Employees
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(d)

The average number of persons employed by the Group on a full-time equivalent basié (including Executive
Directors) was as follows:

-~ 72018 2017

_ . _ No. . No..

Property Finance 99 143
Business Finance : 170 133
Consumer Lending : 51 43
Central 411 352
Average employees 731 671
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9. Employees (continued)

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:

2018 2017

8 . . .. £m £m
Wages and salaries 56.6 58.0
Social security costs 5.2 5.6
Pension costs 3.1 25
Total payroll costs 64.9 66.1

Wages and salaries include share-based payment charges as detailed in Note 10.

Pension costs represent contributions to defined contribution pension schemes. The Group does not operate
any defined benefit pension schemes.

10. Employee share-based payment transactions
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(e)

The employee share-based payment charge comprises:

T 2018 2017

: L i _ v , Status £m £m:
Save-as-you-earn schemes Fully vested in 2017 - 0.8
Performance share plan — 2015 : Fully vested in 2017 - 1.4
Performance share plan — 2016 Fully vested in 2017 - 1.7
Performance share plan - 2017 Fully vested in 2017 - 24
Deferred share bonus plan — 2017 Fully vested in 2017 - 1.2
Total share-based payments - 7.5

In 2018, no share-based payment schemes have been in operation.

Fully vested schemes

In 2017, following the acquisition of the Group by Marlin Bidco Limited, there was an issue of 2,586,879 £0.01
shares and the vesting of all of the share option schemes in operation was accelerated. The acceleration of
the share options were recognised as if the service and the non-market performance conditions of all schemes
had been met. Subsequent to vesting, all shares were repurchased by Marlin Bidco Limited at the offer price
of £3.40. The total charge relating to the accelerated vesting in 2017 was £5.9 million, with the total share-
based payment charge for the year ended 31 December 2017 being £7.5 million. Full details of the share
schemes fully vested during 2017 can be found in the 2017 Annual Report and Accounts.

11. Directors’ remuneration

2018 T 2017

. ~ £000 _£000

Directors' emoluments’ 3,499.6 5,285.3
Total Directors’ remuneration 3,499.6 5,285.3

Included in Directors’ emoluments is £1.2 million (2017: £nil) relating to termination payments.

1 Following the resignation of Steve Pateman in July 2018, lan Cowie assumed the role as Interim Chief Executive Officer. He was not
however formally appointed to the Board of the Company until 2019 and therefore his remuneration is not included in the table.
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12. Impairment losses on financial assets
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(v)

Impairment losses on financial assets relate to loans and advances to customers, as set out below:

2018 2017

; . , . £m £m
Movement in loss allowance / impairment allowance in the year? 15.1 7.2
Loan balances written-off in the year 25.6 18.6
Amounts recovered in the year in respect of loan balances previously written-off2 (17.5) (2.5)
Total impairment losses on financial assets 23.2 23.3

Impairment losses on cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks and investment
securities in the year to 31 December 2018 are immaterial, totalling less than £0.1 million.

13. Taxation
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(f)

Taxation charge recognised in the statement of profit and loss includes:

T T 2018 2017
v £m £m
Current tax
Current year 25.5 24.2
Adjustment in respect of prior years (0.5) (1.1)
Total current tax : 25.0 231
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 3.5 1.3
Adjustment in respect of prior years (0.2) 0.9
Total deferred tax 33 2.2
Total taxation charge 28.3 25.3

1 Movement in loss allowance in the year to 31 December 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with IFRS 9.
Movement in impairment allowance in the year to 31 December 2017 reflect impairment losses calculated in accordance with IAS 39. See
Note 14(b) for further detail of movements.

2 puring 2018, the Group received £13.0 million relating to the Group’s insurance claim in respect of the controls breach identified in the
Business Finance division in 2016.
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13. Taxation (continued)

A reconciliation of profit before taxation per the statement of profit and loss to the total taxation charge per the
statement of profit and loss is as follows:

2018 - 2017
A , £m £m
Profit before taxation 110.3 99.5
Implied tax charge thereon at 19.00% (2017: 19.25%) 20.9 19.2
Adjustments
Banking surcharge 6.7 5.1
Adjustment in respect of prior years (0.7) (0.2)
Disallowable expenses and other permanent differences ' 0.6 1.2
Effect of tax rate changes 0.8 -
Total taxation charge 28.3 25.3

Reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 20% to 19% (effective from 1 April 2017) and further reductions
to 17% (effective 1 April 2020) were substantively enacted on 16 March 2016. This will reduce the Company's
future current taxation charge accordingly.

Tax of £2.5 million arising on the £9.8 million coupon paid on capital securities is recognised directly in equity.
The deferred tax asset as at 31 December 2018 has been calculated based on an aggregation rate.of 25%
(2017: 26%). This is based on a rate of 17% substantively enacted at the reporting date (2017: 18%) and the

additional 8% of tax suffered in relation to the banking surcharge that will unwind over the remaining life of the
underlying assets with which they are associated.

14. Loans and advances to customers
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(g)

(a) Analysis of loans and advances to customers

o 017
Gross Gross

carrying Loss Carrying carrying Impairment Carrying
amount allowance’ amount amount allowance’ amount
Group , _ £m fm = £m . £m £m £m
Loan receivables 5,410.4 (54.1) 5,356.3 4,438.4 (19.7) 4,418.7
Finance lease receivables 95.0 (7.2) 87.8 88.9 (9.1) 79.8
Instalment credit receivables 409.4 (6.5) 402.9 350.8 (2.8) 348.0
5,914.8 (67.8) 5,847.0 4,878.1 (31.6) 4,846.5

Fair value adjustments for
hedged risk (1.1) (2.2)
Total loans and advances 5,845.9 48443

to customers

1

1 Loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with IFRS 9. Impairment allowance as
at 31 December 2017 reflect impairment losses calculated in accordance with IAS 39.
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14. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

2018 i 2017
Gross Gross \

carrying Loss Carrying carrying Impairment Carrying

amount allowance’ amount amount allowance' amount

Company £m £m £m £m , £m £m
Loan receivables 5,398.3 (54.0) 5,344.3 4,433.5 (19.7) 4,413.8
Finance lease receivables 94.7 (7.2) 87.5 88.9 (9.1) 79.8
Instalment credit receivables 381.1 (6.1) 375.0 310.6 (2.7) 307.9
5,874.1 (67.3) 5,806.8 4,833.0 (31.5) 4,801.5

E:gg;a(:ur?sidjustments for ' (1.1) (2.2)
Total loans and advances 5,805.7 : 4.799.3

to customers

Total loans and advances to customers, for both the Group and the Company include:

e £1,402.7 million (2017: £1,081.7 million) positioned with the Bank of England for use as collateral under
its funding schemes. This comprises £1,402.7 million (2017: £902.2 million) for the Term Funding Scheme
and £nil (2017: £179.5 million) for the Funding for Lending scheme.

e £206.9 million (2017: £nil) pledged as collateral against secured bank borrowings.

Finance lease receivables and instalment credit receivables

The Group provides finance lease and instalment credit agreements to customers for a variety of assets
including, but not limited to, plant and machinery. The underlying assets provide security against the gross
receivables.

1 Loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with IFRS 9. Impairment allowance as
at 31 December 2017 reflect impairment losses calculated in accordance with I1AS 39.
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14. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

The following table provides further analysis of finance lease receivables:

Group Company Group Company’
2018 2018 2017 2017
: . £m £m £m _£m
Gross amounts receivable:
within one year 46.0 45.9 47.0 47.0
in the second to fifth year inclusive 50.0 49.8 49.5 49.5
after five years 10.0 9.9 3.0 3.0
106.0 105.6 99.5 99.5
Less: unearned finance income (11.0) (10.9) (10.6) (10.6)
Gross carrying amount 95.0 94.7 88.9 88.9
Less: loss allowance / impairment allowance’ (7.2) (7.2) (9.1) (9.1)
Total finance lease receivables 87.8 87.5 798 79.8
Amounts falling due:
within one year 38.0 37.9 37.5 37.5
in the second to fifth year 41.3 41.2 39.7 39.7
after five years 8.5 8.4 26 2.6
Total finance lease receivables 87.8 87.5 79.8 79.8

1 Loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with IFRS 9. Impairment allowance as
at 31 December 2017 reflect impairment losses calculated in accordance with IAS 39.
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14. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

The following table provides further analysis of instalment credit receivables:

Group Company Group Company
2018 2018 2017 2017
£m _ £m £m £m

Gross amounts receivable:
within one year 173.7 165.2 162.5 148.4
in the second to fifth year inclusive 249.2 231.3 - 204.9 183.9
after five years 26.5 21.2 18.1 10.2
449.4 417.7 385.5 342.5
Less: unearned finance income (40.0) (36.6) (34.7) (31.9)
Gross carrying amount 409.4 381.1 350.8 310.6
Less: loss allowance / impairment allowance' (6.5) (6.1) (2.8) 2.7)
Total instalment credit receivables 402.9 375.0 348.0 307.9

Amounts falling due:

within one year 151.9 1449 143.3 130.2
in the second to fifth year 226.1 210.2 186.8 167.3
after five years 249 19.9 17.9 10.4
Total instalment credit receivables 402.9 375.0 348.0 307.9

Included within instalment credit receivables for both the Group and the Company are block discounting
facilities of £157.2 million (2017: £106.6 miltion).

The cost of equipment acquired during the year under finance lease and instalment credit agreements is as
follows:

Group Company Group Company

2018 2018 2017 2017

. £m £m £m £m

Finance leases 58.9 58.9 40.1 401
Instalment credit 140.2 135.5 161.5 120.8
Total cost of equipment acquired during the year 199.1 194.4 201.6 160.9

(b) Analysis of impairment losses on loans and advances to customers

2018 2017

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total

Group £m £m £m £m £m
Loan receivables 20.5 18.3 15.3 54.1 19.7
Finance lease receivables 0.5 1.1 5.6 7.2 9.1
Instalment credit receivables 25 13 27 6.5 2.8
Loss allowance / impairment 23.5 20.7 23.6 67.8 31.6

allowance'’

7 Loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with IFRS 9. Impairment allowance as
at 31 December 2017 reflect impairment losses calculated in accordance with IAS 39.
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14. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

2018 2017
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
Company . £m £m . £Em £m £m
Loan receivables 204 18.3 15.3 54.0 19.7
Finance lease receivables 0.5 1.1 5.6 7.2 9.1
Instalment credit receivables 2.2 13- 2.6 6.1 2.7
Loss allowance / impairment 23.1 20.7 23.5 67.3 315

allowance'!

The below table shows an analysis of movements in the loss allowance during 2018 under IFRS 9, together
with the loss allowance coverage:

2018
: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Group ’ £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 10.5 7.5 13.6 31.6
Impact of adopting IFRS 92 6.8 5.0 9.3 211
Restated balance as at 1 January 17.3 12.5 229 52.7
Movements in loss allowance
Transfer to Stage 1 4.3 (3.8) (0.5) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (1.4) 3.2 (1.8) -
Transfer to Stage 3 ~ (0.8) (2.7) 35 -
New financial assets originated or 13.2 13 0.5 15.0
purchased
Financial assets that have been
derecognised (3.2) (1.8) (3.9) (8.9)
Changes in models / risk parameters (5.8) 11.4 111 16.7
Modifications without derecognition (0.1) 0.6 29 34
Write-offs - - (11.1) (11.1)
Total movement in loss allowance 6.2 8.2 0.7 15.1
As at 31 December 23.5 20.7 23.6 67.8
Loss allowance coverage as at 31 0.5% 2.4% 19.5% 1.1%

December (%)

1 Loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with IFRS 9. Impairment allowance as
at 31 December 2017 reflect impairment losses calculated in accordance with IAS 39.
2 See Note 1.6(a) and Note 2 for details.
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14. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Company £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 10.4 7.5 13.6 31.5
Impact of adopting IFRS 91 6.5 5.0 9.3 20.8
Restated balance as at 1 January 16.9 12.5 229 52.3
Movements in loss allowance
Transfer to Stage 1 4.3 (3.8) (0.5) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (1.4) 3.2 (1.8) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (0.8) (2.7) 3.5 -
New financial assets originated or
purchased 13.0 1.3 0.5 14.8
Financial assets that have been
derecognised (3.1) (1.8) (3.9) (8.8)
Changes in models / risk parameters (5.7) 11.4 11.0 16.7
Modifications without derecognition (0.1) 0.6 29 34
Write-offs (11.1) (11.1)
Total movement in loss allowance 6.2 8.2 0.6 15.0
As at 31 December 23.1 20.7 23.5 67.3
Loss allowance coverage as at 31 0.5% 2.4% 19.4% 1.1%

December (%)

Significant changes in the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers that contributed to
changes in the Group’s loss allowance were as follows:

The Group originated ¢.£2,346 million of loans in 2018 that generated an increase in loss allowance of
£15.0 million. The increase in loss allowance was largely attributable to Consumer Lending originations
of £490 million (loss allowance £9.1 million) due to the higher loss allowance coverage ratio, Business
Finance originations of £813 million (loss allowance £4.8 million) and Property Finance originations of
£1,043 million (loss allowance £1.1 million). Property Finance exposure benefits from strong collateral
values as set out in the Group’s lending policy and therefore has a low loss allowance coverage ratio.
Financial assets that have been derecognised refers to the loss allowance reduction at the point a loan is
redeemed (loss allowance £8.9 million). This is largely due to redemptions in Business Finance (loss
allowance £4.5 million) and Consumer Lending (loss allowance £3.2 million) where there is a higher loss
allowance coverage.

Changes in models / risk parameters account for an increase in loss allowance of £16.7 million. These
are largely attributable to an increase of £6.8 million due to changes in the nature and probability of the
IFRS 9 scenarios used in the ECL. During the year, the Group changed its forward forecast to a central
view / disorderly no-deal Brexit / alternative upside view with probability of 40% / 40% / 20% at 31
December 2018. The remainder of the impact is due to updated PD and LGD judgements across the
loan porffolios.

The Group continued to operate a simultaneous charge-off and write-off policy during 2018. The reduction
in loss allowance of the write-offs in Consumer Lending accounts for £10.8 million of the £11.1 million
Group reduction in loss allowance.

The difference in the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers between the Group and the
Company is £40.2 million. The corresponding movement in loss allowance for these loans is £0.1 million. This
is all attributable to the Business Finance division.

1 See Note 1.6(a) and Note 2 for details.
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14. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

(c) Modifications
The Group sometimes modifies the terms of loans provided to customers due to commercial renegotiations,
or for distressed loans, with a view to maximising recovery.

During 2018, loans with a gross carrying amount as at 31 December 2018 of £50.3 million were modified by
the Group and £50.2 million by the Company. No material net modification gain or loss was recognised by the
Group or the Company.

Further details of forborne loans are set out in Section 5.9 of the risk management report.

(d) Write-offs still under enforcement activity

Loans that are written off can still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group'’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due. The contractual amount outstanding on loans and advances that
were written off during the reporting period, and are still subject to enforcement activity, is £13.5 million (2017:
£6.3 million).

15. Investment securities
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(h)

—e— - — , — %018 2017

-Group and Company . . . .. L - £m . £m
As at 1 January ' - -
Additions 139.7 -
Accrued interest 0.2 -
As at 31 December 139.9 -

Loss allowance for investment securities as at 31 December 2018 is immaterial, totalling less than £0.1 million.
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16. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(i) and Note 1.7(j)

(a) Derivatives held for risk management
The following table analyses derivatives held for risk management purposes by type of instrument:

2018 __ | , 2017
Assets Liabilities . Assets Liabilities
‘Notional  Fair Notional Fair Notional Fair Notional Fair
-Group and value value value value value value value value
Company ) . £m £m £fm  £m . . Em £m . £m £m
Interest rate
swaps 431.5 1.4 559.2 1.2 389.0 1.8 189.0 0.3
Interest rate
options - - 1,150.0 4.3 - - 500.0 2.8
Cross-currency
Swaps 28.7 0.2 11.6 0.2 - - 333 0.3
Total derivative
financial 460.2 1.6 1,720.8 5.7 389.0 1.8 722.3 3.4
instruments

The Group's property loan portfolio includes loans where interest rate terms are referenced to the three-month
LIBOR index, but with a minimum reference rate of 0.75%. In March 2017 and March 2018, the Group sold
interest rate options with a nominal value of £500.0 million and £650.0 million respectively into the wholesale
market in order to hedge the Group's interest rate position against possible increases in the reference rate. Of
the £650.0 million interest rate options sold in March 2018, £575.0 million are forward starting, with an effective
date beyond 2018.

(b) Hedge accounting

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held interest rate swaps and options as hedging instruments in fair value
hedges as detailed in the tables below. The Group’s cross-currency swaps are not in hedge accounting
relationships.

) Maturity

Less _ ‘ ' . More
Group and Company than 1 1-3 3 months 1-5 than 5
As at 31 December 2018 month _months  -1year . years years . Total
Interest rate swaps
Nominal amount (£Em) - - 50.0 913.4 27.3 990.7
Average fixed interest rate - - 1.20% 1.12% 1.34% 1.16%
Interest rate options
Nominal amount (£m) - - - 850.0 300.0 1,150.0
Average fixed interest rate - - - 0.75% 0.75% 0.75%
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16. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:

Change in fair
Group and value used for Ineffectiveness
Company Statement calculating recognised in  Statement
As at 31 Nominal Carrying of financial hedge statement of of profit
December amount amount position ineffectiveness  profit and loss and loss
2018 £m £m line item £m £m line item
Interest rate
swaps
Assets 431.5 1.4 ) (0.7) (0.5) (iii)
Liabilities 559.2 1.2 (ii) 1.7 0.2 (iii)

Interest rate

options

Liabilities 1,150.0 4.3 (ii) 1.6 0.3 (iii)
(i) Derivative financial assets

(i) Derivative financial liabilities

(iii) Net gains / (losses) on financial instruments mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss

“In these hedge relationships, the main sources of ineffectiveness relate to the modelled prepayment behaviour
and the assumptions that are used in modelling this behaviour.

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as follows:

N Accumulated
amount of fair value
hedge adjustments Change in Accumulated
on the hedged item value used for amount of
Group and included in the Statement of calculating fair value
Company Carrying carrying amount of financial hedge hedge
As at 31 amount the hedged item position line ineffectiveness adjustments
December 2018 £m £m . item £m £m
Assets
Loans and Loans and
advances to 1,740.6 (6.0) advances to (1.1) (6.0)
customers customers
Liabilities
Customer Customer
deposits 280.0 (0.1) deposits (1.4) (0.1)

(c) Net fair value gains and losses on derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Gains and losses on derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting per the statement of profit and
loss are summarised as follows:

2018 2017

£m £m

Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments 3.0 3.9
Fair value losses on hedged risk (2.5) (3.7)
Net fair value gains on financial instruments , 0.5 0.2
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17. Property, plant and equipment
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(k)

" Fixtures, Assets on
Leasehold fittings.and operating

property equipment leases Total-
Group £m. £m £m £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2017 0.1 10.4 65.9 76.4
Additions 0.7 0.9 11.7 13.3
Disposals - (0.1) (7.2) (7.3)
Transfer to finance leases - - (6.7) (6.7)
As at 31 December 2017 0.8 11.2 63.7 757
Additions - 3.6 8.2 11.8
Disposals (0.1) - (9.8) (9.9)
Transfer to finance leases - - (3.8) (3.8)
As at 31 December 2018 0.7 14.8 58.3 73.8
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2017 0.1 5.9 27.7 33.7
Charge for the year 0.4 2.2 10.6 13.2
Disposals - (0.1) (5.5) (5.6)
Transfer to finance leases - - (5.2) (5.2)
As at 31 December 2017 0.5 8.0 27.6 36.1
Charge for the year 0.1 1.9 7.6 9.6
Disposals - - (8.0) (8.0)
Transfer to finance leases - - (3.0) (3.0)
As at 31 December 2018 0.6 9.9 24.2 34.7
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2017 0.3 3.2 36.1 39.6
As at 31 December 2018 0.1 49 34.1 39.1

Certain prior year figures in assets on operating leases have been restated. This is to ensure compliance with
IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’, which requires assets to be recognised at their fair value as at the date of
acquisition. There is no change to the prior year carrying amount as a result of this restatement.
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17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Fixtures, Assets on
Leasehold fittings and  operating

property equipment leases Total
Company £m £m £m £fm_
Cost
As at 1 January 2017 0.1 104 65.9 76.4
Additions 0.7 0.9 11.3 12.9
Disposals - (0.1) (7.2) (7.3)
Transfer to finance leases - - (6.7) (6.7)
As at 31 December 2017 0.8 11.2 63.3 75.3
Additions - 34 7.7 11.1
Disposals (0.1) - (9.8) (9.9)
Transfer to finance leases - - (3.8) (3.8)
As at 31 December 2018 0.7 14.6 57.4 72.7
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2017 0.1 5.9 27.7 33.7
Charge for the year 04 2.2 10.6 13.2
Disposals - (0.1) (5.5) (5.6)
Transfer to finance leases - - (5.2) (5.2)
As at 31 December 2017 0.5 8.0 27.6 36.1
Charge for the year 0.1 1.9 7.5 9.5
Disposals - - (8.0) (8.0)
Transfer to finance leases - - (3.0) (3.0)
As at 31 December 2018 0.6 9.9 241 34.6
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2017 0.3 3.2 357 39.2
As at 31 December 2018 0.1 4.7 33.3 38.1

Certain prior year figures in assets on operating leases have been restated. This is to ensure compliance with

IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’, which requires assets to be recognised at their fair value as at the date of
acquisition. There is no change to the prior year carrying amount as a result of this restatement.
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18. Intangible assets

See accounting policies in Note 1.7(m)

Computer :
“Goodwill software Total
‘Group £m £m £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2017 38.5 19.3 57.8
Additions - 9.8 9.8
As at 31 December 2017 385 29.1 67.6
Additions - 9.8 9.8
Disposals - (2.6) (2.6)
As at 31 December 2018 38.5 36.3 74.8
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2017 - 4.2 4.2
Charge for the year - 4.0 4.0
As at 31 December 2017 - 8.2 8.2
Charge for the year - 6.1 6.1
Impairment in the year 0.5 - 0.5
Disposals - (0.7) (0.7)
As at 31 December 2018 0.5 13.6 14.1
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2017 38.5 209 594
As at 31 December 2018 38.0 22.7 60.7
Computer
‘ Goodwill software Total
Company £m £m £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2017 23.7 19.3 43.0
Additions - 9.8 9.8
As at 31 December 2017 23.7 291 528
Additions - 9.8 9.8
Disposals - (2.6) (2.6)
As at 31 December 2018 23.7 36.3 60.0
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2017 - 4.2 4.2
Charge for the year - 4.0 40
As at 31 December 2017 - 8.2 8.2
Charge for the year - 6.1 6.1
Disposals - (0.7) (0.7)
As at 31 December 2018 - 13.6 14.7
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2017 23.7 20.9 446
As at 31 December 2018 23.7 22.7 46.4
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18. Intangibles assets (continued)

Computer software additions in both the Group and the Company include £9.6 million of internally generated
assets (2017: £8.5 million).

Impairment testing of goodwill
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units (CGUs),
which are also the Group's reportable operating segments. These are: Property Finance, Business Finance

and Consumer Lending.
Details of impairment testing, including key assumptions and sensitivity analysis, are set out in Note 1.9(b).
For the Company, no impairment loss is recognised in either of the reported years.

For the Group, an impairment loss of £0.5 million is recognised in 2018 against the goodwill allocated to the
Consumer Lending CGU. This was predominantly due to a change in forecast originations as the Group
stabilises the portfolio against the backdrop of general macroeconomic uncertainty, resulting in revised cash
flow forecasts. The impairment loss is recognised in administrative expenses in the statement of profit and
loss. The impairment reduces the carrying amount of goodwill in the Consumer Lending CGU from £0.5 million
to £nil. No impairment losses are recognised against the goodwill allocated to the Property Finance or Business
Finance CGUs.

No impairment losses were recognised in the Group in 2017.

As at 31 December, the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each CGU, after impairment losses, is as
follows:

" Group Company  Group Company
2018 2018 2017 2017
, . £m £m £m £m
Property Finance 5.4 - 5.4 -
Business Finance 32.6 23.7 326 23.7
Consumer Lending - - 0.5 -
Total goodwill 38.0 23.7 38.5 23.7
19. Deferred tax assets
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(f)
Deferred tax assets are attributable to the following items:
" 2018 2017
Group and Company " ‘ . £m £m
Decelerated tax depreciation 121 13.6
IFRS 9 adjustment ' 4.9 -
Bad debt provision 0.7 2.0
Other : 0.3 0.1
Total deferred tax assets 18.0 15.7
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19. Deferred tax assets (continued)

Movements in deferred tax assets are attributable to the following items:

2018 2017

_Group and Company £m £m
As at 1 January 15.7 17.9

Impact of adopting IFRS 9? 5.6 -

Restated balance as at 1 January 213 17.9

Current period movement - recognised in income (2.2) (0.4)

Adjustment in respect of prior years 0.2 (0.9)

Share-based payments - (1.1)

Bad debt provision (1.3) 0.2

As at 31 December 18.0 16.7

Deferred tax assets result primarily from decelerated capital allowances. The business plan projects profits in
future years sufficient to fully recognise the deferred tax assets. The tax assets will unwind over the remaining
life of the underlying assets with which they are associated.

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 20% to 19% (effective from 1 April 2017) and further reductions
to 17% (effective 1 April 2020) were substantively enacted on 16 March 2016. The deferred tax asset as at 31
December 2018 has been calculated based on an aggregation of a rate of 17% substantively enacted at the
reporting date and the additional 8% of tax suffered in relation to the banking surcharge that will unwind over
the remaining life of the underlying assets with which they are associated.

20. Investment in associates
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(n)

The Group acquired 19.99% of the ordinary shares of The Mortgage Lender Limited on 26 March 2018, in
exchange for consideration, inclusive of transaction costs, of £6.0 million. Although the Group holds less than
20% of the ordinary shares of The Mortgage Lender Limited, the Group is deemed to have significant influence
as detailed in Note 1.9(e).

Details of material associates at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Proportion of

Place of incorporation ownership interest /

: and principal place of voting rights held as at

Name of associate , Principal activity business 31 December 2018
The Mortgage Lender . o

Limited Mortgage finance UK 19.99%

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements as
detailed in Note 1.7(n).

The carrying amount of the investment as at 31 December 2018 is £5.5 million. This includes a £0.5 million
share of loss of associate recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The financial year end date of The Mortgage Lender Limited is 31 August. For the purposes of applying the
equity method of accounting, both the financial statements for the year to 31 August 2018 and monthly
unaudited management accounts for September to December 2018 were used.

1 see Note 1.6(a) and Note 2 for details.
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20. Investment in associates (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of The Mortgage Lender Limited is set out below:

As at

31 December 20181

) _ £m
Current assets 3.9
Non-current assets 0.5
Current liabilities (0.5)
Non-current liabilities (0.1)
Net assets 3.8

9 months from
acquisition to
31 December 20182

£m
Revenue 4.3
Loss from continuing operations (2.3)
Other comprehensive income for the period -
Total comprehensive income for the period (2.3)

Dividends received from the associate during the period -

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in The
Mortgage Lender Limited recognised in the consolidated financial statements is shown below:

. ' As at
Group and Company 31 December 2018
Net assets of the associate (Em) : 3.8
Proportion of ownership interest in the associate 19.99%
Share of net assets (Em) 0.8
Goodwill (Em) 4.7
Carrying amount of interest in the associate (£Em) , 55

21. Other assets
Group Company Group = Company
2018 2018 2017 2017
£m £m £m £m.
Other debtors 29 29 0.5 0.5
Prepayments 9.7 9.6 94 9.4
Amounts due from Group companies - 42.6 - 9.9
Total other assets 12.6 55.1 9.9 19.8

1 Based on unaudited monthly management accounts as at 31 December 2018.

2 Calculated based on the financial statements for the year to 31 August 2018 and monthly unaudited management accounts for the
months of September to December 2018.
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22. Investment in subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2018, the total investment in subsidiaries held at cost amounted to £102 (2017: £102).

23. Amounts due to banks
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(0)

. 2018 2017
Group and Company . £m £m
Central bank facilities 876.6 605.6
Secured bank borrowings 152.0 -
Derivative collateral 0.8 1.7
Total amounts due to banks 1,029.4 607.3

Total amounts due to banks include:

e  £875.0 million (2017: £605.0 million) drawn under the Bank of England’s Term Funding Scheme which
fall due for repayment between 2020 and 2022. These amounts are collateralised by loan assets of

£1,402.7 million (2017: £902.2 million).

e  Secured bank borrowings of £152.0 million (2017: £nil). These amounts are secured on loan assets of

£206.9 million (2017: £nil).

24. Customer deposits
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(p)

2017

- 2018

. Group and Company . £m £m .
Instant access 1,365.6 878.2
Term deposits and notice accounts 3,612.2 3,496.0
Fair value adjustments for hedged risk 0.1 20
Total customer deposits 4,977.9 4,376.2

25. Provisions for liabilities and charges

See accounting policies in Note 1.7(q) and Note 1.7(x)

2018 ] 2017
Loss Other Other

‘ . provision provisions Total provisions Total
Group and Company £m £m _ £m £m £m
As at 1 January - 2.8 28 1.3 1.3
Impact of adopting IFRS 9? 0.5 - 0.5 - -
Restated balance as at 1
January 0.5 2.8 33 1.3 1.3
Provisions utilised during the year - (1.8) (1.8) (0.6) (0.6)
Provisions made during the year 0.5 9.6 10.1 2.1 21
As at 31 December 1.0 10.6 11.6 2.8 28

Loss provision

Loss provision represents the IFRS 9 loss allowance on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.

Further details are set out in Note 38.

1 See Note 1.6(a) and Note 2 for details.
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25. Provisions for liabilities and charges (continued)

Other provisions

Other provisions include:

e  £0.4 million (2017: £0.3 million) relating to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme. The amount
provided is based on information received from the Financial Services Compensation Scheme, forecast
future interest rates and the Group’s historic share of industry protected deposits.

e £10.2 million (2017: £2.5 million) relating to potential instances of misrepresentation or breaches of
contract by suppliers where the suppliers have become insolvent, and therefore the Group has limited
recourse to those suppliers. See Note 1.9(c) for further details.

26. Other liabilities

Group Company Group = Company
2018 2018 2017 2017
£m £m £m £m
Other creditors 19.5 19.5 46.2 10.7
Accruals 19.9 19.5 16.2 16.1
Amounts due to Group companies 1.7 1.7 1.0 -
Total other liabilities 41.1 40.7 63.4 26.8

Other creditors include amounts relating to sundry creditors and other taxes.

27. Subordinated debt

See accounting policies in Note 1.7(r)

In October 2015, the Company issued £75.0 million subordinated debt to its parent company, Shawbrook
Group plc. The terms of the issued loan notes are consistent with the loan notes listed by Shawbrook Group
plc on the London Stock Exchange on 28 October 2015. The notes bear interest on their principal amount at
an initial rate of 8.5% per annum until the first reset date of 28 October 2020. Interest is payable semi-annually
in arrears.

2018 2017

Group and Company ) , £m £m

As at 1 January 76.1 76.1

Interest expense and similar charges 6.4 6.4

Repayment of interest (6.4) (6.4)

As at 31 December .. 7641 76.1

28. Share capital

Ordinary shares of £1.00 each: issued and fully paid

2018 2018 2017 2017

Group and Company No. £ . No. - £

Ordinary £1.00 shares 175,487,207 175,487,207 175,487,207 175,487,207

There have been no movements in share capital in either of the reported years.

Holders of the shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at general meetings of the Company. There are no restrictions on the rights implicit to the shares.
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29. Capital securities
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(s)

2018 2017
Group and Company , . £m £m
As at 1 January 125.0 -
Issue of capital securities - 125.0
As at 31 December 125.0 125.0

In December 2017, the Company issued £125.0 million fixed rate reset perpetual Additional Tier 1 write down
capital securities to its parent company, Shawbrook Group plc. The terms of the issued capital securities are
consistent with the capital securities listed by Shawbrook Group plc on the irish Stock Exchange on 8
December 2017. '

During 2018, the Group paid a coupon of £9.8 million (2017: £nil) to Shawbrook Group Plc, the holders of the
capital securities, before deduction of taxation.

30. Notes to the cash flow statement
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(t)

(a) Adjustments for non-cash items and other adjustments included within the statement of profit and
loss

" 'Group Company Group Company

2018 2018 2017 2017

. £m £m £m £m

Subordinated debt interest and costs 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4
Investment securities accrued interest (0.2) (0.2) - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9.6 9.6 13.2 13.2
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.1 0.1 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 6.1 6.1 40 4.0
Impairment of goodwill 0.5 - - -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 1.9 1.9 - -
la_gzztglowance / impairment allowance on financial 15.1 15.1 233 232
Share of results of associates 0.5 0.5 - -
Share-based payments {0.3) (0.3) 7.5 7.5
Total non-cash items 39.7 39.2 54.4 54.3

(b) Net change in operating assets

Group Company @ Group Company

2018 2018 2017 2017

v £m £m £m £m

Increase in mandatory deposits with central banks? (4.6) (4.6) (0.3) (0.3)
Increase in loans and advances to customers (1,037.8) (1,042.3) (817.2) (772.1)
Decrease in derivative financial assets 0.2 0.2 34 3.4
Increase in operating lease assets (5.6) (5.2) (8.6) (8.2)
(Increase) / decrease in other assets (2.7) (35.3) 6.2 - (3.7)
Increase in operating assets (1,050.5) (1,087.2) (816.5) (780.9)

1 Loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with IFRS 9. Impairment allowance as
at 31 December 2017 reflect impairment losses calculated in accordance with IAS 39.
2 Mandatory deposits with central banks are not available for use in day-to-day operations and are non-interest bearing.
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30. Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)

(c) Net change in operating liabilities

Group Company Group Company’

2018 2018 2017 2017

_ , ~ £m £m £m £m

Increase in customer deposits 601.7 601.7 432.7 4327

Increase in provisions for liabilities and charges 8.3 8.3 1.6 - 1.5

Increase in derivative financial liabilities 23 23 3.0 3.0

(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities (22.3) 13.9 34.6 (1.9)

Increase in operating liabilities 590.0 626.2 471.8 435.3
(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company Group Company

2018 2018 2017 2017

£m £m £m £m

Cash and balances at central banks 645.2 645.2 752.5 752.5

Loans and advances to banks 50.6 50.1 28.8 28.5

Less: mandatory deposits with central banks® (8.9) (8.9) (4.3) (4.3)

Total cash and cash equivalents 686.9 686.4 777.0 776.7

31. Financial instruments
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(u)

(a) Classification of financial instruments
The following tables summarise the classification and carrying amounts of the Group and Company'’s financial
assets and liabilities:

v Total
Group Mandatorily = Amortised carrying
As at 31 December 2018 at FVTPL . cost amount
Under IFRS 9 ‘ £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks - 645.2 645.2
Loans and advances to banks - 50.6 50.6
Loans and advances to customers - 5,845.9 5,845.9
Investment securities - 139.9 139.9
Derivative financial assets 1.6 - 1.6
Total financial assets 1.6 6,681.6 6,683.2
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to banks ) - 1,029.4 1,029.4
Customer deposits - 4,977.9 4,977.9
Derivative financial liabilities 5.7 - 5.7
Subordinated debt liability - 76.1 76.1
Total financial liabilities 5.7 6,083.4 6,089.1

1 Mandatory deposits with central banks are not available for use in day-to-day oberations and are non-interest bearing.
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

Total
Company Mandatorily = Amortised carrying
As at 31 December 2018 \ at FVTPL cost amount
.Under IFRS 9 £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks - 645.2 645.2
Loans and advances to banks - 50.1 50.1
Loans and advances to customers - 5,805.7 5,805.7
Investment securities - 139.9 139.9
Derivative financial assets 1.6 - 1.6
Total financial assets 1.6 6,640.9 6,642.5
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to banks - 1,029.4 1,029.4
Customer deposits ‘ - 4,977.9 4,977.9
Derivative financial liabilities 5.7 - 5.7
Subordinated debt liability - 76.1 76.1
Total financial liabilities 5.7 6,083.4 6,089.1

There were no reclassifications of financial assets or liabilities during the year ended 31 December 2018 for
the Group or the Company.

~ - Other Total
Group Loans and amortised carrying
As at 31 December 2017 FVTPL receivables cost amount
Under IAS 39 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks ' - 752.5 - 752.5
Loans and advances to banks - 28.8 - 28.8
Loans and advances to customers - 4,8443 - 4,844.3
Derivative financial assets 1.8 - - 1.8
Total financial assets 1.8 5,625.6 - 5,627.4
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to banks - - 607.3 607.3
Customer deposits ) - - 4,376.2 4,376.2
Derivative financial liabilities 34 - - 3.4
Subordinated debt liability - - 76.1 76.1

Total financial liabilities 3.4 5,059.6 5,063.0
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

Other Total
Company \ Loans and amortised carrying
As at 31 December 2017 FVTPL receivables cost amount
Under IAS 39 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks - 752.5 - 752.5
Loans and advances to banks - 28.5 - 28.5
Loans and advances to customers - 4,799.3 - 4,799.3
Derivative financial assets 1.8 - - 1.8
Total financial assets 1.8 5,680.3 - 5,682 .1
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to banks - - 607.3 607.3
Customer deposits - - 4,376.2 4,376.2
Derivative financial liabilities 34 - - 34
Subordinated debt liability - - 76.1 76.1
Total financial liabilities 34 - 5,059.6 5,063.0

There were no reclassifications of financial assets or liabilities during the year ended 31 December 2017 for
the Group or the Company.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments
A summary of the Group’s valuation methods used to calculate the fair values of its financial assets and
financial liabilities is as follows:

Cash and balances at central banks: fair value approximates to carrying amount as cash and balances
at central banks have minimal credit losses and are either short-term in nature or re-price frequently.
Loans and advances to banks, customer deposits and amounts due to banks: fair value is estimated
using discounted cash flows applying either market rates where practicable or rates offered with similar
characteristics by other financial institutions. The fair value of floating rate placements, fixed rate
placements with less than six months to maturity and overnight deposits is considered to approximate to
their carrying amount.

Loans and advances to customers: fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal
and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date, and adjusted for
future credit losses if considered material.

Derivative financial instruments: fair values of derivatives are obtained from quoted market prices in
active markets and, where these are not available, from valuation techniques including discounted cash
flows.

Investment securities and subordinated debt liability: fair values are based on quoted prices where
available or by discounting cash flows using market rates.

The Group uses a fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. There are three levels to the hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). A Level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the instrument. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets
that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, such as
interest rates and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, implied volatilities and credit
spreads. Assets and liabilities classified as Level 2 have been valued using models whose inputs are
observable in an active market; and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

The consideration of factors such as the scale and frequency of trading activity, the availability of prices and
the size of bid/offer spreads assists in the assessment of whether a market is active. If, in the opinion of
Management, a significant proportion of an instrument’s carrying amount is driven by unobservable inputs, the
instrument in its entirety is classified as valued at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Level 3 in this context
means that there is little or no current market data available from which to determine the level at which an
arm’s length transaction would be likely to occur. It generally does not mean that there is no market data
available at all upon which to base a determination of fair value (consensus pricing data may, for example, be
used).

The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments measured at amortised cost into the fair value
hierarchy:

2018 2017
Level3 Level2 Level1 Level 3 Level2 Level1

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m.
Financial assets (at amortised cost) ‘
Cash and balances at central banks - - 645.2 - - 752.5
Loans and advances to banks - 50.6 - - 28.8 -
Loans and advances to customers 5,845.9 - - 4,844.3 - -
Investment securities - - 139.9 - - -
Financial liabilities (at amortised cost)
Amounts due to banks - 1,029.4 - - 607.3 -
Customer deposits - 4,977.9 - - 4,376.2 -
Subordinated debt liability - 76.1 - - 76.1 -

There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year (2017: £nil).

The table below analyses the Company’s financial instruments measured at amortised cost into the fair value
hierarchy:

_ 2018 - 2017
Level3 Level2 Level1 Level 3 ~ Level2 Level1
Company . £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets (at amortised cost)
Cash and balances at central banks - - 645.2 - - 752.5
Loans and advances to banks - 50.1 - - 28.5 -
Loans and advances to customers 5,805.7 - - 4,799.3 - -
Investment securities - - 139.9 - - -
Financial liabilities (at amortised cost)
Amounts due to banks - 1,029.4 - - 607.3 -
Customer deposits - 49779 - - 4,376.2 -
Subordinated debt liability - 76.1 - - 76.1 -

There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year (2017: £nil).
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

The table below analyses the Group and Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value into the fair
value hierarchy:

2018 2017
Level3 Level2 Level1 Level3 Level2 Level1
Group and Company 3 £m £m . £m £m £m £m
Financial assets (at fair value)
Derivative financial assets ' - 1.6 - - 1.8 -
Financial liabilities (at fair value)
Derivative financial liabilities - 5.7 - - 3.4 -

There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year (2017: £nil).

The below table shows a comparison of the carrying amounts per the statement of financial position, and the
fair values of those financial instruments measured at amortised cost:

2018 B 2017
Carrying Fair Carrying
amount value amount  Fair value
Group . £m . £m £m £m
Financial assets (at amortised cost)
Cash and balances at central banks 645.2 645.2 752.5 752.5
Loans and advances to banks 50.6 50.6 28.8 28.8
Loans and advances to customers 5,845.9 6,105.8 4,844 .3 5,0459
Investment securities 139.9 139.0 - -
Total financial assets (at amortised cost) 6,681.6 6,940.6 5,625.6 5,827.2
Financial liabilities (at amortised cost)
Amounts due to banks 1,029.4 1,014.8 607.3 594.5
Customer deposits 4,977.9 4,972.8 4,376.2 4,369.3
Subordinated debt liability 76.1 78.0 76.1 81.0
Total financial liabilities (at amortised cost) 6,083.4 6,065.6 5,059.6 5,044.8
2018 2017
Carrying Fair Carrying
amount value amount Fair value
Company £m £m £m £m
Financial assets (at amortised cost)
Cash and balances at central banks 645.2 645.2 752.5 752.5
Loans and advances to banks 50.1 50.1 : 28.5 28.5
Loans and advances to customers 5,805.7 6,065.4 4,799.3 5,001.7
Investment securities 139.9 139.0 - -
Total financial assets (at amortised cost) 6,640.9 6,899.7 5,580.3 5,782.7
Financial liabilities (at amortised cost)
Amounts due to banks 1,0294 1,014.8 607.3 5945
Customer deposits 4,977.9 4,972.8 4,376.2 4,369.3
Subordinated debt liability 76.1 78.0 76.1 81.0
Total financial liabilities (at amortised cost) 6,083.4 6,065.6 5,059.6 5,044.8
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

(c) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has financial assets and financial liabilities for which there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and liability
simultaneously.

The following table shows the impact on financial assets and financial liabilities relating to transactions where:

e there is an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement in place and an unconditional
right to offset is in place (amounts offset);

e there is an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement in place but the offset criteria
are otherwise not satisfied (master netting arrangements); and

e financial collateral is paid and received (financial collateral).

The table excludes financial instruments not subject to offset and those that are subject to collateral
arrangements only (e.g. loans and advances).

_Amounts subjéct to enforceable netting arrangements
Effect of offsetting on statement Related-amounts
of financial position not offset
Net amount Amount not
reported on subject to
statement of enforceable
Group and Company Gross Amount financial Cash Net netting
As at 31 December amount . offset position collateral’ amount arrangements
2018 ] £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derivative financial '
assets 1.6 - 1.6 1.6 - -
Total financial assets 1.6 - 1.6 1.6 - -
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial
liabilities 5.7 - 5.7 5.7 - -
Tota! financial
liabilities 5.7 - 5.7 5.7 - -
Amounts subject to enforceable netting arrangements
Effect of offsetting on statement of Related amounts not
financial position offset .
Net amount Amount not
reported on subject to
statement of - enforceable
Group and Company Gross  Amount financial Cash Net netting
As at 31 December amount offset position collateral’ amount arrangements
2017 _ £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derivative financial 18 ) 18 18 - -
assets
Total financial assets 1.8 - 1.8 1.8 - -
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial
liabilities 34 - 3.4 34 - -
Total financial liabilities 34 - 34 34 - -

1 Collateral amounts (cash and non-cash financial collateral) are reflected at their fair value; however, this amount is limited to the net
statement of financial position exposure in order not to include any over-collateralisation.

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2018 145



32. Ultimate parent company

The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of its ultimate parent company, Shawbrook Group plc. Shawbrook
Group plc is incorporated in England and Wales and is the largest company in which the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries are consolidated. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are
available on request from Lutea House, Warley Hill Business Park, Brentwood, Essex CM13 3BE.

33. Subsidiary companies
See accounting policies in Note 1.4

The Company has the following subsidiary companies as at 31 December 2018 whose results are included in
these consolidated financial statements:

Country of Class.of Ownership Principal
. B . .incorporation shares % activity
Shawbrook International Limited Jersey Ordinary 100 Banking
Shawbrook Buildings and Protection England and Wales  Ordinary 100 Dormant
Limited
Singers Corporate Asset Finance Limited ~ England and Wales  Ordinary 100 Dormant
Singers Healthcare Finance Limited England and Wales  Ordinary 100 Dormant
Coachlease Limited England and Wales  Ordinary 100 Dormant
Hermes Group Limited England and Wales  Ordinary 100 Dormant
Singer & Friedlander Commercial Finance Scotland  Ordinary 100 Dormant
Limited
Link Loans Limited England and Wales  Ordinary - 100 Dormant
Centric SPV 1 Limited England and Wales  Ordinary 100 Dormant
Resource Partners SPV Limited England and Wales  Ordinary 100 Dormant
Centric Group Holdings Limited England and Wales  Ordinary 100 Dormant
and its subsidiary, as follows:
Centric Group Finance Limited England and Wales  Ordinary 100 Dissolved’

All subsidiaries have the same registered address as the Company (see Note 1.1), except the following:

e Shawbrook International Limited: 1st Floor Kensington Chambers, Kensington Place, St Helier, JE4
0ZE, Jersey.

e Singer & Friedlander Commercial Finance Limited: 8 Nelson Mandela Place, Glasgow, Scotland, G2
1BT.

On 9 October 2018, Centric Group Finance Limited sold Centric SPV1 Limited and Resource Partners SPV
Limited to Shawbrook Bank Limited.

During 2018, the following subsidiary companies were struck off the Company Register:

e  Centric Commercial Finance Limited (company no: 06406043), a subsidiary of Centric Group Finance
Limited, was dissolved on 7 August 2018.

e Centric SPV 2 Limited (company no: 06675843), a subsidiary of Centric Group Finance Limited, was
dissolved on 7 August 2018.

e Centric Group Finance 2 Limited (company no: 06675856), a subsidiary of Centric Group Holdings
Limited, was dissolved on 7 August 2018.

1 Centric Group Finance Limited (company no: 06405442), a subsidiary of Centric Group Holdings Limited was dissolved on 12 February
2019. :
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34. Related party transactions

The ultimate parent and controlling party of the Group is detailed in Note 32. Subsidiaries of the Group are
detailed in Note 33.

(a) Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel refer to the Executive Management team and Directors of the Group.

Total compensation for key management personnel for the year is as follows:

2018 12017
Group and Company A ‘ , : £m £m
Short-term employee benefits 7.0 6.4
Other long-term benefits 0.2 0.1
Termination benefits 1.4 -
Share-based payments - - 47
Total key management personnel compensation 8.6 11.2

(b) Transactions with associates

During the period from 26 March 2018 to 31 December 2018, the Group held a 19.99% holding in its associate,
The Mortgage Lender Limited (see Note 20). During this period the Group paid £0.8 million of commission and
servicing fees to the associate. As .at 31 December 2018, the balance outstanding is £nil.

(c) Transactions between the Company and its parent company
Movement in amounts owed by the Company to its parent company, Shawbrook Group plc, are as follows:

Company Company
2018 2017
) : L : £m -~ £m

As at 1 January 1.0 1.7
Issue of capital securities - 125.0
Investment in subsidiaries - (125.0)
Dividend paid to Shawbrook Group plc - 19.5
Coupon on capital securities paid (9.8) -
Coupon on capital securities received 9.8 -
Professional fees and other costs 1.5 (17.8)
Transfer of funds (0.8) (2.4)
As at 31 December 17 1.0

In 2015, £75.0 million subordinated debt was issued from the Company to its parent company, Shawbrook
Group plc. The terms of the issued loan notes are consistent with the loan notes listed by Shawbrook Group
plc on the London Stock Exchange on 28 October 2015 (see Note 27).

In 2017, £125.0 million Fixed Rate Reset Perpetual Additional Tier 1 Write Down Capital Securities were issued
from the Company to its parent company, Shawbrook Group plc. The terms of the issued capital securities are
consistent with the capital securities listed by Shawbrook Group plc on the Irish Stock Exchange on 8
December 2017 (see Note 29).

(d) Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries

In the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company made payments of £31.4 million (2017: £11.0 million) to
Shawbrook International Limited to support its on-going activities and to fund repayment of amounts owing to
a bank by Shawbrook International Limited in relation the purchase of a loan book in December 2017. As at
31 December 2018, the balance outstanding from Shawbrook International Limited to the Company is £42.6
million (2017: £11.2 million).
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34. Related party transactions (continued)

(e) Other transactions

The Group extends a €20.0 million revolving credit facility to Capitalflow (Asset Finance) DAC, which is 100%
owned by PSC Nominee 3 Limited, a Pollen Street Capital Limited company'. As at 31 December 2018, the
balance outstanding is £14.7 million (2017: £5.8 million).

The Group extends a £20.0 million senior revolving facility to 1st Stop Funding Limited, whose ultimate parent
is 1st Stop Holdings Limited. 1st Stop Holdings Limited is 100% owned by PSC Nominee 3 Limited, a Pollen
Street Capital Limited company'. As at 31 December 2018, the balance outstanding is £15.4 million (2017:
£20.3 million).

35. Operating lease commitments
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(1)

(a) Operating leases as a lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals on land and buildings are payable as follows:

‘ T o 2018 2017
.Group and Company ) , _£m £m
Less than 1 year 1.4 20
Between 1 and 5 years 7.4 58
‘More than 5 years 4.9 1.8
Total leases as lessee 13.7 9.6

(b) Operating leases as a lessor
Operating lease rentals receivable from agreements classified as property, plant and equipment, as disclosed
in Note 17, are receivable as follows:

Group Company  Group Company

2018 2018 2017 2017

, _£m £m _ .. £m £m-

Less than 1 year 84 8.2 8.6 8.6
Between 1 and 5 years 16.2 15.8 16.7 16.5
More than 5 years 0.9 0.9 15 1.5
Total leases as lessor 255 249 26.8 26.6

36. Capital commitments

The Group and Company had no capital commitments as at 31 December 2018 (2017: £nil).

37. Contingent liabilities
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(w)

Part of the Group’s business is regulated by the Consumer Credit Act (CCA), which contains very detailed and
highly technical requirements. The Group continues to commission external reviews of its compliance with the
CCA and other consumer regulations. The Group has identified some areas of potential non-compliance which
are not considered to be material. While the Group considers that no material present obligation in relation to
non-compliance with the CCA and other consumer regulations is likely, there is a risk that the eventual outcome
may differ.

The Group’s Consumer Lending division is exposed to risk under Section 75 of the CCA, in relation to any
misrepresentations or breaches of contract by suppliers of goods and services to customers where the
purchase of those goods and services is financed by the Group. While the Group would have recourse to the
supplier in the event of such liability, if the supplier becomes insolvent then that recourse would have limited
value.

1 Pollen Street Capital Limited are the ultimate parent company of Shawbrook Group Plc, the Company's parent company.
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38. Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(x)

Financial guarantee contracts
In 2015, the Group entered into a financial guarantee contract to an amount of £2.5 million. This contract is a
continuous obligation which may be terminated by the Group on giving three months written notice.

Loss allowance for financial guarantee contracts is £nil (2017: £nil), because the contract is fully collateralised
through a first fixed charge over a blocked deposit account. As such, the amount the Group should have to
pay should the guarantee be called upon is £nil (2017: £nil).

Loan commitments
The below table shows an analysis of movements in the loss allowance in respect of loan commitments during
2018 under IFRS 9: )

e 2018
Stage 1 : Total
Group and Company , £m . £m
As at 1 January - -
Impact of adopting IFRS 91 0.5 0.5
Restated balance as at 1 January 0.5 0.5
Movements in loss allowance
New financial assets originated or purchased 0.6 0.6
Financial assets that have been derecognised (0.1) (0.1)
Total movement in loss allowance 0.5 0.5
As at 31 December ' 1.0 1.0

39. Country by country reporting

The Capital Requirements (Country by Country Reporting) Regulations 2013 came into effect on 1 January
2014 and place certain reporting obligations on financial institutions that are within the scope of the Capital
Requirements Directive V.

Shawbrook Bank Limited and its subsidiaries are all UK or Channel Island registered entities. The activities of
the Group and its subsidiaries are detailed in the strategic report and Note 33. :

Required disclosures for the Group are summarised below:

[Group =~ B - ‘ ‘ - 2018 . 2017
Net operating income (£m) 2729 238.1
Profit before taxation (£m) 110.3 99.5
Income taxation charge (£m) 28.3 253
Tax paid (£Em) 26.4 29.5
Average number of employees on a full-time equivalent basis 731 671

The Group received no public subsidies during the year (2017; £nil).

40. Post balance sheet events

There have been no significant events between 31 December 2018 and the date of approval of the 2018
Annual Report and Accounts that require a change or additional disclosure in the financial statements.

1 See Note 1.6(a) and Note 2 for details.
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Other information

Abbreviations

ALCo Asset and Liability Committee

bps Basis point

CCA Consumer Credit Act

CET1 Common Equity Tier 1

CcGuU Cash generating unit ;
CRD IV Capital Requirements Directive [V

EAD Exposure at default

EBA European Banking Authority

ECL Expected credit loss

EU European Union

FCA Financial Conduct Authority

FVOCI Fair value through other comprehensive income
FVTPL Fair value through profit or loss

GDPR General Data Protection Regulation

IAS International Accounting Standard

ICAAP Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standard
ILAAP Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process
LCR Liquidity coverage ratio

LGD Loss given default

LIBOR London Inter Bank Offer Rate

LTV Loan-to-value

MREL Minimum requirements for own funds and eligible liabilities
NSFR Net stable funding ratio

PD Probability of default

POCI Purchased or originated credit-impaired

PRA Prudential Regulation Authority

PRC Prudential Regulation Committee

RMF Risk Management Framework

RRP Recovery Plan and Resolution Pack

SME(s) Small and medium enterprise(s)

SPPI Solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
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Other information (continued)
Alternative performance measures
Certain financial measures disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts do not have a standardised meaning

prescribed by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and may therefore not be comparable to
similar measures presented by other issuers. These measures are deemed to be ‘alternative performance

measures’. Definitions of the Group’s key performance indicators are set out below:

Average principal
employed

The average of monthly closing loans and advances to customers (net of loss
allowance / impairment allowance' and fair value adjustments for hedged risk)
and assets on operating leases included in property, plant and equipment.

Common Equity Tier 1
(CET1) capital ratio?

CET1 capital, divided by, risk-weighted assets.

Cost of risk

Impairment losses on financial assets, divided by, average principal employed.

Cost to income ratio

The sum of administrative expenses and provisions for liabilities and charges,
divided by, net operating income.

Gross asset yiéld

The sum of interest and similar income, net income from operating leases, net
fee and commission income and net gains on financial instruments mandatorily
at fair value through profit and loss, divided by, average principal employed.

Leverage ratio?

Total Tier 1 capital, divided by, total leverage ratio exposure measure. Total
leverage ratio exposure measure is total assets excluding derivatives and
intangible assets, and adjusted for off-balance sheet items such as pipeline
and undrawn collateral, exposure value for derivatives and transitional
adjustments?.

Liability yield

Interest expense and similar charges, divided by, average principal employed.

Liquidity coverage ratio?

Liquidity buffer, divided by, total 30-day net cash outflows in a standardised
stress scenario.

Loans and advances to
customers

The sum of loans and advances to customers (net of loss allowance /
impairment allowance! and fair value adjustments for hedged risk) and assets
on operating leases included in property, plant and equipment.

Management expenses
ratio

The sum of administrative expenses and provisions for liabilities and charges,
divided by, average principal employed.

Net interest margin

Net operating income, divided by, average principal employed.

Ratio of past due over
90 days and impaired
loans

Sum of loans and advances to customers classified as over 90 days past due
and loans and advances to customers classified as impaired assets, divided
by, total gross loans and advances to customers.

Ratio of Stage 3 loans

Total of loans and advances to customers classified as Stage 3, divided by,
total gross loans and advances to customers.

Return on lending
assets after tax

Profit after taxation, divided by, average principal employed.

Return on lending
assets before tax

Profit before taxation, divided by, average principal employed.

Return on tangible
equity

Profit after taxation (adjusted to deduct distributions made to holders of capital
securities), divided by, average tangible equity. Average tangible equity is
calculated as, total equity less capital securities and intangible assets at the
beginning of the period, plus total equity less capital securities and intangible
assets at the end of the period, divided by two.

Total capital ratio?

Total regulatory capital, divided by, risk-weighted assets.

Total Tier 1 capital ratio?

Total Tier 1 capital, divided by, risk-weighted assets.

1 Loss allowance in 2018 reflect expected credit losses calculated in accordance with IFRS 9. Impairment allowance in 2017 reflect
impairment losses calculated in accordance with IAS 39.

2 See Section 12 of the risk management report for further details.
3 The year ended 31 December 2018 includes adjustments for phasing in the impact of IFRS 9 adoption in accordance with EU regulatory

transitional arrangements.

4 See Section 6 of the risk management report for further details.
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